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("unallocated reserves") has remained at a healthy level' $120 million' after

iunding the additional governmental service demands of this increased

ooDulation

understanding of the State's financial activities.

statements, and the combining, individual fund and account group statements

and schedutes. Trend information on fiscal, social and demographic measures

on a multi-year basis is included in the statistical section.

This report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) for governments as promulgated by the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The independent accounting firm of
Kafoury, Armstrong & Co. has audited the accompanying financial statements

The audit was conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing

standards and the auditor's unqualified opinion appears first in the financial

section.

Nevada was honored for the ninth consecutive year in receiving the Certiflcate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance

Officers Association (GFOA) for the State's 1996 report. This prestigious award

represents the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental financial

reporting. We believe our current report continues to conform to the high

standards and will be submitted to GFOA for review in their Certiflcate of
Achievement Program.

PHONE: (702) 687'{330
FAX: (702) 6E7-67,r8

E-mail: < ddaines@govmail slate. nv.us



Reporting Entity - Nevada, named the "Silver State" due to the vast quantities of silver mined ftom the Comstock
Lode in the 1800s, is bordered by California, Oregon, ldaho, Utah and Arizona. The State lies in the Great Basin,
an arid region east ofthe Sierra Nevada Mountains, where the average annual rainfall is less than ten inches.
Approximately 87.6 percent of the 1 10,000 square miles of valleys and north-south mountain ranges is under
federal ownership.

The economy and the tax base of the State are dependent upon the interrelated gaming and tourism industries, as
well as uPon federal activities, maning, warehousing, manufacturing, and agriculture. Nevada has experienced one
ofthe fastest rates of population growth in the nation. The 1990 census showed a 55% increase over 1980 and
the 1997 forecast of 1.7 million people indicates that Nevada's population has grown over 40o/o since 1990.

The State has operated under a constitution approved in 1864 and provides for a full range of services. These
services include education, health and social services, highway maintenance and construction, law enforcement,
judicial, public safety, business regulation, and resource development. State agencies and entities included in this
report are those for which the State is considered to be financially accountable. There are several occupational
licensing boards where the State's accountability is limited to State officials making appointments to the boards.
The State does not exercise financial or administrative control over these boards and thus thev are excluded from
this report.

The following State agencies issue independent financial reports:

o Colorado River Commisston
. Department of Museums, Library and Arts' Museums and History Fund. Housing Division
. Legislative Counsel Bureau's Legislative and Contingency Funds. Legislators' Retirement System
. Public Employees' Retirement System
. Risk Management's Self-lnsurance and Insurance Premiums Funds. State Industrial Insurance System
o University and Community College System of Nevada

Copies of these independently audited reports are available upon request.

Internal Controls - State management is responsible for designing and encouraging adherence to policies and
controls that safeguard resources. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonible, but not absotute
assurance regarding:

. The safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disoosition. and. The reliability of the financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability of
assets.

Such controls require judgment by management that the costs of controls should not exceed the benefits derived.

In addition to internal controls, the state also maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with the biennial
financial plan as enacted by the Legislature through the appropriation and authorized expenditure acts. Budgetary
controls also contain a system of encumbering purchase orders to ensure that appropriations are not exceeded.

General Government Functions - The following schedule presents a summary of revenues and other financing
sources for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1997 and 19 16, of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt
service funds, capital projects funds, and expendable trust funds. Net transfers frorn/to other funds are included
as other financing sources.



Revenues and Other Financing Sources
(Expre s sed in thou s ands)

1997 1996
Amount Percent Amount Percent-$- 1'gde53g ----Ed:6f Tlree€-o- ----iIMTaxes

Intergovernmental
Licenses, fees and permits
Sales and charges for services
Interest
Other revenues
Other tinancing sources

908,806
't98,622
,f4,885
113,061 3.0
52,396 ',t.4

529,460 't4.2

91,595 2.8
42,699 1.3

244,717

Amount Percent
$ 93,931 5.2%

31,071 3.5
13,247
3,427

21,466
9,697

24.3
5.3
1.2

877,735
'185,375

41,458

26.7
5.6
1.3

7.1
8.3

23.4
227

284,743 't't6.4-S-T740-,76-t ---lT0o%. -$-328-5l1ET- ---l5dTed -5-?57ss-t 't3.9

Other financing sources

Othef revenues

lnterest

Sales, charges for services

Licenses, fees and permits

The increase in taxes was due to growth in the economy and population rather than new taxes or increased tax
rates. Taxes represent almost 50% of the resources available to the State for general government functions with
sales taxes and gaming taxes representing approximately 60% of total taxes. The following chart depicts
graphically sales and gaming taxes over the past four years.

The chart shows that sales taxes have
increased 38% over the four years, and
gaming taxes have increased 16%. Sales
taxes continued their consistent groMh in
1997 while gaming taxes remained flat.
Increased gaming revenues from the new
themed mega-resorts in Las Vegas was
offset by decreases in revenues from
traditional casinos.

.9

E

'94

!Sales Tax

'96

lGaming Tax

Intergovernmental revenues, the next largest source, are predominantly federal. lnterest derived from the
investment of idle cash, increased substantially. This increase was due to increased earnings rates as well as to
the increase of cash and investment balances due to the imoroved fiscal health of the State. Other financino

Increase (Decrease)



sources show a substantial increase, due primarily to proceeds from bonds. Municipal bond bank bonds totalling
$484 million were sold in 1997 to provide local governments with financing for their capitial improvement needs at
the most advantiageous rate possible. Table ll in the statistical section shows a ten-year time profile of resources
for general government.

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds. caoital
Projects funds, and expendable trust funds expenditures and other financing uses for the fiscal years ended June
30, 1997and 1996. Net transfers to/ftom the university system are the other financing use.

1997 1996

General govemment
Health, social services
Education
Law, justice, public safety
Regulation of business
Transporlation
Recreation
Intergovernmental

Capital improvements
Debt service
Other linancing uses

Regulation of business
Transportation

Law, justic€, public safety

Education

Amount
$ 101,565

I ,090,069
26,460

276,275
63,730

312,592
89,011

672,812
49,298

151,422
350,404

$ 3,183,638

Percent
3.20/o

u.2
08
8.7
2.O

9.8
2.4

2't.'l
1.5

4.8
1 1,0

't00.00/o

Amount
$ 75,770

1,061,930

24,0'lg
256,015

58,819
344,143
80,713

6't3,244
27,932

138,791

266,381

$ 2p47,797

Percent
2.6vo

36.0
0.8
8.7
2.O

11.7
2.7

20.8
0.9
4.7
9.0

100.0%
u,o23

$ 235,841

Amount Percent
$ 25,795 U.O%

28,139 2.6
2,44'l

20,260
4,911 8.3

(31,591) -9.2

8,298 10.3
59,568 9.7
21,366 76.5
't2,631 9.1

'to.2

7.9

31.5
8.0

Intergovernmental

Recreation
CaDit?l imDrovements

Debt servic€

Other flnancing use

General government

Health, social servtces

Expenditures for general governmental functions increased by approximately 34o/o ova( 1996 as shown in the
preceding table. This was due primarily to 1997 expenditures of approximately $17 million for remodeling the
legislative building in Carson City and $8 million in costs related to the 1997 legislative session. Expendiiures for
transportation declined primarily due to the 922 million decrease in bond-related projects.

The increase in intergovernmental expenditures is primarily due to:

. $44 million increase in payments to local school distncts required by a 5% increase in public school
enrollment, and

. $1 1 million of federal emergency management assistance (FEMA) expenditures that assisted in cleaning up
llood damages which occurred in early January 1997.

Increase (Decrease)



Wide swings in capital improvement expenditures occur due to the biennial cycle of the Legislature and their
authorization of projects. The g% increase in debt service was anticipated. The other financing use consists of net
transfers to the University System (a component unit) Enrollment at the University System increased by 7% in the
last year and additional capital improvement proJects totaling $77 million were funded.

Unallocated Reserues

An important indicator of fiscal health ts
"unallocated reserves" which include
the undesignated fund balance in the
General Fund and the "rainy day" fund
balance. The accompanying chart
depicts those balances. Table lll in the
statistical section provides a ten year
comparison. The combined amounts of
undesignated General Fund and "rainy
day" fund balances decreased $14
million in 1997, but remain at the
healthy level of $120 million

Proprietary Operations - Internal Service Funds - The internal service funds charge and recover costs from
State agencies for services such as building maintenance, printtng, insurance, data processing, motor pool and
others. Rates charged to State agencies for the operations of the internal service funds are adjusted in following
years to otfset gains and losses. In 1997, these funds showed a net loss ofg1.8 million. The Self-lnsurance Fund
incurred an anticipated net loss of $7.3 million for the year. Management used surplus earnings accumulated from
prior years, rather than premium increases, to offset the anticipated increased costs for claims exDense and
insurance premiums.

Proprietary Operations - Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds primarily reflect the activities of:

. The Colorado River Commission (CRC) purchasing and selling electrical power from Nevada's share of the
generating facilities at Hoover Dam.

. The Housing Division providing low interest loans to low and moderate income households

. The State Industrial Insurance System (SllS) providing benefits of medical care, disability compensation and
rehabilitation services to Nevada workers who are injured or contract a disease in the course oftheir
employment.

Combined assets of enterprise funds increased by $339 million in 1997 and combined liabilities decreased by
$166 million, resulting in a net reduction to fund deficit of $505 million. These improvements over 1996 were
primarily due to improvements realized by SllS. SllS reported net income of 9439 million and unrealized
investment gains of $57 million. SllS fund deficit decreased from $1,352 million in 1996 to $956 million in 1992.
The laws enacted by the 1993 Legislature and management efficiencies are proving effective in reducing the SllS
fund deficit which peaked at $2,1 59 million at June 30, 1993.

Pension Trust Opelations - The Publlc Employees' Retirement System (PERS) covers most public emptoyees
of the State and its political subdivisions, as well as other public employees. PERS net assets held in trust for
pension benefits increased $1,486 million in 1997; however, PERS unfunded accrued liability, using the entry age
normal cost method, increased $400 million to $2,700 million at June 30, 1997. The funded ratio decreased from
75.8%in 1996 to7560/o in 1997. Underthe present plan and actuarial method the unfunded liabilitv will be fullv



amortized over a period of 27 years from July 1 , 1996. Additional information is available in the Actuarial Section
of PERS separately issued financial stiatements.

Debt Administration - The bond ratings from Moody's Investor Service and Standard and Poor's remained at Aa
and AA respectively. These ratings reflect a good economic base and sound financial management. On June 30,
1996, outstanding bonded debt was (expressed in fhousands):

General Obligation Bonds
Highway Revenue Bonds
Mortgage Revenue Bonds

Municipal Bond Bank Project 52
Municipal Bond Bank Projects 53-56
Cultural Affairs
Capital lmprovement
Natural Resources
Municipal Bond Bank Protects 57-64
Cultural Affairs
Natural Resources
Housing Single Family
Housing Single Family
Housing Single Family
Housing Single Family
Housing Single Family
Housing Multifamily Saratoga Palms East ll
Housing Multi-family Pecos Owen Court
Housing Multi-family Oakmont at Ft. Apache
Housing Multi-family Oakmont at Flamingo
Housing Multi-family Fremont Meadows

(Expre ssed in mi lli ons)
Additions to Lovelock Conection Center - Medium Security Prison
State Library - Carson City
Legislative Building
Clark County Armory
Juvenile Treatment Facility - Las Vegas
Construction of a 125-bed Housing Unit, Prisons - Carson City

$ 180,000
19,220
4,060

41,185
720

285,490
2,000

10,000
30,000
30,000
25,000
25,000
25,000
10,750
11,500
9,320

10,675

Expended by
June 30. 1997 Total Budaet

$ 25.9 $ 35.1
't7.'t 20.2
20.4 20.4
't 1 .9 15.0
3.4 8.8
0.7 7.4

$ 1,692,296
35,400

Only $527 million of the $1,692 million general obligation bonds are paid through a tax levy on property. The
remaining 91,165 million are serviced through user fees from enterprise fund operations, slot machine taxes, and
revenues from local governments for the municipal bond bank and the water pollution control bonds.

The Constitution of the State limits the aggregate principal amount of the general obligation debl to 2% of the total
reported assessed property value of the State, As of June 30, 1997, the debt limit and remaining capacity were as
foffows (expressed in millions):

Debt limit (2% of assessed value) $ 762.2
Less: Bonds and leases payable 476.9
Remaining debt capacity $ 285.3

Exempt from this limit are debts incurred for the protection, preservation and development of natural resources.

New bonds sofd during the 1997 fiscal year wete (expressed in thousands):

7l'U964
7t'u968
7 r't96o

1Il15/964
I I/15/968

6t1E7A
6t1E7B
6t1t97C

711t96
9t20t96

't1t21t96
3np7
5t8t97

8/16/96
11t21t96
11t21t96
11t21t96

4t1197

Capital Projects - To keep pace with demands of the growing population and economy, the State has a
substantial capital project program. The following is a summary of major projects during 1997.



Not shown in the capital projects funds nor in the general fixed assets account group are the etforts of the
Department of Transportation in improving and maintaining our highway infrastructure. During 1997 the
Department of Transportation spent $48 million constructing freeways, state routes, bridges, and widening
projects. The State also spent $106 million reconstructing, re-paving, or rehabilitating 173 miles of roadways and
I bridges. The expenditures for these efforts are recorded in the State Highway Fund, a special revenue fund.

University and Community College System of Nevada Funds (University System) - An elected nine-member
Board of Regents supervises the operation of the University System, comprising two universities, four community
colleges and a research institute. Revenues in the current operating funds increased by $29 million to $330
million. Expenditures of current operating funds were recorded at $530 million, an increase of $31 million. State
support increased $19 million to $243 million. Enrollment data are available in Table XVll of the statistical section.

Cash Management - Cash temporarily idle is invested by the State Treasurer. All cash except for monies in
pension trust funds, deferred compensation fund, SllS, University System, and Housing are combined in the State
Treasurer's investment pool. Uncommitted balances are invested in collateralized repurchase agreements,
bankers acceptances (only those eligible for discount with the Federal Reserve), commercial paper issued by U.S.
corporations (rated A-1, P-1 or better), corporate bonds issued by U.S. corporations (rated A or befter), and
securities of the U.S. government with typical maturities ranging from one day to five years.

The State Treasurer also operates a separate investment pool for local governments to take advantage ofthe
greater interest earnings through pooled investments. The type of securities purchased and the investment
policies are similar but somewhat more restrictive than those of the State pool.

Risk Management - The State is self-financed against certain property and liability claims. The Risk Management
Division manages the Self-lnsurance Fund for group health insurance. Revenues are generated through charges
to employees and departments to pay for contracted insurance and self-funded plans- The Division also manages
the Insurance Premiums Fund to provide fidelity, property and workers' compensation coverages. The State
finances the first $250,000 of property and contents losses and the remainder is insured up to $500 million through
commercial insurers.

Conclusion - This report continues my commitment to inform and clearly demonstrate the financial condition of
the State to the citizenry and the financial community, Considerable effort and cooperation has been exhibited by
all of the State agencies, the Legislature and the Judiciary. Without their efforts, this financial report could nol
have been produced. I elitend my sincere appreciation to the management and the leaders of State government
for their stewardship. I especially thank John P. Comeaux and \Mlliam D. Anderson for their contributions of the
major initiatives and economic outlook sections. Our pictonal theme highlights the tourist sites in Nevada. I

appreciate and thank the Nevada Commission on Tourism for their outstanding efforts in this feature.

Last but not least, I commend the etforts of the accounting firm of Kafoury, Armstrong & Co., my statf and others
who contributed to the production of this reoort.

Respectfully submitted,
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

John P. Comeaux
Director. Department of Administration

During the 1997 - 1999 biennium, the State of Nevada will undergo significant changes as a result of legislation
passed during the 1997 Nevada Legislative Session. The changes include a comprehensive package of elementary
and secondary education reforms; a new welfare program, to comply with the federal Personal Responsibility and
Work Opportunities Reconcilition Act; the Family to Family Connection program, to provide support services to families

with infants; increased funding for Family Resource Centers; and a long list of capital improvement projects.

EDUCATION REFORM

As a result of Senate Bill 482, the elementary and secondary education system in Nevada will experience a major

overhaul. The legislation - the Nevada Education Reform Act of 7992 - holds students, teachers, schools, and
parents responsible for the academic performance of Nevada's students. The four major provisions of the Act are:

Standards, Assessment, Accountability, and Technology.

Standards and Assessmenf

The Act establishes a g-member Council to Establish Academic Standards, comprised of the President of the State

Board of Education, parents, teachers, business leaders, and legislators, to develop statewide academic standards
and achievement tests in core subjects. The standards and achievement tests will be developed in phases. The
Phase I standards for English, mathematics, and science will be developed by September 1 , 1998, with the
corresponding achievement tests developed by November 1 , 1998. The Phase ll standards for the arts, computer
literacy, health/physical education, and social studies will be developed by September 1, '1999, with achievement tests
developed by November 1 , 1999.

The State Board of Education must adopt the stiandards developed by the Council, but has some flexibility in adopting
the achievement tests. Phase I stiandards take effect for the 1999 - 2000 school year, while Phase ll standards take
effect the following year.

Accountability

Each school must complete a yearly "Accountability Report" that includes information on student performance on

statewide achievement tests. The tests will be given to every fourth, eighth, and tenth grader in Nevada public

schools. In addition to a school's ranking on these statewide tests, schools must report items such as: the number of
students taking the statewide tests, the average daily attendance of students and teachers, school expenditures,
incidents involving the possession of alcohol and/or controlled substances, the percentage of the school's graduates in

remedial courses at the University and Community College System of Nevada, and the participation rate of parents in

school activities.

On the basis of the Accountability Reports, all schools in the state will be identified as High Achievement, Adequate
Achievement, or Inadequate Achievement. Schools initially identified as Inadequate will be required to develop a plan

of improvement and will be evaluated by a panel established to review the school. lf the school fails to improve for
three consecutive years, the panel can take any action needed, including the appointment of a new administrator, to
improve the school's performance.

Technology

The Nevada Education Reform Act also creates an 11-member Education Technology Commissrbn comprised of
educational personnel, representatives of public libraries, the University and Community College System of Nevada,
private sector, parents and legislators. The Commission is charged with developing a statewide plan for the use of
educational technology at each school. The plan will make recommendations to incorporate technology within the
schools, increase student access to the Intemet, increase teacher access to continuing education opportunities



through technology, improve student achievement, and incorporate teacher traihing needs associated with the new

technology. The final technology plan is due by January 1999 in time for the 1999 Nevada Legislative Session.

The Commission will also allocate funds to school districts, state youth training centers, and public libraries from the
newly-created Trust Fund for Educational Technology. The Legislature allocated on July 1 , '1997, $27.5 million to the
Trust for the Durchase and installation of computer hardware, software, and electric wiring for computer laboratories,
upgrading existing computer software, purchase of additional computers for instructional use in the classroom, and for
other forms of educational technology. Also available is $8,6 million for repair, maintenance, and rePlacement of
computer hardware, upgrading computer software, contracting for technicel support, and tt'aining for teachers.

Legislative Oversight

The Act also establishes a Legislative Commiftee on Educaf,bn comprised of four Senators and four Assembly

Members to review school accountability programs, monitor the status of public education, prescribe standards for

school review, and recommend remedial programs for schools. Also, the Act sets up a Legislative Bureau of
Education, within the Legislative Counsel Bureau, to collect and analyze data and reports on statewide school

oerformance. class-size reduction, special education and other refotm initiatives.

WELFARE REFORM

To understand the status of welfare reform for the 1997 - 1999 biennium, it is necessary to give some background on

where we have been. Although the federal Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act did not

oass until 1996. the State of Nevada started its welfare reform initiative in the Fall of 1993 when it convened a welfare

reform task force. This early task force recommended that Nevada change its welfare system to "make work pay,"

thereby making work a more lucrative option for the average welfare recipient. This recommendation was central to

Governor Miller's 1995 welfare reform package and gained the approval of state legislators.

It was also during this time that welfare statf began discussing with clients the fact that welfare assistance was

temporary, and that clients were better off working. Other highlights of the 1995- 1997 biennium were: establishment

ofthe New Employees of Nevada (NEON) employment and training program; the Supporting Teens Achieving ReaF

life Success (STARS) program, to enable teen mothers to become better parents and achieve at least a GED; and

various initiatives to help welfare recipients with job searches and placement and in receiving much-needed child

support payments. A second welfare reform task force was convened during the 1995 - 1997 biennium to provide

inout and make recommendations on how to comply with the federal welfare reform legislation signed by President

Clinton in August, 1996.

Assembly Bill 401 of the 1997 Nevada Legislative Session was the ultimate result of this second welfiare reform task

force. This is the bill that brings Nevada into compliance with the federal welfare reform legislation

The federal welfare reform legislation replaces the 60-year-old Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC)

program with a block grant, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), allowing states to experiment with new

forms of assisting low-income families. Although federal law mandates specific reforms, states may elect several

options in conjunction with their reform packages. A.B.401 deflnes Nevada's options and leaves the door oPen for

future changes.

The primary provisions of A.B. 401 and the federal legislation are: job skills assessment; a Personal Responsibility
plan to ide;tfry each household membe/s role in becoming self-sufficient; an Agreement of Cooperaf,bn stating that

the head of household will comply with all conditions of receiving assistance; sanctions for non-cooperation; school

attendance requirements for children of welfare recipients; and time limits for receiving public assistance.

Although the federal lifetime limit is 60 months, or 5 years, Nevada opted for a more conseNative position. Under

Nevadi law, each recipient may receive 24 months (2 years) of assistance, afrer which the recipient must remain off

TANF for 12 months (1 year). Then the recipient may receive benefits for another 24 months until the lifetime limit of

60 months is reached. Nevada opted for this strategy to prevent a person from using the entire 60 month limit all at

once. The lifetime limit applies only to the cash portion (TANF), and not to Medicaid, Food Stamps or Supplemental

Security Income (SSl).



As for the work requirements, federal law mandates that the work participation rate for all families be 25% by FY 1998

and increase to sO;,"/, by 2002. For two-parent families, the rates are 75o/o and 90%, respectively. ReciPients must

work or participate in awork-related activity at least 20 hours per week. To comply with these mandates, the state

Welfare Division and the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation are working together to build and

refine a system of employment, training, and iob services for those on public assistance. The State is also working

with Nevjda community colleges to train welfare recipients for specific jobs, and with private industry to encourage the

hiring of those on public assistance.

As mentioned previously, in addition to the federal requirements, Nevada also chose several options in its welfare

reform package. Those options include: e

from going on public assistance in the firs

services to non-custodial parents so they

sanctions to recipients for failure to immunize their children

welfare system, including child care and medical coverage;

recipients to work.

\Mat if we can't meet the federal work requirements? Consequences are stitf. There is a 5% sanction to the TANF

gloci Grant, equaling about $2.2 million, for failure to meet the 1998 and 2002 standards. Thereafter, the sanction

inir"".". Oy Z;t" eain year for continued fiailure. Meeting these requirements will get even tougher in the coming

y""i., 
". 

inlr"".ingly, ihose who remain on public assistance will be the more "difficult to serve" clients. Thus,

fuevada is worting Oiiigentty to provide an increasing array of job services, life skills kaining, educational services, and

child care to smooth the transition from welfare to work

FAMILY TO FAMILY CONNECTION

families. The Family to
he child within the
connection that
e PartnershiPs.

The Family to Family Connection is offered to all families with newborns; there are no other eligibility requirements.
participation in the program is voluntary, and no assessments of the child or the family are completed unless at the

request of the family.

To implement the Fami , the state has been divided into two regions with thirteen service

delivery districts called (lsD). Each lsD is administered and operated at the local level, with

involvement of those in es, and supported through block grants offered by the Nevada

Department of Human Resources.

Although variations in services will exist between lSDs, as the needs of each community differ, each Infant Support

Districi will offer three components of services: Home and Hospital Visitation; New Baby Centers; and Resource

tending Centers. Under the first component, Home and Hospitat Visitation, the Department's goal is an average of 2

visits fo-r a minimum of 50% of the birth population in each lsD, visits will be provided upon request and made by

licensed professionals and family specialists. The purpose of the visits is to provide information and support services

to families with newborns. Topiis covered will include child growth and development, immunization, and information

about other resources, as requested by the family.

The second component, New Baby Centers, are designed as places within the Infant Support District for families to

network and have a central location for formal and informal activities that foster learning and support. In addition, the

New Baby Centers will provide limited respite services for infants up to age one. Respite services are nol intended as

long{erm child care, nor for drop-in child care. Rather, respite care will be offered to families on a shortlerm basis to

faciiitate individual and group educational opportunities. Examples of how respite services might be used are: parents

who have been newly hired and have been unable to arrange for ongoing child care, and families who are seeking

employment and need child care while they go for interviews.



Finally, each f SD will have a Resource Lending Cenfgrthat contains resources that focus on the needs of fumilies with
newborns. Resources will be available to f;amilies on a loan basis and will include such things as instructional
materials (e.9., books and vldeotapes), toys, and safety equipment.

Total funding for the Family to Family Connection is $9,323,073 over the biennium. This total includes $1 ,215,729 in

federal money.

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTERS

Established pursuant to Senate Bill 405 ofthe 1995 Nevada Legislature, Family Resource Centers are intended to
provide a range of services to families in at-risk neighborhoods throughout the state. Each Famiry Resource Center
(FRC) is governed by a Neighborhood Council composed of parents of children from the neighborhood, Because
each neighborhood is different, the services provided by each FRC differ. However, services typically include
parenting education, child care resources and referrals, family counseling, support groups, child abuse/neglect
prevention, recreational programs and youth development activities. The Nevada Deparfrnent of Human Resources
selected two Local Governing Boards (one in Northern Nevada; the other in Southem Nevada) to allocate funding for
the FRCS. During the 1995 - 1997 biennium, total funding for FRCS was $1,130,000, and there were a totial of21
FRCS throughout the State. For the 1997 - 1999 biennium, total funding for FRCs is $2,832,000, a 151% increase.
This increase will allow for an additional 21 FRCS in various locations around the state, to be established in phases.
The Department iscloseto its goal of42 FRCS. By January 1,1998, there will be 35 Family Resource Centers in
various locations throughout the state, with the rest coming onJine during the remainder of the biennium.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

There are several Capital lmprovement Prqects, or ClPs, planned for the 1997 - 1999 biennium. The projects consist
of construction and maintenance activities for state prisons and conservation camps, the University and Community
College System, and various state agencies. The total legislatively-approved CIP budget for the biennium is

$316,130,678. TheClP budget is financed in three ways: cash, bonds, and other sources, such as donations. The
cash portion of the CIP budget is $146,265,673, ot 46.3o/o. The portion financed by bonds is $149,61 1,405, ot 47 .3Vo.

Other sources total $20,253,600, or 6.4010 of the total CIP budget. The state prison system and higher education
together account for over 80% of the total CIP budget. The state prison system accounts for 34.8olo of the total ClP,
while higher education accounts for 46.5%.



ECONOMIC REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Wlliam D Anderson
Economist, State of Nevada Budget and Planning Division

INTRODUCTION

Economic conditions are of major concern to state policymakers throughout the U.S. The importance of the
economy's performance is a critical determinant of, among other things, perceptions of quality of life, the overall welF
being of the population, and a state's fiscal health.

lt takes only a brief glance at the information contained in recent issues of Western Blue Chip Economic Forecast, a
widely-read Arizona State University publication, to conclude that Nevada's economy is turning in a solid, if not
spectacular, performance on all fronts:

. S,/ver Stafe takes crown for top employment growth ln 7996(April 1997);

. Nevada, Utah, Washington, and Texas set the pace among the Western states for growth in residential
construction permlts rn 7996 (March 1997); and

. Nevada, Arizona, Utah lead nation in population growth in 1996 (JanuarylFebruary 1997).

Clearly, Nevada's economy appears to be on solid ground as the 1990s draw to a close and the 21"'century
approaches.

REVIEW

Nevada's strong economic showing of late is evident across the board. Perhaps the most watched barometer of
regional economic conditions is job and employment trends. Between 1986 and 1996, job growth in the State
exceeded that for the U.S. in every year (figure 1). During that ten-year period, job growth averaged 6.6% annually,
more than three times the rate of growth for the nation as a whole. That trend has continued into the first half of 1997
Nationwide, lob growth slands at2.2o/o. In Nevada, job growth has come in atl.2o/o.

Figur€ 1

Nevada and U.S. Nontam Job Growth
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In the midst of this rapid expansion in jobs, the structure of Nevada's economy continues to evolve and diversify.
While the gaming and related industries continue to play significant, if not dominant, roles in the State's economy,
other industries are growing and prospering (table 1 ). In fact, the share of total jobs accounted for by the
hotels/gaming/recreation sector is lower than it was a decade ago (24 9% of the total in 1996 vs. 27 .5o/o ten years
earlier). The share ofjobs accounted for by other service industries is on the rise. Perhaps more importantly, the
share ofjobs accounted for by nonservice industries has increased from 55.9% in 1986 to 56.9% in 1996.



Table I
Nevada Job StructuE

Jobs (in thousands) Share of Total

1986 1996 't986 1996

Hotels/Gaming/Recreation
Other Services
Other

128.9
77.7

26'1.5

209.5
154.0
479.0

27 ,5Yo

16,6Yo

55.9%

24.9%
18.3Yo

56.9%
468.1 u2.5 100.0%

Another broad gauge of the economy's health revolves around personal income trends. Again, it is clearly evident that

Nevada has tumed in a solid showing relatrve to trends unfolding throughout the country. Nevada personal income

growth came in at 9.9% in 1996, nearly double the 5.6% rate of growth in the U.S. That trend continued in the first
quarter of 1997 as income grew at an 8.7o/o clip in Nevada, well ahead of the 6.3% gain turned in by the nation as a

wnore.

In 1996, per capita personal income totaled $26,011 in the State. This equates to about 106.50/o ofthe national

average. Per capita income in Nevada, expressed as a percentage of the U.S. average, has risen steadily over the

past decade (figure 2), a further sign of the State's relatively strong economic performance during that period.

Figu.€ 2

Noyada Per Caplta Pe6onal lncoms as a Percent ot the U'S.

Just as the Nevada economy as a whole has evolved and diversified, the State's most notable industry is also going

through a period of significant change. lt appears that the State's "gaming" industry is well on its way to evolving into

the "glming/leisure" industry, providing a multitude of services and opportunities to customers which extend well

Oeyo-nO tnole provided by tiaditional casinos and showrooms. Mr. Glenn Schaeffer, president and CFO of Circus

Circus highlights this shift:

The botdest and most expensive buitdings under way today in a country famed for its skylines lie on a four-

mile stretch of the Mojave Deseft catled the Las Vegas Sfnp. Circus' Luxor pyramid aftracts more visitors

annua y than a of Egypt-by a factor of three to four times. The very idea of the enteftainment megastore is

to relieie peopte of their ordinary experience. ln Las Vegas, we promote the sights and sounds and spectacle

that you can't find back home, or anwhere else l

This apparent shift is reflected in the balance sheets of Nevada's gaming establishments, as noted in a recent study

undertaken by the State's Budget and Planning Division:

An examination of the combined income statement revenue of Nevada's gaming establishments, as repofted

in the State Gaming Control Board's annual Nevada Gaming Abstract, suggests that there was, in fact, a shift

in consumer behavior in the mid-1gg1s. Between FY 1986 and FY 1993, gaming's share of total revenues in

these estabtishments barely budged, ranging from 60.7% to 61 .8/o. However, that changed beginning in FY

1 As quoted in: Joseph V. Coccimiglio, Prudential Securities Equity Research, Pottfolio Managers Wrap-Up, "As

Casinos Become More Spectacular, is Gaming Still the Draw?", January 1997' p 4



1994, when gaming accounted for just 59.7%. As of FY 1996, that share had declined fufther, to 57.7% of
total revenue.2

This shift in consumer spending pafterns is evident in the various gauges of the health of Nevada's gaming/leisure
industry (figures 3 and 4). Clark County visitor volume continues to move foMard, doubling between 1986 and 1996
in reaching 30 million visitors annually. The gaming industry's real (i.e., inflation-adjusted) total win rose by about 50o/o
over the same period, despite a relatively poor showing in 1996. These same general trends are evident through the
first half of 1997. Visitor volume is up a solid 4.3% relative to a year ago. Real gaming win is up a more modest 1 .3%
through the first half of the year. Hence, it appears that Nevada is still drawing significant numbers of visitors, yet the
State's gaming establishments are not generating proportionate increases in win, further evidence that consumers are
diversifying their budgets. While these trends have been unfolding, taxable sales, a good measure of retail activity,
have been surging. Real sales growth has been 8% or greater in three of the past four years. This surge has likely
been driven by a number of factors, including a building boom in southem Nevada, growth in the State's population,
and, arguably, growth in nongaming expenditures on the part of the State's visitors. Growth has continued through the
first half of 1997, as sales are up nearly 5olo after adjustment for inflation.

Figu.e 3
Nevada Gamlng/Leisure Activity Barometers

Figufe 4
Nevada Real Taxable Sales crowth
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OUTLOOK

Clearly, the Nevada economy is on solid ground. lf the U.S. economy continues to move forward, the State will, in all
likelihood, once again be at or near the top of the economic rankings in the years ahead.

AsfortheU.S. economy, the current expansion, which began in March 1991,lsthethird longest pos AM/ll recovery,
Despite its longevity, there are few indications of problems on the horizon. Labor markets continue to generate ample
employment opportunities, keeping the unemployment rate near 5%. Spending remains fairly robust as consumers
are confident of their future job and income prospects. Perhaps most importantly, inflation, at roughly 2.S%, remains
quite tame by recent historical standards. Typically, one of the earliest signs of impending problems is upward
pressure on inflation.

The consensus is that the U.S. economy should continue to move foMard at a steady and sustainable clip. WEFA,
lnc., a well-known economic forecasting firm, expects real GDP growth in the neighborhood ol2.5o/o (annually) well
into the foreseeable future. Their baseline forecast calls for lob growth ot 1% to 2%. Inflation is forecast to come in
below 3% on a yearly basis.

Against this backdrop, Nevada's economy should continue to expand at a solid rate. Healthy economic conditions in
the nation as a whole will help pave the way for continued visitor growth. In response, Nevada's gaming
establishments have scheduled significant new development and expansion proJects in the spirit of the entertainment
megastore noted above, involving roughly 12,000-15,000 new hotel rooms. These new properties will be designed to
cater to the gaming and nongaming needs of visitors. Many industry-insiders view this evolution ftom the traditional

2 State of Nevada Budget and Planning Division, Interpreting FY 1997 Percentage Fee Collection Trends, April 1997.
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casino-dominated gaming market to the gaming/leisure market characterized by today's megaresorts in a positive
light. The Prudential Securities report cited earlier notes that:

The potential for nongaming revenue groffih is enormous, as it taps into the $440 billion leisure industry. We
think casino companies with more to offer than gaming can achieve superior groMh of revenues and cash
flow through the end of the decade. (p, 3)

Some have expressed concern over the possibility that, as a result of several years of nonstop growth, Nevada's
gaming/leisure market has reached the point of over-capacity. Research undertaken in the Budget and Planning
Division suggests that this is not the case. The findings suggest that it remains profitable for firms to continue to add
capacity. The fact that significant expansions are on-going suggests that this is, indeed, the case. lt is quite unlikely
that these projects would be undertaken if there were major concerns about their future profitability.

With that said, the Budget Office's analysis suggests that the current round of expansions, once complete, will likely
bring the State's gaming c€pacity to the limit. Hence, while the following years will bring about continuous re-tooling of
existing capacity, significant expansions are not expected beyond those currently planned and in progress.

The State of Nevada Economic Forum, a panel of outside experts which establishes the revenue projections upon
which the State's budget is developed and adopted, looks for a rebound in gaming activity. Percentage fee collections
from taxable winnings on the part of Nevada's gaming establishments, the State's maior source of gaming tax
revenue, is forecast to grow at around 6% annually during the 1997-1999 biennium. In addition, their outlook is for
solid growth in the neighborhood of 8.5% to 9% in sales tax collections, suggesting, among other things, further growth
in the 'leisure" component of Nevada's gaming/leisure industry.

Current expeclations are for the State's labor market to continue generating substantial job opportunities for
Nevadans. The Department of Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation is forecasting job growth of 6.5% in 1998.
WEFA expects slightly slower growth of about 5% annually through 1999. Even if job growth does slow to the el:tent
expected by WEFA, it will still be well in excess of the pace of job growth forecast for the nation as a whole.

Expectations concerning other economic indicators also point to continued strength. \TVEFA is forecasting annual real
personal income growth of 6% to 7% through 1999. The State's strong economy is likely to continue attracting new
residents to Nevada. The State Demographer expects population groMh to average 4o/o annually through the end of
the decade. As a result, residential construction activity should continue at a fairly robust pace.

Taken as a whole, these expectations suggest that economic activity in Nevada will continue at a strong level.
However, it remains to be seen whether the rapid rate of expansion evident in the mid-1990s will be repeated, Most
likely, growth will ease a bit, but only marginally. Most, if not all, other states would welcome the pace of economic
activity Nevada is likely to experience in the near future.

Two notes of caution are in order. First, as is always the case, there is some downside potential to this forecast.
Perhaps the most likely source of problems would be an unforeseen cyclical downturn in the national economy which
would, among other things, negatively impact consumer confidence and put a dent in disposable incomes, reducing
the demand for the services provided by Nevada's gaming/leisure industry. Vvlile such a downturn is not expected,
WEFA attaches a 30% probability to such an occurrence. Even so, should this scenario unfold, the downturn would
likely be relatively brief, resulting in just two quarters of negative GDP growth in the second half of 1998.

Secondly, the favorable economic conditions which have been evident in Nevada in recent years, and which are likely
to continue, have not, and will not, lessen the need for difficult fiscal decisions on the part of State policymakers.
While the posrtive impacts of a strong economy outweigh any negative side effects, accommodating growth and
paving the way for continued economic strength in the future is not a simple task. As the State has grown, so has, to
name just a few examples, the student population, demands placed upon the criminaljustice system, and the
utilization of our infrastructure network. Addressing these, and other, "growth" issues will likely require increasing
amounts of scarce oublic resources.
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The Reno-Tizhoe Tirrinry borderc tbe scenit eastern

slopes of the Sizta Neuada mountain range.
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crystallinc watcrs. rollirg loycsts of pinc and [rr, sr']ow

covcrcd mourtains, gaming resorts filled with superstars,

an ancrenI sca lurrcd into a desert lake, historic nininJt

towns, lndian l)ow-wows ard well-manjcured golf courscs.

Starting in thc north, the tcrrjtory begins \,vith thc dcso-

late beauty of Snroke Creek and the Biack Rock D€sert.

furanrrl Lakc is localed at the south€m end of thjs desert

and is a rcnrnarl of an ancient inland sca.

district gave up tons ofgo)d anrl silvcr to miners and once ::,:'

represen[cd lhc richest ]ifcstylcs. Virginia City is thc main

attraction of the distrjct today, and its Old West saloons,

churchcs, mines atld muscums can bc visitcd on foot or

sccn from an original Virginia & Truckcs Railroad steam-

po\,vere0 rratl,].

Carson Citl: the state capital, is a small thriving city

with numcrous points of historic intercst, including the

Nc\,ada State Museum, the State Railroad Museum, the

Reno-Sparbs

lo the south arc the sister cities of Reno and Sparks. Rcno

was Nevada's original gaming town, and today Rcno and

Sparks are the center of nightlrft and enlertairmenl in

north\ryest Nevada. In downtowr't Reno, the National Bowlirg

Stadium has brought national ard rntemational bolvling

loumamenl crowds to the Biggest Litlle Cily in thc lryorld."

lakes in the world.

Recreation

0utdoor rccrcaLion is a year-round expcrience in Reno-

There's always sonethlng happcning ilr Victorian Square, 'T'ahoe Tcrritory. ln the winter, Lakc Tahoc offers

A short trip down thc highrvay, tourists can visit the \!ilh thousands of square milcs of Ll.S. Ijorcst Service

town of Genoa, which was frrst settled by I\4orrnon5 in the larrd in the area, it s a paradise for biking, hiking, cantping

lB50s. lt yras originally a log cabjn trading post, but today and horscback riding. There also ale numerous golfcou6es

the state's first scttlcment is a picturesque village and in the region.

lcatures a swimni_ng treach, boar launch and picnic area. ,'
11 is thc home oltk6iannual Shakcspcare at Sanri liarbor,' il



Pioneer Tbritoty is the south cental heartknd of Nnada
and home to the na y dtsignated Extrateffestrial Highuqt

Dt'a$'\Ja\\'l
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-\'ou ll tlfd real llionco\ in a tnrc lioftier -selting, No'ada s

Piofeer Jerntory rs onc o1 lhe last. 
-fl]ere 

arc a varjety of rat-

ural wonders ht'rc, lionr thc cerie badlands of Dcalh Vall('y

National Park lo lhc llpiI]c qr:rndcur ol'llc Toiyabe aDd

Nlonilor nroun tain ranltcs

The Mason Valley

O|c ol thc i]lo\t l)crutilu sectiot]s of this land is Mason and San Francjsco.

frr. ur.u , rr.^ plrr c: lclt ir the Unjted Statc: whcrc

Valli'r. in thc rorllr\1c51 corncr of Pionccr Territory. This is

c.rltlc courtrJ lillcd \\'ilh va:l irclds of alfalfa and grazinc;

inq al thr Mason Valliy Wildllfe Refugle.

Thc \4alkcr Rivcr, rvhiclr irrigatcs thc Nlason Valley.

Vvinds its rray south to \\alkcr I akc, one of t\!o remnant5

of an ancient inland scr.

The norlhcrn crd ol llr( lrke, and the to\^rf ofSchurz, is

\lest's nlost inrportant nrinin(l lowfs, producjng extraordi

nary amounts oI silvcr llcll ilrto lhc curcrl century.

loday, it offrrs a wide ranlJc ol dining and iodging

options, including thc I9o7 N4izpah llotcl.

(ir'ldfir.'rl. once l.e LenLer ol url'irr sophi,.fiialion whc.t

iL was Nevacia s largest city in 1907, can be found furthcr

along llwy.95. The towr's Goldfield Hotel, now closcd,

\,vas once the rnost opulcnt hostel between Kansas City

Beatr.yi, known as the gatcway to Death Valle)' Nalional

['ark, is right ncxt door to thc old mining to\r'] of Rhyolite.

ln the ccnler of Pioneer Territory is Statc Rt. 375, Nevada's

world-fanrous Extratenestrial Highway. The desolation of the

area and lhe road's proximity to a top-secret Air Force base

havc rraclc thc roulc a fa\rorilc amonlt UFO spotteE.

lleading rast, thc ET I I igh\a'ay .ioirs LJ.S. H\1y. 93

ljvestock r,r,jth t1s ccntcr at the picturesque toun of onc of lhc states mosl popular ohosl krwns.

\erinqlo,,. a grcrl lrlr(r'tu \rul, rnd spend a few huu.

en1oytng thc casilo acriviry, a rou'd of golf or bi*i watch Outdoor Beauty Via 7'he Ll.'Il Hi1

thc anrcstral honrc ol thc Wrlker Lake paiute 1ribc. At thc ncar CaLhcdral Corge Statc Park. lhis is a fanciful land

southcrn cnd is thc town of awthorne. HawLhorrlct5 O, towcing.lpireS and labyrinlhinc canyons, Somt.

honrc to the Mincral (ilrnty Museurn. rhc placc to lrrnr t,l which are only a few leet widc. Camping dndprinic

the history of thi5 6-!cur-0ld railroading town. sites are available at the slatc park.

1rr nearbv Pioche, the Lincoln Courty Museurn js the

Prehistoric Fossils At Old Mining Tbuns rcpository of local artifacts, bu1 jt's the "Mjllion Dollar

One ol the region s most chcrjslted ocldities is the Bcrlin- CoLrrthouse" that is the towrl s rraill historical attraction.

lchthvouur Slalr park ra!l oi the torln of Gabbs. Berlin is a Thr Courthorlse and jail arc rcstored to original condition,

tum-of-the-celttury rrinirrrl carrp rnaitrtaint(l in a state of conplctc with mannequin jurors and an aninlated judgc

"anested decay." Ihc huilclings arc frozen in tinre, not allowed Caliente, a placid little railroad town wilh a huge depot,

to deterioEte furlhcr, yct not rcslorcd to pristine condjtion. offen an exquisite example of Mission-style ar(hiteqture. The

Just up thc hill ls tlrc sitc 01 a 1955 ex&vation that vast and verdant Pahranagat Wildlifc Rcfuge, lbo-

yieldcd thc fossilircd rcnlins ol'40 lchthyosaurs. Ilrc 60 J{''rr old cottonv]ood trees skirt a lar.rle lake is the perfect

foot fish lirard w,rs r [)fcl]istoric, whale-ljke creature that spot for a roadsjde picnic or aftemoon lishing-

slvam thc seas 2,10 Injllio| to 90 nrillion years aqo- 
.lhe 

present-da). beauiJ- afd nal\rral resources of

The colorful old nrln nq to\\'f of Tonopah is perched or Nevada s Pjoneer Te*itory will swccp you a\'ray to the past

a windswept n]ou|]tair lop at thc junctions of U.S. l]w:ys, when gold and silver mitring and cattle ranching ruled this

95 and 6. For;nclccl in 1900, Tonopah became one ot lhe unique and historjc land l
Yriii



PonJl I':xpress 'Iirritory is ltorua to U.S. Highuay 50,

"l'he Londicst Road in America," ,rnd Grcat Basin Nntiow ltnrk.
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AT
-f Veva,l,r's Pon,t f 'l,rtss Ttrritory is ltr open-ajr museutr lhe Ghost Italn and \lttrber

lhe territory spans north ce|ltra] Neva(la, and lhc main

rorrlc is U.5. ll$y. 50, which follows the old Pony Express

roulc. This part ol thq highway was oncc alr importanI

link in the fbr) Exllrcss system of horsc-and-ricler nrail

[Tar]sporlalion strctching ftonr Sl. Joseph, Mo.i to

Sacr.nrcnto. Ca. iD thc early lB60s.

A\ rt was thcn, thcrc arc now still only a few Small

to\lns thal dol the arca along lhc road. In fact, the high-

\\iry !\as (lcscribed somc yea6 ago by a l/fe magazine 
.

\/ritcr as Jlrc Lonclicst Road in America."

Oreat Basin National Parh

lraveling rast lo west, lhe hr5l stop a oir!t li.S. H!{y. 50 is

thc Grcal Basin Ngtional Park, which wa5 crcaicd in 1986.

1t i5 home to lhe oldcst living ollect o]'l carth. thc

Bri5Lieconc Pine. One qnarly old tree \,ras lbund to have

sproutc; only 700 ycars after thc datc lhc Old'Tcstament

grves for the creation ol the earlh. Hiking trails lcad to

prisline alpinc ponds and lakes and to tht crest of l3,o6f-

ioot Wheeler Peak.

At the pcak s base arc lhe Lchrnan Cavcs, a-fantastic

display of gcologic dccorations. including ar array of

strla( lile., an(l stalagmile'.

Ncarby Ely, a iormer copper minjng town. makcs a grcat

ba5c for lrips to the arca's oultloor recreation arcas and

historic sitcs. ::

Ely And lrs Ghosr Train

Fly s prdc and joy is the Nevada Northem Railroad

_ Muscum, thc intact rail yards, shops.and rolling slock of

thc Nevada Northcrn Railroad.

The highliqht of the stop is old Numbct 40, "Thc Chost

' Train of Ely." A coal-firerl lbto Baldwin steam locomotive,

Consolidated stcanr engife, both offer.passcnger ridcs.

Mining Towns

lhc ncxt slop brings visilors to one oi'thr oliJesl miring

towns in the stalc FouDdtd ilr 1864, Eureka boasls many

of ils original buildjngs, which havc bcen rcstored.Th(

most inrpressivc stmcturc i5 the Eureka Courthouse, cur-

rently under rcstomtion. Once near collapse, lhc Eureka

Opera House, built in 1880, has been complctely renovated

and rrolrercrj in lgq4.

From F.urcka, the drivc takes visitors to rnother mifing -'

towr. Austin, likc ffost mining towtls, was built 1n a hrgh

mountain canvon d:tbbcd Po:nyCanyon'in honor of thr' l
retircd Polry Exprcss ridcr rvho nrade the initjal silver dis-

covcry here if l862..Many ot.thc subgFrfial stone-and-., . -

b ck bLrildings sur"vive.



cattlz driues and cotuboy poetry gatherings.



T
I hc Hunbo'dr Rirer'' course has dcfrncd lhe main

road of Cowboy Country, the same,route visitors norr

travel along lnterstate 80. Many ofthe area emigrairts'

lives also rvere defrned by the river when they returned

followingl failed dreams of frnding gold or silver These

showcase for westem American folk art. Long famous

'National 
Basque Festival held fgurth of

new era in Elko'i cultural hist egan in

1985. That's when the flrst Cowboy Poetry Gathering

Mountains, Rodeos And Basq*e Festiuak



I-as Vegas TemitorT is home to tle ntost

exciting city in the uorld.

r.gtr

\



Vcgr\ lrilfslbrm iLsclf il]to a now ovcnlhelmillq ccntcr ol

sensual \aturation? And horv docs it continue to conjure

I,rp corrl)lctelJ. fc\! cntertain tnL corcepts so quicklv -
ard.,o olLcr?

'Ihr ans\,vcr to th('\c qucstiors can be atrswerctl in a word:

inrr!linllron. Almost lrom its tburdinq days. Las Vcgas'lead-

crs imutlincd thc cily woulcl btcornc the world s playground

rrd iL rlid. Peoplc bcclar to call l.as Vegas 'lhc Enterlain-

'nelt {.r,itrl o 'h, \\',rlrl lor,t l,( lorc i had n.,r115. gaincrJ

thal \lllLrs. But lrs Vcgas imagineil it so. afd thc city

alid the on.c Sleep) d0\o I railroacl lolln of Las

bccirrc wha t jt imaUired.

1,,r. l?tx Neon

thc south arc part ofthc l]]assiye Lakc N'1ead \aliofal

Rccreation Area.

On the northeast srdc ol Lake Mcad, about 55 rnilcs

from l.as Vegas, a sccnic bplay lcads tra\.elers to lhc Valley

offirc Strtc Park, a scrics ofrcd sandstone mountains and

vafeys whcrc lhe wind has sculpted thc lardscapr irrto

bizarre shapcs tbat novc and mutatr with ihe changi*g

light of day. Some flnc cxamples ol prehistoric lndian \,rit

ings callcd petroglyphs car be found on the rocks.

Jirst 20 milcs dlong a scenii byway ftom :downtown

Vegas is thc rragrificcnl Rcd Rock Canyon \ational

Conservatiolr Area a rock climber's hrver,

Mount Charleston, at ncarlv 12,000 fcct, has bccn

descrjberl as a garden isJand ir'r a sca of desert. lrl

sunrnrcr. il j5 the placc in southern Nevada wherc,vou can

staJ,cml withou{ air conditigping; in the Whter, rt s th.s.

only placc in the arca for skiing and otter s*ow ,punrt il 
'

\lesqujtc. 77 rnjles noriheast of lrs Vcgas on thc Virqin

River, is a rapidly devcloping resort town with golf, horscback

riiJiirg, traP shootjng arld all the indoor activties for which

\evada is lamous

Resott Toutns ';,
Approaching thc Ncvada state linc frorn southcnr

Califorllia, drivers are greeted by thc bright lights oi Primnr

and Jean.Oncejusf loncly highwly outposts, the towlls;

are now rcsort sreas wilh a complclc mcasurc of Nevadi-

style aclion and unique hotel-casinos tl'lat boast scveral

amusenrcnt rides, including.qrle ofthe lallest rollcr coasl-

OS it'r thc wodd. ":::'
ln the e\treme southem tip of Nevada on the Colorado

Las

1 rs Vcgas has l2 ol lhe 1 l largcsl holels in the world, and

nrorc cntcrtainmtnl r.toices than anv place in thc worid. lts

staqcs havc fcaturcd clcry llpc ol crtcrtaifcr, liorn lrrank

Sinatru and Elvis to thc Rollinq Stoncs and Pearl -larn.

Froln a pirate ship frlinq its cannons and a Incdicval castle

cornplcle wilh knilllrts to an Egyptjrn pl,ramid rnd sphinx,

a Roman kingdonr rrrrl the Nelr' York skylinc, thc wide array of

fantasv sights js fot Lo bc missed along lhc L"as Vegas Strip.

Vjsjtor can enjoy holcl casiro replicas ofall typcs whilc they

ojo5 th' qrqi sp,"' I ol l4-\ou, 1.rrring. gourmet re5taUrdn .

and slar sludded flrlcrtairmef t if lhe many speclacular

-resorts lhat make Las Vcgas a uniquc vacation (lcstinatiglr.

lf all this \aere not cnough, downtown Las Vegas includes a

nrasrivr latticeuork canopl alorcl ftr,e Nock of Frernont

Strcct, Ihe canopy comes alivc with light and sound shews,

e.pcr r,rl11 during rptr i.rl cwnts and hulidal:.

South oF Las Vegas is lhe quiet. shady comnunity of

Bouldcr Cig and ncarby Hoover Dam, which was complctcd

in 19J5. lllerc's a visitors'centcr alld tri$*'of thc damsintc-

rior arc olfcred.

A rnagnihcent dam and najestic nrountain peaki Carvon

hikinq lrailr rnd lhe neon lights of tlrt lamr.rus Las Vega}

Stip. Variety and uniquc attractions arc wh€t thr fas V@"
Tenitor] is all about. Iin 1hc lvcst€rn Hcnrisphere. Bolh it a|ld Lak€ Mohave to



A tenitory without geographic boundzries, it couers tlte e tire state

uith tlte ancbnt and rich tures of Natiue American tribes,



A
-flmcrican nativc\ lived in a unique environment. Likewise, the Walker River Paiute Tribe owns most of

the north cnd of Walker Lake and the .town of Schurz.
:

Walkef Lake.also boasts grcat fishing, dramatic scenery

southern and northen'r Nevada. Prehistoric Lake Lahontan, and uncrowded camping spots.

an ancient inland sea that cov€red much of Nevada and The Nevada State Museua in Carson City has an

Utah, provided abundant fish, and the land was home extensive display of native Nevadan artifacts, as well

Sone of thc hc\t are lound at su(h pla(e\ a: Grimes

Point near Fallon, Hickison Summit ncar Austin and in

Valley of Firc State Park outside of Las Vegas.

on the springs of the Las Vegas Valley and the tributaries

of the Colorado River. The Shoshone and the Washo lived

Natiue Americans In Nortltern Neoada

Today, many Nevada lndians still occupy their native

from the area, as well as a full-size model of the home

of these ancjent peoplc.

As for the modcm Paiutet today they arc active in the

no wonder lhc Pyramid Lake Road has been desigrated

a National Scenic BJ,ryvay - the only bSvay in the

nation entirely within a tribal reservation.

It's a prime llshing spot, too- The Flramid Lake Visilor Cenler

at Sutcliffe can provide licenses, boal rcntals ari4 5up!ll.s.

The ccntcr also houses a fascinating muscum on thc naLural

history of the lake and the culture of the native people.

XXXI
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OURY, ARMSTRONG & CO.
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

6110 PLUMAS STFEET, RENq NEVADA 89509€060 . CrO2) 6899100

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Darrel R. Daines
State Controller

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of
the State of Nevada as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997. These general purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the State of Nevada. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Water Treatment Fund,
Water Transmission Fund or Power Marketing Fund (collectively, the "Colorado River
Commission"), the Housing Division Fund, or the Industrial Insurance Fund (State Industrial
Insurance System) which statements reflect 99.8 percent of the assets and 99.0 percent
of the operating revenues of the Enterprise Funds. We also did not audit the University
and Community College System, a discretely presented component unit. The statements
not audited by us were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Enterprise Funds and
the University and Community College System Funds is based solely on the reports of
such other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, such
general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position ofthe State of Nevada as ofJune 30, 1997, and the results
of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and non-expendable trust
funds for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.



The report of other auditors on the financial statements of the State Industrial
Insurance System (SllS), which statements reflect 62.6 percent and 83.5 percent,
respectively, of the assets and operating revenues of the Enterprise Funds, includes an
explanatory paragraph emphasizing matters pertaining to the financial situation of SllS.
Such auditor's report on the SllS financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1997

states:

"The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that
the System will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the [SllS] financial
statements, [Notes 2A and 15 to the accompanying General Purpose Financial Statements
of the State of Nevadal, the system has experienced income from underwriting activities
and positive cash flows from operations in recent years to partially offset cumulative losses
for years prior to 1994. The remainder of this accumulated deficit, which aggregates
$981 ,883,000 at June 30, 1997, will need to be recovered from future revenues, operating
efficiencies or from other sources to be provided to the System. Management has
implemented an action plan and initiated changes to applicable law and believes such
steps will continue to improve the financial condition of the System."

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general
purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and
account group financial statements and schedules listed in the foregoing table of contents
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general
purpose financial statements of the State of Nevada. Such additional information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the
general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

The statistical data listed in the statistical section of the foregoing table of
contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
general purpose financial statements of the State of Nevada. Such additional information
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general
purpose financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. rn

Reno, Nevada
December 12, 1997

K^FOURY. ARUSTRONG & CO

caarr.rao rtauc 
^ccqfi 
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Combined Balance Sheet
;'il'il;Ji;p;;,AccountGroups.-a$.9is9r-el:lv-P-'."^=1:g,c"mponentUnit

tive Totals for 1996 (Expressed in Thousandsl

Propriotaty
Capital
Prolects Enterpdle

I

I

I

I

I
?

I
t

I
I
I
I

I

I

1
t
I

I

I
I
I

)
I

I
I

I
I

J

nts {Note 3) $
non;xpendable trust (Note 3)

ties

fJutl,log" ,o o,n", *nds (Note 5A)
Rostncted sssets (Nofs 6):

Cash
Non-cash. ..

Loana re@ aDle
Defetred charEes and other assets
Land
struc'tures and imProvemenls
Fumitur€ and equipment
Accumulatsd dePreciataon
Construdion in Progress

438,144
-0-
-0-

't4,498
400,146

20,948
2

-G
436

$ 155,428
1.703

343,990
4,369

-0-
98,097

-0-

-0-

-0-

611,462

-n-

2'441

3,622
268,635

1,732

-0-

414,951

856.975

-G
39,270
73,699

-0-+
10,253

27

$ 27,906

-0-
22,447

212

-0-
5,446

-o-

-0-
45.757

112,944

-0-

118,463
10,253

1,040,483

-0-

40,294

-0-
-0-

406,323
8,956

-0-

-0-

$ 7,242
-0-

-u-

405,815

4,725
-0-

-n-
-0-
-G

425,672

102,879

-0-

-G
98

119,752
-0-
{}.

-0-
.G

103,978

1,528,183

-0-
206,915

1,546

1,608
-G

17,201
73,686

670,452
62,715

4,212
18,838

(29,2501
15,942

-0-
-0-

{r-

-0-

-u-

-0-
-0-

-0-

-O- -0-
-0. 45 757
-o- -0-

736 69
-O- -0-
-O- -0-
4.+
-O- -0-
-O- -0-

Oth.r deblts:-ifiiui-tiiuiir"ur" rvice tunds

Amount to be Paovl
Amount to be provl

-o- -G -o-
o- -o- -o-

^ 
-0-

-:---E'*i--tl4l-993--$---49,E29-

-n- -0-

s----nz'@- IJJJJ.$IL

-0-

Total a3sets and other debit3

iJcount- paYaote ano accruats

Defened rBvenuss

Total liabllitle6
Eautlv end other ctedils:
lnv€slTent in general fixed assets/pEnr
Contributed caPitel
Retdined e amings (deficit) :
Reserved (Note 12)
Unres€rved
Net unrealiz€d gain on equity secuntles

Fund balances:
R€sewedi

EncumbEnc€s and contracts
lnventory
Advancos
Balances forward
Other (Note '12)

UneseNed:
Designated (Note 12)
Undesignated

Total equity and othor credits

Total liablllills, equity, other cl€dlE

.0-

1,328,059 29,901

-$-1141993- -$.-{59.q29-

$ 197 $ 2'477 
'5O2^12-250 -u-

-o- -0-

995 11,050
100.934 -s

-o- -0-
-G 74
-0' 3,437
75 843
-O- -0-
-0- 876'383
+ 322
{- 6'223
-0. -0-
+. -0-
{r 94.830

114,451 3'470'664

-0-

90.604
(980,319)
125,462

89.086 -0-
-^- -0-

1.,a)78 (759.052)
-----:-$ 222,129- S-Jlls12-

-0-

-0-

-0-

19,192
.G
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-
-u-

-0-+
-0-

29 901

(9.360)

267,O70

!---e29,53?-
The notes to the linancial staiemsnF are an integral part of this stat€ment'

Special Dobt



Fund Typlr Fund Typog
Intemal Trustand Gonoral Generallong- Unlv6r3lty
Se lce Agency Flred A$ets Torm Obllgaoon3 Govemm€nt System

$ 36,990 $ 795,56s $+ 9,468
-G 9,448,76
-0- 1,527,081
-0- {-

1,932,801 $ 21,826 $ 1,954,627 $ 2,094,4339,,158 + 9,468 2,79811,833,9{4 265,222 12,099,166 9,717,777

13,014 3,999 17,013 17,7053.649 -0' 3,419 3,919

(R6tat dl

2,115
2't,480

334
-0-
-0-

858
-t.

.G
-0-

131
6,183

29,938
(24,236)

-0-

1,586
1,637

{F
364

2,313
-G
-0-
-0-

3,327
1,29

-s

153,648
210,307

-0
-G

-0-

-0. -0-
-G -0-
{- 4-

650 +.
3 82,923
-0- 581,155

1,109 203,252(709) -0-
{. 97,941

17,201 -G
119,i143 -0-
670.452 8.358
64.435 64;801
87,299 79,502

60,6,176 596.059
269,850 203,623(s4,195) (328,190)
113.883 37,891

-0- $
.0-
-0-
JL
-o.
-0-
-G
-0-
4-
-G
-0-
.0-

-{)'

.(r-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-G
-G
+

+$
-0-
-0-
-0.
.G
-G
-0-
-0-
-0-

+

't7,201
119,443
678,810
129,236
166,801

1,2U,235
473,473

(382,385)
151,774

30,889
109,495
559,973
158,987
156,949
975,605
478,627

(374,726)
257,854

.0. -0- -G 886,864 886,864 .O 886.864 419.390+ -0. -0- ,()5,815 405,815 -G 405.815 4i6.021-G -0- 615.385 _gLg$_ -0- 515.386 616.442s 74.05E -L!-?.!1943- -S-.j!!lg2zl- -L!.ilggpqg- -$-?9!99@- -L!.9998L -$_3l-@3892- -$-!.gz!9r€g-

$ 28,175 $ 616,997 $ -0- $4. -G .0-
-0- 1,527,081 -0-

-0- $ 3,313,.147 $ 22,979 $ 3,336,426 $ 3,661,191-0- 25,129-0- 1,527,081
4- 25,129 17,168

68.730 -S +. 456,688 -0- 456,688 398.677-0- + -0- 107J52 -0- 107.152 27.290-0- -G -0- -0- 341 U1 1.171-G -0- -0- 438 .O 438 580-0. -0- 61,732 67,482 18.453 85.935 80.20396 -0- -G 510,374 11,402 521,776 53/,7A79,393 -0- -0' 9,393 -0- 9.393 9.4A2
{- -0. 1,836,996 2,718,1U 69,777 2,787,881 2,2fi/65-0- .o. .G 3,649 -0- 3.649 3.91927 +. 5,004 12,548 -0. 12.548 17.76-0- {- 452 452 .0 452 334

-G 965,271 523,276
+, 9,965 -0-

-0- 1 ,527,0A'l 1,526,089

'l,488,547 1,373.406
9.965 9.96s

-0- 90.604 81.851.o- (949,721\ (1,387,094)
-G 125,462 68,245

-o- -0- 4- '1.918 1,918 .G .r.918 1.104
_?!9@_ _g _.1.9€_ _SE4_ 7.s22 _19l|999_ 371.672

38,696 2,468,575 -0- 1,908,065 9,150,529 130,874 9,281,403 8,908,138

.{l 5,271
{" 4-

-0-
4,7U

-0- {- 4
30,596 -O- 4.-G -0- +

+. 90,604-G (949,721)
-0- 't25,462

-0- 140,099
-o- 10,546
-G 3,649.o 299,174
+. 10,334,607

-G 3 -0-
-G 295 -0-
-G -O. -0-

-0- 9,262,491 -U

2,145 142,244
-0- 10,548
-0- 3,649-0- 299,174

386,628 10,721,235

123,4't7
't 0,993
3,919

266'071
8,653,096

-0. 1,074 -O- -0- 90.160 4- 90.i60 110.963
4'13.765 _9. -0- 532.699 47.628 580.32? 526:495

35.362 9,677,628 965,271 -0- 't1,652,517 959,677 12,612,194 9,8{1,327

-$--21p99- -$-!2.!19@9- -$-9g9AL -$-L9!t9p99- -$-39€q9e!g- -0-L999.99.L -01!.993.992_ -Ltgzlg€g_

(Uomor.ndu!! Only)
1990



combined statement of Revenues, Expenditures and changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with Comparative Totals for 1996
Exhibit 2,trt""""o ,n tor""no", -,r'-,ro ,Or,- ,

Genetal
Speqial Debt
Revenuc Service Projects

Fund Type6 (Memorandum only)
Expendable

Tlust

Gaming taxes, fees, licenses
Sales taxes
Intergovemmental
Other tax6
Licenses, fees and pemits
Sales and charges for serviceg
Interest, invesbnent gain
Other

Cunent:
General govemment
Health and social services
Education and support servlces
Law, juslice and public safety
Regulation of business
TransDortation
Recreation and resource development

lntergovemmental:
Education
Other

Capihl improvements
Debt seryice:

Principal
Interest, liscal charg€s
Bond issuance costs
Arbitrage payments

Total expenditures
Excess (deflciency) of revenu6

over expenditurG

@
Proceeds from capital leases
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Proceeds from sale of fxed assetg
operating transfers in (Note 5E)
Transfers trom componeot unn (Note 5D)
operating transfers out (Note 5E)
Trdnsfers lo component unit (Note 5D)
Proceeds ol refunding bonds
Paymert to retunded bond agent

Total other fnancing cources (uses)

Excess (deticiency) ot revenues and other
tinancing sources over oQendilures
and other tinancing uses

Fund balances, July 1

Fund balances, June 30

$ 5zts,5E5 $ 20,,[9,1 $
ss4,891 -O-

719,932 159,63E
2,1s,,515 65,555
E2,031 116,591
24,77A I 9,570
36,53'l ,19,625

29.73 14,655

$ -G $ 566,079 $ 566,8s4
4- 554.89i 502.960

6.702 908.E06 477,735
1E€'22. 77z$a 729,808

4 19tt,62. |85,375
537 44,8E5 41,458

23,873 113.061 91,595
1203 52 396 42.599

+. {- 73,259 7E,8s
4 + 77,A62 60,036
-G -G l,tg 27o

_o_ $
-0-

16,414
79,271

1

6,120
4
4

41

314

5 2242$6 6J2a 98,6n 6,475 227,537 3,211'3n3 3,03E,',141

-0- 101,565 75,770
161,656 1,090,069',l,061,930

1,220 26,60 24,019
196 276,275 256,01s
185 63,730 58,819
-0- 312,592 344,183

141 89,011 80,713

4. 605,639 574,138
6,584 67,173 39,106

-G ,19,298 27,932

52. 742 71,995
95 't 66 n,@1
{- -S l,tg

138 -S 14 -G -G 152 -G

r.e69.807 594,385 149,759 49,298 169,985 2,833'234 2,641,416

372,679 41,743 (51,082) (42,823l, s7,552 37E,059 3s7,04a

56,2O0 45,'l 65 -G
889,956 38,457 -0-
24,575 665 -0-

192,392 83,697 -0-

35,209 28,336 -0-
-G 312,592 4-

72,328 16,539 4

s4p'925 55,714 4 4
$,Zn 12,312 {! -{)-

+ -G -G '19,29E

1,817 -G -G

-0-
-0-

4-

't,318
6,030

51,972
247

(129,819)
(313,391)

.G
-o-

30 41,185
-0- 3,135
-G 522,685
-0- 9l

300 237,fi9

1,19

239,531
208

16t,EOo
233

(156,971)
(ffi,6141

-o-
-0-

475,ffi
18 -O- -0-

92,455 53,431 39,351
.G?so4

(96,67e) (1 1) (1 ,211\ (6,2/0) (23,960)
(1,305) (r73) (36,072) 4 (350,94'r)

1 9,990 + -0- {- I 9,9!n
(19.990)-o44(19,sSO)

(383.570) 471,76 53,567 43,253 (5,940) 179,056 (21,664)

(10,E91) s13,,189 2,45 ,130 51.612 557,125 335,384

2n,961 814,570 27,416 107,84 364,093 1,591,688 1,2s6,504

$ 267,070 $'t,328,059 $ 29,901 $ 108,278 $ 415,705 $ 2,1'19,013 $ 1'591'888:-

Govemm€ntal Fund TYPeE

The notes to the financlal statemenls are an integral pai of this statement



Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1997
(Expressed in Thousands) 

rotrtr 
Exhtbit 3

Sp€clal Ravanua Fundr (Mamorandun Onlyl

-;---E--Budgei AcAd Vrdrncg Budgct Actud Vananco Budgat Acturl Vartrnce

O{rar'l nen c I n g so urcat :
Proc€eds from sale of bonds
Tran8b.r lrom other funds
Rsv€rgions from olh€r fundt
Totrl rource6

Eryt@Eti@
Fund balanc€s, Juiy 1 $
Pdor p€riod adjuslrnent
Ravenues:

56163 tiaxes

Gamlng taxes, fees, hcens€s
F€deral
Odter l,ares
Saleb, chaBes for sewiGs
Lic€n3gs. fees and oermits
Interest
Other

-G $ 349,s73 $ 349.573 $
-0- l17,70s) 117,705)

1,038 -0- -0-
(3,894) 21,32s 20,492

047,880) 176,941 158,785
6,020 251,9.t6 20e,69,{

l4,870t 2s.870 21,223
(14,951) S6,534 '116,671

(478) 76,165 78,e82
(23,7711 16,286 16,050

$ 750,301 $ -0-
(17,705) -0-

504,375 1.038
s36,9S8 (4,72n
74e,316 (r6t,039)
607,645 22,768
90,741 (9,317)

268,561 5,186
107,268 2,039
175,312 174,007')

10,721 (60,000)
177,5X 2A,795

88,143 33,620
48,172 61,962

972,120 137,930
989,615 322,709
80,710 24,411

268,837 56,373
425,12e 178,805

4,744 1,162

96,667 301

241,940 3,864
1,001 (1,091)

400,72A
-0-

503,337
520.400
775,441
332,931

74,1A7
166,841
29,064

233,O32

-0-
51,304

400,724
-0-

504,375
518,506
627,561
338,951
69,518

151,890
28,586

159,262

51,304

-0- s
-0-

-0-
(833)

(20,1s9)
16,744
(4,647)
20,137

2,517
(236)

750,301
(17,705)

503,337
541,725
054,3S5
58{,877
100,057
243,375
105,229
249,318

-G 70,721 10,721 (60,000) 70,721
-& 97,427 12e,222 28,795 148,731

-0- 2.146 2.148 -G. .0" -0- 2.146 2.118
3,0€7,2€5 @!39__999j99t 1,167,086 1,140,408 _0ggl_a4g!l_ 4.ooo,234 (254,1171

Exp en cllturos, eoc um bd nc at :
ConsUftJllonal agencies
Financ€ and adminisfation
Educ€tion
Human ServlPs
Commerce and induslry
Public aafev
Infraslructure
Speclal puapose agencjes

Olhat llnanclrrg use!;
D€bt s€rvic€ transfers
Trgnslbrs to other funds
Refunds
ReveEions to other funds

Prgl&d rwqrtons
Totll ula3

Fund bdances, June 30
(Not 2C)

70,s24 41,261 26,683 50,839 43,882 6,957
93,165 34,993 58,172 16,969 13,'179 3,790

1,053,220 915,401 137,810 56,S30 56,719 111
1,270,470 956,25€ 311,211 41,854 33.350 8,495

71,116 48,848 22,26A 12,011 37,8€8 4,14X
225,394 189,625 35,709 99.E16 75,212 20,604
126,094 73,058 s3,030 477,840 352,071 125,769

5,926 1,764 1,182 -0- -0- -0-

121,703
110,134

1,110,050
1,312,321

113,127
325,210
603,934

5,S26

-0- -0, -0- 96,969
206,646 201,396 5,250 5S,198

+ 1,091 (1.091) -G
-G 393 (303) -G

(115,1321 4- (115.132) -G.

96,667
10,58,{

1,276

301 9e,969
18,514 265,U4

{- -0-
(1,2781 -0- (1671)1,871

3,007,823 2,470,086 537,7# _W__!.gf4g_ 187,506 3,950,148 
'224905 

725,242

g___29419_ -9_9!919_ $ 3o1,2e7 . E 224:7u l__!91!99_ l_l99?9_ -9_99139!_ l___?5,339_ V:!2!_

The nob! to lhe financial 3ialom€nts ere an intag.al porl ot lhis siaiement

Gena||l Fund



combined statement of Revenues, Expenses and changes in Fund Equity/Balances

All Proprietary Fund Types and Similar Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with Comparative Totals for 1996

Propdetary Fund TYPes (Memorandum OnlY)

EnterprEe
lntemal
Servlc€

€xpendable
Trust

r996
(R6tated)

Net premium income
Sales
Charges tor seNic€s
Rental income
Interest, dividends
Other

Total opsratlng rovenues

Salarigs snd benefits
Operating
Claims exp€nse
Inter€st on bonds Payable
Materials or supplies used
Service6' fees
Deprsciation
Insuran@ pr€mlums
Administrativs expense
lnvsslrnent losses

Total opgrating oxponses

Operating income (loss)

Interest income
Investment gains
Inlergst expense
Federal grants/intergovernmental
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Other

Total nonopqrating lgvenugs (expenses)

Income (loss) before operating transfers

@
Operating transfers in (Note 5E)
Op€rating transfe6 out (Note 5E)

Net income (loss)

Fund equity(defi citybalances, July 1

Transfer of deficit to other government
Changes In unrealized gains

Fund equity(dofrcltybalances, June 30

583,805 '!41,831 8,112 733,744

472,670
29,17 4

1,119
136

60,935
19,771

95,943 $
4,806

30,175
9,627

1,280

-u-

4,133

558,613
33,980
31,294

64,914
25,1U

549,2U
54,961
29,437

9,4E0
56,444
20,7 50

720,356

43,214
65,245
78,705
48,761

1,636

3,493
-u-

6,664

18,868
20,994
68,353

1,798

3,304

-0-

62,082
86,239

147,058
48,761
3lU
6,797

32,277
6,664

-0-

59,924
88,025

169,995
43,156

4,911
1,433

10,061
33,264
5,325

-0-
-0-

249.283 145,594 394,477 4't 6,094

33/.,522 (3,763) a,112 338,871 304,262

55,568
58,228

(1241

(1)

1,70,4
-0-

(210)
(106)

(1s)

-0-

-0-

57,272
5a,228

(334)
(44)
(20)
(ss)

115,M3

46,382
32,U3
(6,634)

2,364

113,574

448,196

447,904

(1 ,264,173)

57,217

$ (759,052)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

1,369 75,428

(2s2)

(2,394) a112

1,827 150
(1,211) (3,979)

(1,778)

37 ,140

453,914 379,690

1,977 641
(5,482) (5,426)

4,283

56,982

450,409

(1, r70,051)

-0-
57,217

374,905

(1,615,414)

54,576
15,882

0
0

0
0

35,362 $ 61,265 $ (662,425) $ (1,170,051)

10



Combined Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
Pension Trust Fund Type

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with Comparative Totats for 1996

1997
1996

(Restated)

471,707Retirement contributions
lnvestment income:
Inierest, dividends
Investment gains
Othe.

Less: Inveslmentexpense

Net investment income

Other income

Total additions

Benefit payments
Refunds
Administrative expense

Total deductlons

Net increase

Operating transfer out (Nole 5E)

Net assets held in trust for pension benelits, July 1(Reslated)

Net asset8 held In trust for pgnsion bsn€frts, June 30

The notes to the fnencial stalEmgnts are an integral parl ol this statement.

5'r8,076

396,018
756,561
228,079

300,842
4U,694
196,267

1,380,659
(102,384)

1,278,276

981,803
(104,964)

876,839

1,827 't,790

1,798,179

300,430
8,952
3,149

267,850
8,875
2,898

312,531 279,623

1,485,648

(44)

7,715,054

1,070,713

(441

6,6i14,386

9,200,658 7,715,0$

11





Combined Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Funds

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with Comparative Totals for 1996

Cash flow! trom op€r.tlng activltles
Cash recelved from customers, other govemments
Cash receiv€d from other funds
Cash received fiom component unit
Cash receiwd ttom modgage loans
Cash paid to suppliers, other govemments' beneficiades
Cash paid to employees for servic€s
Cash oaid to olh€r funds
Cash gaid lo @mPonenl unit
Purchase of mortgage loans

Net c€sh provided by (used for) operating aclivities

Crrh flowt from noncapital linancing actlvltlca
Proc€eds f.om sale of bonds
Grants, transfers, advances received
Retirement of bonds and notes
lnterest paymenls on bonds
Operaling/equity transfers oul
Payments for prepaid po,r,,er

Transf€rs to oth€r govemment
Other cash used for noncapital financing aclivities

Net cash used for noncapital financing ac{ivities

Calh flow! t,om capltrl and Flated financlng activitie!
Pro@eds from sale of bonds and equipmenl, other fnancing
Acquisllion of property, plant, equipment
Retilement of bonds/noles/mongages
Interesl paid on obligations
Olhe. cash used tor capital fnancing ac{ivit:es

Net cash used fo. capital financing aclit ities

Cr3h fows fton Inwltlng .ctlvltles
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
InteresUdividends on investmenls

Net cash provided by (used for) investing ac{ivities

Nel increase (decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents, JulY '1

Cash 8nd cash equivalenls, June 30

Rgconclllatlon of ca!h and cash equivalenis to the balance lhoot
Cash and pooled inveslments from the balance sheet

Cash, pooled investm€nts-nonexpendable trusl tunds
Restricted asssts - cash from the balance sheet
Cash and cash gquivalents al end ofyear

Roconclllatlon ot opoEtlng Incomo to net
calh provldod by opor.ting aclivitieg

Operaling income (loss)

Adlustngnt! lo reconcllo oPoiatlng income to
ngt c.sh Drovldod by opor.ting acdvitios

tlepr€ciation
lncome on investments
Interest on bonds Payable
InareasE in loana rE@ivable and real estate owned

Decrease (increase) in accrued re@ivables
Decrease (incresse) in inventory, deferred charges and olher assets

Increase (decrease) in accrued payables, other liabilities
Other adjustmEnts

Total adjuslmenls

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Nonc!.h Inveltlng, capltal and linanclng activitlos
Properly leased, accrued or acquired
Inleaesvdlvidends on investments accrued

Other non-cash activities

Propdotary Fund Typet
srpendablo (illemor!ndum Only)

Entgrprbe Ssrvic€ Trust 't99? 1996

$ 500.906 $ 11,269 $ 4,050 $ 516,225 $ 516,167
7,171 108,340

43 21,489
-0- 115,51l 123,227

(173,510) 4- -0- (173,510) (107,4E9)

123,619 (5,117) 4,050 122,752 16',1'048

180,595 -0- -0- 180,595 182,147

3,251 440 44 3,738 7,063

(3,265) (2,261) (3,871) (9,397) (37'639)

7,670 119,,140

11E,1721 (32,3521
(19,971) (125.008)

(334) (6,67e)(124\ (210) -0-
(5,273) -G -0- (5,273\ (4,019)

(31,461) (4,619) -0- (36,080) (48,61E)

101,030
(266,676) (117,076)
(43,133) (18,554)

-0- (383,752) (385,098)

(2,012') (10,340) -G 112,3521-0- (245) -0, \215\

7,593 77

05,676) (2,4s6)
(17,981) (1,990)

-0- 21,532 22.058
-0- -0- 101,030 9,1,310

-G (61,687) (60,367)
(41,752\

(8)

-0-

2,359,062
(2,779,665)

-0- 14.000 2.373,062 2,111,006
-0- (11,s19) (2.791,t841 (2.184,304)

66,101 1,746 4,010 71,857 70'681

(354,502) 1,746 6,491 (346,26s) (2,617]-

(265,409) (10,251) 6,670 (26E,990) 72,174

3E6,588 47,241 2,798 436,627 364'453

$ 121,179 $ 36,990 $ 9,468 $ 167,637 $ 436'627

-: 

:
$ 103.978 $ 36.990 $ -0- $ 140,968 $ 402,940

-0- -0- 9,466 9,468 2,798

17,201 -0- -0- 17.201 30,869

T_iZTTTE_T.___.96_T____E?6f T-16-76-f, T.--36-;62-

--
$ 33,1,522 $ (3.765) $ 8,112 $ 338,069 $ 304'262

3,,193 3,304 -0- 6,797 10.061
(15,817) -G -0- (15,817) (10,773)
1E.761 -0- -0- ,18.761 43"156

(120,640) -O- 4- (120,640) \5?,2491
16,301 (6,297) (83) 9,921 3'185
(35,595) (363) -0- (35,958) 3'811

(1'f6,,{01) 1,999 -0- 1114,402) 1144,787\
9,19s 5 (3,979) 5,221 4'381

rrrn 7n1\ rl 3521 11n62\ t216.117t (113.2141

s 123,E19 $ (5,117) $ 4,050 $ 122,752 $ 161'048

--:::

$ 2,838
(386,589)

608

-o- $ 237 $ -o- $ 237
-0- -0- -0- -0-
-0- 30 -0- 30

The notes to the llnancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 13



Combined Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
University and Community College System

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1997 with ComDarative Totals for 1996
(ExW ssed in Tho usancl s )

Curent Operating Funds

General Operating
Unrestricted Restricted

Tolal
Auxiliary current

Enterprlces Operating

@
Cunent fund revenues
Federal grants and contrdcls, restricted
Private gins, grants and contractg, restricted
Estate taxes
Inv6tment income, reslricted
lr{ercsi on loans recei\€ble
Sludent fees
Retirement of indebtedness
Realized gain on investmenfg, net
Eee.ded for plant facilities, Includlng $22,421
charged to cunent funds expendltures

Proceeds from notes parable
Retirement of capital leaae obligations
Olher sources

Total revenuea and other additions

Educational and general expenditurG
Audliary enlerprisF expendltures
lndirect costs recovered
Loan adminislration and collection costs
Loan cancellations, write-ofts and provision for bad debts
Ereended tor plant facilitiG, including
noncapitalized er0enditures ot $6,7/E

OeDreciation
Retirement of indebtedness
Interest on indebtednBs
Disposal ot Dlant assets
Proceeds of bonds and not6 pa)€ble
Distribution of estate taxes
Obligations under capital leasea
Other deductions

Total expenditulss and other deductions

PrinciDal and interest
Student loan matching

Net transfers (voluntary)

Transfers from primary govemment (Noie 5D)
Transfers to primary govemment (Note 5D)

Total transler6

Net increas€ (decrease) for the year

Fund balanc6, July'1

Fund balancec, June 30

The notes to the tinanclal statements are an integral part of lhis shtement.

14€,246
-u-

-G

-0-
-G

138,286
-0-

4
-G
+
4
4.
{t

58,421 $

-0-
-{r
4
+
+
+.
+.

3,14,993

+
4
+
+.
+
4-

-0-

-G
-0-

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

14a,246 138,286 58,421 344,993

405,374
-G
-0-
-lr-
.G

124,142

14,512
-0-

529,5't 6
47,907
14,512

-0-
-0-

.G

-0-
-0-
-0-

47 9u7

.0-
-0-

-G

-0-

+
-{J-

-(L
-0-

4
+

-0-
-0-

M,374 138,654 47,907 591,935

(487)
(lt)

(1s6)

243,357
(s37)

242,166

(3,901)

(1,5s5)

+
+

(1,144) (s,496)

(so)

(604)

+.

(4,e28)
(11)

(2,3ss)

243,357
(s37)

(14,922) (1,512) s,018 (11,416)

,16,9|0 18,359 12,767 78,036

$ 31,988 $ 16,847 $ 17,785 $ 66,620

14



Exhtbtt 7

Nonopenting Funds
Planl

Unexpended Relilcmenl ot lnvesfrnent combined
Plant lndebtednesc in Plant Planl

Totals
Studel

Loan Endovrnent

144
14E

44
125

-0-
-0-

-G$
250
624

| 0,4ti3
24

16,137

-G$
76

4,24

17,393

-0_ $

a 1a'1 <? o<7

-0-

3,f4,9!13 $ 320,137
12,627 695
15,784 8,706
10,483 i5,648

7A2 936
125 149

6,371 5,757
23,399 3,/169

16,137 7,183

67,795 73,41
17,393 5,135

-0- -0-

49sln
39,108
15,&

€
46

56,280
36,U2

3,zl5t)
4,479
8,2n

1,447

1996

_o_ $
12,233
15,O12

,190

23,399
-G

-0- 25,516 28,180 44,095

| 31 114,121 168,209 544,069 4E5,311

69 2,595

-0-
-0-

90
za

23 399
4 316

.0-

408

-0-

54,,194
-0-
-G
-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

+.
-o-
.G
+.

-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

225

-0-
-0-
+
25

,o8

4
-G.
-(}
-(L
{-

-0- 529,5'16
4- 47,W7
-0- 14,512
-0- 25
-O- ,mB

-0-
37,396

-o-
-0-

3,426
17,393

54,494
37,396
23,399

4,316
3,426

't 7,393
-0-

5449
37,396
zi,3w

4,316
3,46

17,393
225

90
451

90
,f51

225 54.i194 2E,123 58,3zlt] 1,10,965 733,558 670,134

11

112

(12,090)

(8,290)

107,584
-u-

17,019

'10,676

4,929

't 07,584
(230)

0
0

a7
0
0

-0- -0-

-0- -0-

350,941 m6,614
-o- (s37) (233)

123 87 A7,2O4 27,655 (230) 114,669 3s0,4O5 265,381

22O 30,199 86,667 (E7l 160,916 81,55855,52(3 141 ,913

9,939 145,211 94,52E 3,315 /6,7,732 565,575 79A,761 717,NJ

$ 10,159 $ 175,410 $181,l9s $ 3,018 $ 523,275 $ 707,'188 $ 959,67l $ 798,761

t5



Combined Statement of Current Operating Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes
University and Community College System

For the Fiscal Year Encled June 30, 1997 with Compantive Totals tor 1996
(Expressed in Thousands) Exhibit I

,r",nolo,lotl"'n on,r,

Unro3tricted Restrlcted 1997

Tuition and fees
Federal grantrs and contracls
Slate grants and conlrac'ts
Local grants and contracts
Private gifrs, grants and contracts
Endowment income
Investment income
Sales and servic€s of sducational departments
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises
Realized gain on investments
Other sources

Total r€Yenuos

Educational and genenl:
lnstruclion
Research
Public seNice
Academic suppgrt
Institutional support
Student services
Operation and maintenance of plant

ScholarshiDs and iellowshiDs

Total educalional snd general expenditures

Auxiliary enteryrises:
Expenditures tor food, housing and other

auxiliary services
Mandatory transfers:

PrinciDal and interest
Student loan matching

Total expendltur€3 and mandatory transf€rs

Excess of restric,ted rgceiots over translers to rev€nue
Transfers from primary government
Transfers to primary govemment

Total other tnnefels and addidons (deductlons)

Net decrsass In tund balances

The notes lo lhe finsncial statements are an integral part ofthis statement.

206,707 124,142 330,849

91,297 $
10,552

893
293

7,391
177

7,688
29,769
55,670

3
2,974

-0- $
72,874
14,551

8,1 'r 4
24,223

2,523
22

91,297
43,426
15,444
8,407

31,614
2,700
7 ,710

55,670

3,073

8't,588
81,925
17,164
6,917

30,987
2,492
7 ?t2

27,016
40,349

301,528

183,638
1s,683
9,886

49,724
5E,763
37,327
40,522

9,831

r9,6'14
47,439
32,300

3,330
2,086

166
12,575

203,252
63,122
42,186
53,054
60,849
43,959
40,688
22,406

1a2,476
63,943
46,165
49,',t 31

58,555
40,144
37.101
21,609

405,374

47,907

4,388
11

39,108

3,285
18

124,142 529,516 499,124

-0- 47,907

540 4,928
-0- 11

457,680 124,682 582,362 541,535

(1,751)

243,357
(s37)

(368)
243,357

(537)

(2,311\
3,145

224,476
(233)

(604)
(368)

-0-
-0-

241,069 19721 240,097

(9,904) $ (1,512) $ (11,416) $ (14,930)

225,O77

t6



Notes to Flnancial Statoments
For the Fiscal Ycar Ended June 30, 1997

A. Reporting Entity
The accompanying financial stiatementrs of the State of
Nevada (the State) have been prepared in confiormity
with generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), except as noted below. As requhed by
generally accepted accounting principles, these fi nancial
statements present the State and its component units,
entities for which the State is crnsidered to be financially
accountable. The discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the combined financial
stiatements to emphasize it is legally separate from the
State. The component unit has a June 30 year end.

Blended Component Units: The Public Emolovees'
Retirement Svstem (PERS) and the Leoislators'
Retirement Svstem (LRS) are administered by a seven-
member board appointed by the Govemor. Although
PERS and LRS are legally separate from the State, the
State Legislature retains certain significant governing
powers. Therefore, PERS and LRS are reported as if
they were part of the primary govemment under the
provisions of GASB Stiatement No. 14.

Discretely Pr6ented Component Unit: The Universitv
and Communiv Colleoe Svstem of Nevada (University
System) is governed by a Board of Regents elected by
the voters. However, the University System is fiscally
dependent upon the State because of appropnations
from the State Legislature, the Legislative approval of the
budget for those appropriations, the levying of taxes, if
necessary, and the issuance of debt to support the
University System. The financial stiatements of the
University System have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants'
Audit Guide, Audits of Co eges and Unive6ifies, and the
National Association of Coll€e and University Business
Officers' publication College and University 8us,'ness
Administration: Administrative Seryice.

Comolete financial statements for each of the individual
component units may be obtained at that entity's
administrative offices:

Public Employees' Retirement System
Carson Cily, Nv

Legi sl ators' Retire ment System
Carson City, NV

Univedty and Communv College Sysiem of tlevada
Reno- NV

Related OEanizations: The Governor is responsible
for appointing the membeG of many occupational
licensing boards. The State's accountability fior these
boards does not extend beyond making the appointments
and thus these boards are excluded ftom this reDort. The
State does not exercise financial or administrative control
over the excluded occupational licensing boards.

B. Basis of Presentataon
The accounts of the State are organized on the basis of
funds or account groups, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund
are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, equity,
revenues and expenditures or expenses. The various
funds are grouped by type in the financial statements.
The following fund types and account groups are used by
the State:

Governmental Fund Types:
General Fund - The General Fund is the general
operating fund of the State. All general tiax revenues,
other receipts, and other financing sources that are
not allocated by law or contractual agreement to
another fund are accounted for in this fund. Paid
from the fund are the general operating expenditures,
intergovemmental expenditures, debt service and
other tinancing uses that are not paid through other
funds.

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are
used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trusts or major
capilal projects) requiring separate accounting
because of legal or regulatory provisions or
administrative action.

Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to
account for the payment of principal, interest and
related expenditures on long-term general and
special obligation bonds, other than bonds payable
from the operations of enterprise funds.

Caoital Proiects Funds - Capital projects funds are
used to account for financial resources segregated
for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities.
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Proprletary Fund Types:
Enterorise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to
account for operations that provide services to
citizens, financed primarily by user charges for the
provision of these services; and activities where the
periodic measurement of net income is considered
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,

management control, accountability or other
purposes.

lnternal Service Funds - Internal service funds are
used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department to other departments of
the State or to other governmental units on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types:
Trust Funds - Trust funds are used to account for
assets held in trust by the State in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, other governmenfal

units and other funds, There are three types of trust
tunds:

Expendable Trust Funds - Both the principal and
revenues eamed on that principal may be

expended for purposes designated by the trust
agreement.

Nonexoendable Trust Funds - The principal of
the trust fund must be Dreserved intact.

Pension Trust Funds - These funds are used to
account for the activities of a State-administered
multiple-employer Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) and a single-employer retirement
system for State legislators (LRS).

Aoencv Funds - Agency funds are used to account
for assets held by the state as custodian.

Account Groups:
General Fixed Assets Account Grouo - This account
group is established to account for all fixed assets of
the State, other than those accounted for in

enterprise funds, internal service funds and trust
funds.

This aicount group is established to account for all
long{erm obligations of the State, except those

required to be paid from the operations of proprietary
fund types, pension trust funds, and component unit.

Component Unit:
The accounts ofthe University System are organized
as follows:

Current Ooeratino Funds - Current Operating Funds
are used to account for unrestricted funds, over
which the governing board retains full control in

achieving the institution's purposes and restricted
funds, which may be utilized only according to
extemally restricted purposes.

Fiduciarv Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to
account for assets held by student loan and
endowment funds in which the institution acts in a
fiduciary capacity.

Plant Funds - Plant funds are used to account for
institutional property acquisition, renewal, replace-
ment, debt service and investment,

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of
Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied
to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All
governmental funds and expendable trust funds are
accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only
current assets and current liabilities generally are
included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of
these funds present increases, that is, revenues and
other financing sources, and decreases, that is,

expenditures and other financing uses, in net current
assets.

All proprietary funds, nonexpendable trust funds and
oension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. Wth this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with operating these funds are included on the
balance sheet. Fund equity, that is, net assets, is

segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings
components. Proprietary fund type operating statements
present increases, such as revenues; and decreases,
such as exoenses. in net assets

GASB Statement No.20 requires proprietary funds to
apply all applicable GASB pronouncements and, unless
they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements,
all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles
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Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins
issued on or before November 30. 1989. As oermitted
by the Statement, the State has elected not to apply
FASB oronouncements issued after that date.

The financial statements are prepared on the modified
accrual basis for governmental fund types, expendable
trust funds and agency funds; and on lhe accrual basis
for proprietary fund types, nonexpendable trust funds,
pension trust funds and the University System.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual, that is, when
they become both measurable and available,
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can
be determined and 'available" means collectible within
the cunent period or soon thereafter.

The State considers revenues as available if they are
collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
Principal and interest on general long{erm debt are
recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for
payments to be made early in the following year. Those
revenues susceptible to accrual are gaming revenues,
sales taxes, other taxes as described in Note 13, interest
revenue and charges for services. Fines and permit

revenues are not susceptible to accrual because they are
generally not measurable until received in cash.

The State reoorts deferred revenue on its combined
balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a potential

revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and
"available" criteria for recognition in the current period.

Deferred revenues also arise when resources are
received by the State before it has a legal claam to them,
as when grant monies are received before the incurrence
of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when
both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the
State has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for
deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance
sheet and revenue is recognized.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred

D. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity
Cash and Pooled lnvestments - The State Treasurer
manages a cash pool where all temporary surplus cash is

invested. These investments are reoorted on the
combined balance sheet as equity in pooled inveslments.
Earnings from these pooled investments are credited to
the General Fund and to certain other funds which have
specific statutory authority to receive a prorated share
based on weekly cash balances. No entry is made to
reduce the cash balance in each fund since the cash
management pool has the same general characteristics
as demand deoosit accounts, Also included in this
account is cash held by departments in pefty cash funds
and in bank accounts outside the Treasurer's cash
management pool.

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as bank
accounts, petty cash, money market demand accounts
and certificates of deposits with original maturities of
three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are
reoorted in the combined statement of cash flows for
proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds.
Cash equivalents are reported in the combined balance
sheet as "cash and pooled investments" and "restricted
assets, cash."

lnvestments - Bonds, U.S. Government obligations and
govemment guaranteed mortgage notes are stated at
original cost, adiusted where appropriate for bond
oremiums or discounts. exceot as noted below.
Premiums or discounts are amortized over the life of the
issue using the straight-line method. The net amortization
of premium and accretion of discount of those
investments using straight-line amortization is not
materially different from use of the effective-interest
method. Interest income is adiusted by amortization of
oremium and accretion of discount. Bonds are normally
held until maturity dates to improve yields. The cost of
bonds and mortgages sold is determined by specific
identiflcation.

Marketable equity securities are stated at cost, except as
noted below. Premium income on options written is
deferred and recognized upon expiration, exercise or
sale. The cost of marketable equity securities sold is

determined on the average cost method. Dividend
income on marketable equity securities is recorded as of
the ex-dividend date.

fnvestments of $145,743,207 in the Deferred
Compensation Fund, an agency fund, are stated at
market value.

Investment securities held by the State Industrial
Insurance System (SllS) are reported at market value.
Unrealized gains and losses on securities are reported as
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a separate component of equity. Realized gains or
losses are recognized as income upon the maturity or
disoosition of the investment or when a decline in market
value is considered other than temporary.

Plan investments in the Public Employees' Retirement
System and the Legislators' Retirement System, pension
trust funds, are stated at fair value. Fair value for short-
term investments, corporate bonds, and mortgage-
backed securities is derived from end-ofday pricing data
obtained from nationally recognized data vendors. Equity
securities traded on a national or international exchange
are valued at the last reported sale price of the day.
International securities prices incorporate end-of-day
exchange rates. The fair value of real estate investment
is based on interim valuations and MAI (Member,
Appraisal Institute) independent appraisals. There is no
concentration of 5% or more of the olans' net investments
in securities of a single organization.

During fiscal year 1997, PERS and LRS entered inlo
certain derivative transactions. These included options
related to marketable equity securities, asset-backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations related
to fixed income securities. In addition, PERS' and LRS'
investments in commingled funds include derivative
instruments such as forward rate contracts,
futures contracts, currency swaps, and interbank
currency foMard contracts.

These transactions are designed to stabilize investment
cash flows, to enhance retum on investment of cash and
to manage market risks associated with the underlying
securities. They may also reduce PERS' and LRS'
exposure to changes in stock prices, interest rates and
currency exchange rates. PERS' and LRS' management
believe that there are no significant credit or legal risks
associated with these transactions because of the
credibility of investment counsel, counter parties and the
ready marketability for these types of instruments.

Receivables - The composition of receivables at June 30,
1997, is presented in Note 4. Most licenses, fees,
permits and similar revenues are not susceptible to
accrual, and are recognized on a cash basis.
Receivables in proprietary fund types have arisen in the
ordinary course of business. Accounts receivable for
SllS are net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.
No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been
established in any other fund, as collection history has
been excellent.

Property taxes are levied July 1 on property values
assessed by the prior January 1 . Property tax billings are
payable in quarterly installments on the third Monday in
August and the first Monday in October, January and
March, after which time the bill is delinouent-

Interfund Transactions - The State has three types of
interfund transactions:

1) Services rendered and employee benefit
contributions are accounted for as revenues,
expenditures/expenses in the funds involved.

2) Operating appropriations/subsidies are
accounted for as operating transfers in the funds
involved.

3) Equity contributions are accounted for as equity
transfers (additions to or deductions from
beginning governmental fund balances or
proprietary fund contributed capital).

Operating transfers and due to/from other funds are
oresented in Note 5.

lnventories - Inventories are stated at cost on the first-in,
first-out basis. Inventory in the State Highway Fund, a
special revenue fund, consists of expendable supplies
held for consumotion. The cost is recorded as an
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are
consumed. The reserve for inventory of supplies is equal
to the amount of inventory of supplies and recognizes
that a portion of the fund balance is not available for
expenditure on a budgetary basls.

Advances to Other Funds - Long-term interfund
advances are recorded by the advancing fund as a
receivable and as a reserve to maintain the accountability
and to disclose properly the amount available for
appropriation (unreserved fund balance). Repayments
are credited to the receivable and corresponding
reductions are made in the reserve. A summary of
interfund advances al June 30, 1997, is presented in
Note 5.

Fixed Assets and Deoreciation - An inventory of State-
owned land, buildings and equipment was developed in
1985. All fixed assets are stiated at historical cost or
estimated historical cost, based on acquisition of
comparable property or agency records, if actual
historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets
are stated at appraised fair market value at the ttme of
donation or estimated fair market value at time of
donation, based on acquisition of comparable property, if
appraised fair market value is not available. Interest
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during construction has not been capitalized on general

fixed assets. Certain public domain fixed assets
(including highways, bridges, highway lands and rights-
of-way) are not capitalized. No depreciation is provided

on general fixed assets.

Enterprise fund, internal service fund and pension trust
fund fixed assets are stated at cost which includes net
capitalized interest. They are depreciated principally on a
straight-line basis over estimated useful lives ranging
from 5 to 40 years for structures and improvements and 2

to 30 years for furniture and equipment.

In the University System, where current operating funds
are used to finance plant assets, those amounts are
accounted for as (1) expenditures, in the case of normal

acquisition and/or replacement of movable equipment
and library books; (2) mandatory transfers, in the case of
required provisions for debt amortization and interest,
and for equipment renewal and replacement; and (3) as
voluntary transfers for all other cases, Property, buildings
and equipment are stated at cost at the date of
acquisition or fair market value at date of donation in the
case of gifrs, less accumulated depreciation computed on

a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of 40
years for buildings, 15 years for land improvements and 3

to 18 years for library books, machinery and equipment

Comoensated Absences - Compensated absences are

accounted for in accordance with GASB Statement No.

16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, which
requires that a liability for compensated absences relating

to services already rendered and that are not contingent
on a specified event be accrued as employees earn the
rights to the benefits. Compensated absences relating to
future services or that are contingent on a specified event
will be accounted fior in the period those services are
rendered or those events take place. Proprietary fund

types and pension trust funds report accrued
compensated absences as liabilities in the aPpropriate
funds. Governmental funds report compensated
absences expected to be liquidated with expendable

available financial resources as an expenditure and a

tund liability. Amounts not expected to be liquidated with

expendable available financial resources are reporled in

the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group

Deferred Revenues - Deferred revenues in the General
Fund consist primarily of food stamp coupons and

refundable gaming taxes and fees.

Lono-Term Obliqations - The State records long-term
debt of governmental funds at face value in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Certain other
governmental fund obligations are also recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Long-
term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary
funds and pension trust funds are recorded as liabilities in

the appropriate funds.

Fund Equitv - Fund equity in the governmental fund types
and fiducaary fund types consists of reserved fund
balances, and unreserved, designated and undesignated
fund balances. Fund equity in lhe proprietary fund types
consists of contributed capital, reserved retained
earnings, unreserved retained earnings and net
unrealized gain on equity securities. The nature of
reserved and designated fund balances is explained
below:

"Encumbrances and contracts" indicates assets required
to meet future payment obligations.

"lnventory" indicates consumable supplies held in stock
by governmental fund types and expendable trust funds.

"Advances" indicates assets, which have been advanced
to other funds on a long{erm basis.

"Balances forward" indicates unexpended funds brought
forward to the next year, which are legally reskicted for
general government; health and social services;
education and support services; law, justice, and public

safety; regulation of business; transportation or
recreation and resource development purposes.

"Other" generally indicates assets, which because of their
nature. are unavailable for exoenditures. See Note 12.

"Designated" indicates assets which have been
designated by the Legislature or governing board for
specific purposes, See Note 12,

E. IntergovernmentalAssistancePrograms
The State participates in various federal award programs.

Federal awards are received by the State in both cash
and noncash forms. Federal reimbursement type grants

are recorded as revenues when the related expenditures
are recognized. Certain grants have matching
reouirements in which the State must contribute a
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proportionate share of the total costs of a program. Use

of grant resources is conditioned upon compliance with

terms of the grant agreements and applicable federal

regulations which include subjecting grants to financial

and compliance audits.

F. "lllemorandum Only" Total Columns
Total columns on the general purpose financial

statements are captioned "memorandum only" to indicate

eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of
this data.

G. ComparativeData/Reclassitications
Comoarative total data for the prior year have been
presented in the accompanying financial statements in

order to provide an understanding of the changes in the

govemment's financial position and operations. Also,

certain amounts presented in the prior year data have

been reclassified in order to be consistent with the

current year's presentation.

H. lmplementation of Accounting Principles
During tiscal year 1997, PERS and LRS, pension trust
funds, adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.

25, Financiat Repofting for Defined Beneft Pension Plans

and Note Disclosures for Defined Contibution Plans

GASB Statement No. 25 requires pension trust funds to

account for olan assets, liabilities and net assets at their
fair values.

GASB Statement No. 25 was applied retroactively to July

1, 1995. The impact of the adoption of this stiatement
was an increase in net assets from amounts previously

reoorted as follows:

July I' 196 JulY I, 1995

PERS $ I,134,182746 $ 838,834150

LRS 450,880 4raots

Tolal S 1,134,633,626 $ 839,246165

In connection with the adoption of GASB Stiatement No

25. the State has adopted GASB Statement No. 27'

Accounting for Pensions by Sfafe and Local

G ove m mental Em ploye rs.

During fiscal year 1997, the State also adopted the

orovisions of GASB Statement No.28, Accounting and
Financial Repofting for Securities Lending Transactions
GASB Statement No. 28 requires that cash received as

collateral on securities lending transactions and

investments made with that €sh be reported as an asset
and a liability.

GASB Statement No. 28 was applied retroactively by

restating the 1996 financial statements. The restatement
of 1996 financial statements resulted in an increase in

total assets of $1,526,088,747 and an increase in total
liabilities of $1,526,088,747 in trust and agency funds.

A. Individual Fund Deficits
Enterprise Funds

lndustrial lnsurance (SllS) - During the year ended June

30. 1997. SllS recorded net income of $438,650,000' and

unrealized gains on equity securities of $57'217'000'
resulting in a decrease of its deficit fund balance to

$856,421,000 at June 30, 1997. Changes to the claims
management process and statutory changes in 1993

have contributed to the improvements in the overall
financial condition of SllS. See Note 15A.

Nevada Maoazine - The Nevada Magazine was removed
from the General Fund in the fiscal year ended June 30,

1984 to be accounted for as an enterprise fund A

residual equity transfer (contributed capital) of $66,849,
representing the value of inventory and property,

established the new fund. Although Nevada Magazine
had a liability for deferred subscription revenues of
$278,774 at June 30, 1983, no cash was transferred.
This resulted in a deficit beginning retained earnings of
$278,774. The retained deficit is $419,828, and the deficit
fund equity is $352,979 at June 30, 1997.

Marlette Lake Water Svstem - The Marlette Lake Water
System was acquired by the State in 1962 by the
issuance of general obligation bonds. These bonds were
serviced with general State revenues rather than
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revenues of the fund. The original bonded debt, along
with any additional General Fund appropriations for
capitial improvements to the System, have resulted in
contributed capital of $2,885,884. Operating losses and
retained eamings deficit are the result of not charging
water users for depreciation expense on the contributed
assets, with no foreseeable change in this policy of
charging users. The retained deficit is $1,720,279 at June
30, 1997.

Intemal Service Fund

Administrative Services - The Administrative Services
fund has deficit retained earnings of $28,745. This
deficit is due to certain accruals lhat are not funded in the
budget until the liability is liquidated and to depreciation
expense that is not included in billings to customers.

B. Budgetary Process and Control
The Governor must submit his proposed budget for the
Executive Branch to the State Legislature by the 10'" day
of each regular session, which convenes every odd-
numbered year. The budget presented spans the next
two fiscal years, and contains detailed estimates of
revenues and expenditures. The Legislature enacts the
budget through passage of the General Appropriations
Act. which allows expenditures from unrestricted
revenues, and the Authorized Expenditures Act, which
allows expenditures from revenues collected for specific
purposes. Once passed and signed, the budget
becomes the State's financial olan for the next two fiscal
years.

The legal level of budgetary control, the level at which
appropriations are approved and the level at which over-
expenditure of appropriations or transfers of
appropriated amounts may not occur without Legislative
action, is at the total program level within each
department or agency.

Limited budgetary revisions may be made without
Legislative action through the fiollowing managemenu
administrative orocedures. Revisions of more than
$2,000, which would increase or decrease program
expenditures by the lesser ol 10o/o of the level approved
by the Legislature or $25,000 must be approved by the
Legislative Interim Finance Committee (LIFC). Revisions
not exceeding this threshold require only budget director
approval. The LIFC approval is not equivalent to
governing body approval as total appropriations for a

program may not be increased except as follows. The
Legislature appropriates limited funds to the Contingency
Fund (a special revenue fund), which may be allocated to
programs by the LIFC upon recommendation of the
Board of Examiners. Allocations totaling $6,215,595
were made in the 1997 fiscal year. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year,
unless specific authority to carry foMard is granted in the
Appropriations Act. Unexpended authorized resources
under the Authorized Expenditures Act are carried
forward for expenditure in the next fiscal period.

Encumbrance accountang, under which purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the exDenditure of
funds are recorded to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation, is employed in governmental
fund types. For financial statement purposes,
encumbrances outstianding at June 30, for which the
goods or services have not been received, are shown as
a reservation of fund balance.

Budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and
special revenue funds. The State's budget is prepared
principally on a modified accrual basis, with the following
exceptions:

1) Cash placed in petty cash funds or outside bank
accounts is considered expended for budgetary
purposes.

2) Advances to other funds are considered
expendilures. Repayments of such advances
are considered revenues.

Actual amounts in the budgetary comparison statements
are presented on a budgetary basis. Because this basis
differs from generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP), as described above, a reconciliation between
the budgetary and GAAP basis is presented in Note 2C.

3)

4)

s)

6)

Certain prepaid/deferred assets are considered
expended for budgetary purposes. Inventory is

an expenditure for budgetary purposes. Certain
deferred revenue is considered revenue for
budgetary purposes.
Expenditures are only recognized if the liability is
liquidated within 45 days after the fiscal year end.
Revenue from grants is only recognized when it
is received in cash.
Encumbrances for goods or services not
received by fiscal year end are considered an
expenditure of the current period, if received and
paid within 45 days.
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res and chang and

evenue Funds gally

budgetary and data

below (expressed in thousands):

Sp€.irl
Revenue

Futrds

$ 380,740 $ 394,589Fund brlrnc€s (budget{ry brsis) Junc 30' 197

AdluslnEnls:
Rasis Di[erences:

Petty cash oroutside bank accounts

lnvestmenb nol recorded on the budgetary basis

Accrual ofrec€ivables under GASB 22

Accrual of certain other receivables

Inventory
Advances to other funds

Deferred charges and other assels

Accrual ofcertain accounts payable and accruals

Accrual of longevity pay

Contmct retentions payable

Defen€d revenues

Encumbranc€s
Other

Fund bolrft€s (GAAP b.sis) Jurc 30, 1997

Gctrerrl
Fund

|,873
-0-

4,576
3,950

-0-
3,622

-0-
(46,749)

(724)
-0-

(t2,t44)
2,442
(516)

824
856,915

t2,095
2t,4t6
t0,253

27
45,710

(1t,072)
(205)
(188)

(85)
3,730

930

s 267,070 $ 1,32E,059

$ 380,740

-w9-$ 108,546

There were no expenditures in excess of appropriations or authorizations in the individual budget accounts for the

year,

Total fund balance on the budgetary basis in the General Fund at June 30, 1997, is composed of both restricted funds,

which are not available for appropriation, and unrestricted funds as follows (expressed in thousands):

Total fund balance (budgetary basis)

Restricled Funds

UnrElrlcted futrd brhncc
(budg€t ry b.sis)

A. Balance Sheet
Amounts on the combined balance sheet relating to

deposits and investments are as follows (expressed in

thousands):

Prin!ry

s t,932,801

9,,16E
I I,833,944

tJ6S44

Tor.l
Co|nporent R€Podirg

----!r!!-----94.-$ 21,t26 $ 1,9s4,627

9,468
265,222 12,0,9,166

-0- 136,644

Crsh and pool.d invcairnents

Cash, poolcd invcsitncnts-
noncxFndablc l|usl

Rcst icEd ass€ts (Nol€ 6)
Lcss rcsLictcd &:scls olher

than crsh and investmcnts
(Not 6)

Torl

(46,800) -0- ___g!4I
ji466!Z- L3t?I1!- Ll.lE.!g:-
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B. Deposits
The Statutes of the State authorize the State Treasurer to
deposit in any insured state or national bank, credit union
or savings and loan association. Insured deposits are
covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
Statutes require all deposits within the custody of the
State Treasurer not within the limits of insurance
provided by an instrumentality of the United States to be
secured by collateral composed of obligations of the
United States; bonds of this State; bonds of any county,
municipality or school district within this State; promissory
notes secured by first deeds of trust or instruments in

which the State is oermitted to invest.

At June 30, 1997, deposits were held in various
institutions throughout the state as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Association, whether or not guaranteed by the United
States; farm mortgage loans fully insured and guaranteed
by the Farmers Home Administration of the U.S.
Department of Agriculture; negotiable certificates of
deposit issued by commercial banks or insured savings
and loan associations; certain banker's acceptances,
commercial paper, and notes, bonds and other
unconditional obligations for the payment of money
issued by corporations or depository institutions
organized and operating in the United States; money
market mutual funds registered with the SEC, rated
'AJM", or its equivalent, and invested only in securities
issued by the federal government or in repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by such securities.
Limited types of repurchase agreements are proper and
laMul investments of the Statei generally no money of
the State may be invested pursuant to a reverse-
repurchase agreement. The State's Permanent School
Fund is further limited by statute to the types of
investments it may purchase.

Investments are made after diligent inquiry by the
governmental unit and wriften legal opinion of the
Attorney General. Investment policies of the State are
reviewed at least every four months by the Board of
Finance.

The following table (expressed in thousands) provides

information about the credit and market risks associated
with the State's investments at June 30, 1997. Category
1 includes investments that are insured or registered or
for which the securities are held by the State or its agent
in the State's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are
held by the counterparties' trust department or agent in

the State's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are
held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or
agent, but not in the State's name.

Corrying
Vslue

Brnk
Bllance

Primary gouemmenl:
lnsured or collateralize d with

securities held by the Stale
or by an agenl of th€ State
in State s name s t0t,955 $ 16l,155

Deposits in the U S Treasury
investment pool in the name
ofrhe sble 166,9J4

Uncollateralized or collatenlized
with securiiies held by the
ptedging fi nancial,nstitution,
or by its trusr department or
agent but not in the Slate's

Totrl deposits

Corrqonent lnll:
Uncollatemllzed or collatemlized

with securities held by the
pledging fi nancial institution,
or by its trust departmentor
agent but not in the State's

name
Tot l deposits

cotrrpotrcrt unit
Totrl d.positr

reporting enrity

Drimrrv rovarnment 505,730 565,9J0

31.84t 37.841

21,826 21,826

71 914 )1 e)A---------:::- -------::.::::-
$ 528.556 $ s87,756

C. Investments
Statutes authorize the State to invest in United States

Treasury notes, bonds, and certiticates; bonds of this or
of other states; bonds of certain political subdivisions of
this or of other states; bonds, notes, debentures and

loans if they are underwritten by or their payment is
guaranteed by the United States; obligations or
certificates of the Federal National Mortgage Association,
the Federal Home Loan Banks, the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation, the Federal Farm Credit Banks

Funding Corporation or the Student Loan Marketing



Notes to
For the Fiscat Year Ended June 30, 1997

(Note 3 continued)

Pinury govemmenl:
Equity securities
U s Govemment secufities

Foreign lnvestments

Corporate bonds
Repurchase agreements
Municipal bonds
Mutualfunds
Bank acceptances

Commercral paper

Negotiabl€ cenifi cates of dePosil

Cuaranteed investment contnct5
Real estate
Mortgages
Securcd loans

Investrnent in lirnired pannerships

Inwsbnenls held ht agenls
in mdual Iunt fot:
Fiduciary funds

Def€rred comp€nsation

Totsl primrry govertrmenl

Cornponent unia:
Equity securities

U S Govemment securlttes

Forergn invesfnents

Corpomte bonds

O$er short lerm Investrnenls

Real estate

Inveslrnent held bJ tgenls
in ,nttaal lands for:
University System

Totel componcna unit

Totel reporiting €ntity

tlnclrssified
es lo Risk

Carrying

$ 4,604,089 S .0- $ -0- $ -0' $ 4,604'089 S 4.604,610

1,949,691 .0- 24,122 -0- 1,973 813 1,9',1o,495

545,180 -0- -0. -0- 545,180 545 180

107,859 '0. -0- -0- 107 859 110,932

27,649 -0- 74,689 -0- 102 338 102 338

865,986 -0- -0- -0- 865,986 861.392

9 -0- .0- -0- 9 9

38,017 -0- -0- -0' 38 017 38.014

308,228 -0- -0' -0- 308 228 308,21',1

60.00t -0- -0- -0- 60'001
-------!-i6;t66- 

------ 
----iTii -----------T ...-x.otl::zr-- -------F.,, r -

L',14J il tiJ " 

-t 

"t-t^

Market

851,774
299,18E

6.242

851,7',74 851,774
299,1 88 299,188

6.242 6,242

82.159 82.159 82,159

2,943,814 2,943,874 2.943,s91

1,664,t90 1,664,190t,664,190
t45,t4f 145.143 145,143

1.809,cJ3 I.809 9ll
8,s06,70e -o- --lg91! 4.1s3'8o't 

----J];s,.327- 
t3,36o.7t2

27,446

34,|4
5.763

6,r t5

D. Securities Lending
The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

oension trust fund, also maintains a securities lending
program by authorization of NRS 286 682. Securities

loaned under this program consist of U S. Treasury

Obligations, corporate fixed income securities'

international fixed income securities, equity securities and

international equity securities. Collateral received is

made up of cash, cash equivalents and U S. Treasury

Obligations. PERS has no discretionary authority to sell

or pledge collateral received or securities loaned. The

maturitres of the investments made with cash collateral
generally match the maturities of securities loans At

balance sheet date, the Weighted Average Maturities
(WAM) are 10.55 days for loans outstanding and 9.5

days for collateral/reinvestments. Collateral received
must eoual at least 102% of the market value of the

underlying security. Collateral is marked to market daily.

In accordance with PERS' Investment Objectives and

-o- 27,446 32,982

-0- 34,714 35,350

-0- 5,763 6,160

-0- 6,135 5,?15

7 ,403 -0- 7,403 1,411

__!119L -0' 81,461 87,61E

4,966 4,966 3,823

178,?95 1',7a,'795 209,4',73

.0- .0- _gllqL 183.761 

- 
26s'222 300.914

$ 8.s06.709 $ -o- s 180.272 $ 4,e17,56E $ t1624,54e $ 11{!1'626

---:

Policies, the securities lending agent is authorized to

invest collateral only in high quality short term investment

vehicles, Therefore management believes there is no

credit risk associated with the securities lending program

f n addition, securities loaned may not exceed 33 1l3o/o of
the total oortfolio. Full loss indemnification is provided by

agents. There were no losses during the period resulting

from default nor were there recoveries or prior period

tosses.

The fair value of securities loaned at June 30, 1997 is
$1,559,465,695. Cash collateral received in securities

lending arrangements of $1,527,080,837 is reported on

the Statement of Plan Net Assets as an asset with a
related liability as required under GASB 28. At June 30,

1997, PERS has collateral totalling $1,671,932,436 which

consists of cash and fixed income securities, and is in
excess of the market value of investments held by

brokers/dealers under a securities lending agreement.



Notes to Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended Jun€ 30, 1997

A summary of receivables by fund type at June 30, 1997, is as fiollows (expressed in thousands):

Proprb!.ry Fiduci.ry Conpon.nl
GoverDn.oarl Ford Typ.r Fud Typ.. Fund Typrt Unir

c.oerd RGrGruG scrvicc _!I9igll_g!!4lig s.rvicc Ascrcy Govcrrp.rt _SI!1g_ _EI!!_
$ 6.632 $ r,77o I -0- t -0- s t89,470 s 80J $ 5r,098 s 249,n5 $ -0- s 249,n5

Torrl Tot l
Irtcrnrl Trurt.nd Prin.ry Univcrllty R.portilgSp.ci.l Dcbt Crpilrl

t04.028 18,845 406.323 98

I 400,145 I 39,270

Tucs rcccivrble
Ac.rucd intcrcsq dividends

T.adcs pcndint scfl lcncnl
Inrcrgovcmmentrl rrccivablc

Accountt noLs rcccivable

Accrucd investncnt imom.
Olhcr rrc€ivabld

Totrl

211,591 t5954 -0- -0- -0- -0-

1,011 -0-

4- -0-

-0- 293,545

-0- -0- 17,420 -0- 56,247 t4,744 -0- t4,744

-G -G 4- -0- 144 344 -0- 344

25 r,310 33341 563,970 t3.436 s77,4O6

-G. 293,545

8f8 2,70t 4- + -S -0-

-G .0. -0- -s. 4- -G

-G. -0- -0- +.

'23 
S 98 S 206

-G. 3,5t9 14,84t | 8,350

-0- 3l 3l

A. lnterfund Advances and Interfund Receivables and Payables
A summary of interfund advances and of interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1997, fiollows (expressed in

thousands). Interfttnd receivables and payables are the current portion of interfund advances.

Advanc6 To
Oab.r Fudr

Adv.trc.! Fttrm ltracrfurd Itrtarfurd
Oth.l Futrdr R.r.ivabl6 Pavabl6

Gelerul Fund
Spedal Rcvatuc Fund

Slate Highwry
Ent.rprls. Fandt

Colomdo River Commission
Prison Industry
Ma/ette Lake Water Syst€m

Tot l Etra..prila Fud!
Inlcmol Scdc. Fands

Buildings and Crounds
Motor Pool
Purchasing
Infomation Services
Printing

Totrl IDt m.l Scrvica Fond3

Toirl

s 3.622 I -0- $ 436 $ 4-

-0-

-0-
l?5
141

322

-G. t90

-G. 3,321

$ 3,649 I 3,649

550
0
0

0
0
0

t95
54
24
70
2l

0
0
0
0

t,55t
5t0
322
671

-0-
.G
-0-
-0-
4-

43E I

27



to Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ende<I June 30, I 997

(Note 5 continued)

B. Due From/Due To Other Funds
A summary of due from and due to other funds at June 30, 1997, is shown below (expressed in thousands):

Generul Fund
Specl dl R.veau. Furrttt

Sratc Highway
Class-Size Reduction

Enployment Security

Regulatory

Legislative
Munrcipal Bond Bank

workers' compensadon and Safety

Higher F/ucation Capitll Consttuction

Cleaning Up Petroleum Discharges

Hospital Car€ to Indigent Persons

Tourism Promotion
OfTendcrs' Store

Colorado fu ver Commission

Contingency

Care of Sites for Radioactive Wasle

Disposal

Stabilize fie Op€mtions of State Covemment

Misc€llaneous

Tot l Spcclsl R.vcouc Furds
Debt Sentce Funds

Consolidat€d Bond Inter€st and Redemption

Highway Revenue Bonds

Totrl Debt Servicc Funds

Cap aI PnJecls Funds

Parts Capital Project Consttucuon
CIP Molor Vehicle
CIP Human Resourc€s

CIP University System

CIP General State Govemment
CIP Pnson System

Misc€llaneous

Tot l Capital Proi.ct! Funds

$ 20.948 S 343,990 Enleryfise Fundt
Colorado River Commission

41,t56
9t5
439

84

2,960
7,890

3A
64

-0-
790

3

t43
37t

1,3E9

t32
5.47 4

13,412 HousingDrvision
-0- Industriallnsurance

715 Forestry Nursenes

1,237 Prison Industry
452 Nevada Magazine

134 Marlene Lake water System

979 ToLl Enterpri!. Futrds

5,135 Inlemal Scricc Funds

I85 Selfjnsurance
-0- Burldings and Grounds

30 Motor Pool

23 communrcations
3 lnsurance Premiums

40 AdministrativeSeNices
PeNonnel

-0- Purchasing

-0- InformationSewices
102 Printing

Due Frcm
Other fu||dr

Due To
Other Funds

Due From
Oaher Fuds

t72
-0-

946
ll

384

I

32

Due To
Other Funds

331

l2
10,605

2l

2

5

p5O

917 ZO

7)
1,444 170

61t 9l
10,329 834

2t 259
8 I 15

4,300 3

2,84t 68

424 4

73.699 22,447

E,E93

799
r5,330
t2,7E7

t6,244

I,980
407

119,752

7,890

1,890

182
E3

293
277

t28
-0-

995

_4,480_
-0-

20

10

-0-
376

6,579
194,979

I

-0-
25

-0-
722

t,5E6

2

l7
5,847

3

892
2

7.669
-0-

47,851

3

4-
7

6.431

Tolrl Int ltr.l Sctaicc Funds

Trust rnd Agency Funb
Museums and History

-0- Gift Funds

Custodial Funds

Henry Wood Chrishas
Permanent School
Public Employe€s' Retircment

Intergovemmenlal

Stdte Agency Fund for Bonds

Motor Vehicle

Restitution Trust

Vetemns Custodial

Local Govemment Pooled Investrnent

Strte Payroll

Totrl Trust rnd Agcncy Funds

Totrl
2t0.301 68.730

$ 456,688 S 456,688

28



Notes to Financial Statements
For the Fiscat Year Ended Juno 30, 1997

(Note 5 continued)

C. Due From/Due To Component Unit
A summary of balances receivable or payable between
the primary government and the University System (a
component unit) at June 30, 1997, is shown below
(expressed in thousands):

E, Transfers
A summary of interfund
ended June 30, 1997,
thousands):

Speclal Revenue Funds
State Highway
Class-Size Reduction
Employment Security
Regulatory
Legislatrve
Municipal Bond Bank
Worke6 Compensation

and Safety
Higher Education Crpibl

Constsuction
Tourism Promotion
Contingency
Stabilize the Operations of

State Gov€mm€nt
Miscellaneous

operating transfers for the year
is shown below (expressed in

Trrtrsfcrs Trrtrlfc]!
In Oua

$ 5t.912 S | 29,819

D e Fr0m Du€ To
Corhponent Cbmponent

Unit Unlt

2.178 8,545
39,I l0 -0-

303 5,587

10,874

6 23?
3

100
-0-

Gatuol Funl
Spedal R4'arue Furds

SrarE High*ay
Erployrn€nt S€c|fity
R€ulatory
Miscellaneous

Totd Sp.cirl RF.tru€ Funds

Copltol Ptuleds Funfu
CIP Univ€rsiry Systern

CIP General State Covemrnent

Totrl Cspilal Pmi€cls Funds
Enleryfue Funb

ftison InduiEy

Totrl E .ryris€ Futrds
Inl.mal Sovice Funfu

Selflnsurance
Motor Pml
lnsurance PrEmiuns
Purchasing

Prinring

Totil ltrtrmol Scrvice funds

Total

$ 2 $ 4,369

2t2

75,706

25,228

t00,934

.G

+

4,871

58

45,387

6,O92

t5,3t8
3,080
6,2t6

-0-

96,679

t,t60
32,1t2

tl

-0-

-0-

t,208

-G
+
{l
+

33

t39
3

-0-
.G

Total SpErirl Revenu€ Funds

Debl Senlce Fut d
Consolidated Bond

Inter€st and Redenption

Capitol hojeds Funds
Parks Capital Proj€ct Construction
CIP Moior Vehicle
CIP Human Resources
CIP Ceneral State Covemment
CIP Prison System

Totol Crpitrl Proj€cts Fund!
Enteryrise Fundt
Inlenol Semlce Fuh.ls
Expendable Truit Fands

Custodial Funds
Gift Funds

Totrl ErpcdrbL Trusl Ftnds

NonatpendaNa Trusl Farrds
Permanent School
H€nry Wood Chrislnas

Tot{l Noocrpcndrbl. Trust Fonds

Pension T sl Fundt

Tot l Trrnsfers

ll
l9l
t6
+

126

334

-G
-G

1,637

.G

I

149

83

689
289------.]E-J3'r-Tzrr

-0- 292

|,827 l,2tl

6,240

t,059
1,282

12,187

t5,685
2,328

$ 341

|,637

$ 107,152

D. Transfers From/Transfers to Component
Unit

A summary of transfers between the primary govemment
and the University System (a component unit) for the
year ended June 30, 1997, is shown below (expressed in
thousands):

t50
-0-

3,916

Trulfers From
Compon€nt

Unit

s 247

l s0 3,919

-0- 44

$ 239,486 $ 239,486

Tr{nrfe13 To
ComponGnt

Unit

$ 3r3,391Generol Fand
Speciol Rdenue Funds

State Highway
Class-Size Reduction
Higher Education

Capital Construction

Totrl Specirl Rcvcnuc F[nd3
Debt S.nice Fund

Consolidated Bond
Interest and Red€mption

Cq al hojecE Fund
CIP University System

Totrl Trf,nsfcrs

I,170

1,305

173

36,072

$ 537 $ 350.941

4
l3l

-0-
-0-

-0-

to



to Flnancial Statements
For tho Flscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

Various debt service, operation and maintenanc€, capital
improvement and construction (acquisition) funding
requhements of bond cDvenants, and trust indentures are
recorded as restricted assets on the enterprise fund and
sDecial revenue fund balance sheets. These restricted

assets are established either from bond proceeds or
retained earnings. The components of restricted assets
at June 30, 1997, are as fiollows (expressed in
thousands):

Etrt Drila Fund!

Sp..l.l
Rar/ar[a

FIDd

Colol|do
s&t Rlvcr

JlcEs-@
Holrhg
Dlvblotr

-0- $
72,643

I,043

-0- $
-0-

-(l

Tot l
R.portitrg

Etrtity

R.5,'lcLtt:
C.sh
Inv6trncnE
Intercst taccivable
Right of way acquisitions

Total
R6trrd.d lor:

Dcbt servicr
Debt seftica reserve

Consruclion reserva

other and oll purpos€ tes€rye

Total

11,201

72,643

I,043

$ -0- $ 1,717

73,686 74,U9
-G 59,985

t7,20t $
-0-
-0-

-0-_!w -0- 45,751

$ 45,757 $ t7,201 I 73,686 | t36,644

4.$
4-

45,757

4-

1,7l7

363

14,228

t93

A statement of changes in general fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 1997, is shown below (expressed in

thousands):

Sa|lca[rt FurllarE Conrarucalon
ald ard ltr

bnd l|rprov.[.trb Eqripdcrl ProrEa! Totrl

Bsfancc, July l, f996 I tl,t62 I 393,1?2 $ 205,141 $ 225,49 S X5,614
26,764 61,21t 281,5@

-o. 893

t 45,151 | l?201 $ 73,685 $ 136,644

f,06f 192,464
(4.48r) (28.653) 094.829) (221.963\

s 82.923 I 5$.t55 $ 203.2s2 S 97.94t S s.271

Additions
Deletions

Balance, June 30, 1997

Construction in progress is composed of the following (expressed in thousands):

Proj.cl Erp.nd.d to
Authorlzatlon J!n.30.lgt

hisons
NatuBl resourc€s & wildlife
Srat library

Miliiary
Od|c proj€cts

Tot b

Com|DltLd

$ 7,358

614
62

t2l
I t.03?

!-L9-!.22-

R.qrlrd
Ful|||r

i!!ss4_
None

None

None
None
None

$ 56,t58 $
22,482
20,283
16,2t6
62.874 26_128

$ r7t.7t 3 $ 9?.941

29,?96

t2,523
l?,t51
12,043

30



For the Fiscal Year Encled June 30, 1997

A, Long-TermObligations
Long-term obligations at June 30, 1997 of the primary government comprise the following (expressed in thousands):

lDlart'a
Rata Authoriz.d

Priftip.l
ard ltrterrt

lssucd in FY l9t
PriDcipol

.o"tl.r"d|"s-
Gc|rcr.l lrtrg-Tcrur Obligelion3 Accourt Gmup

Gatud ob gatioi bondt:
Subject to Constitutronal Debt Limitation 1.85- 10.00plo

ExemDt from Constitutional Debt Limrlalon 3.50-9 80o/o

S pecl al o U lg at t on bon ds :
Exempt from Constitutional Debl Limrtalron -

Highwsy Improvement Revenue Bonds

Tot.l Bonds

Obligations under capital leases

Compensated absences obllSations
Arbitrage rebate I iability
claims andjudgmentj
Fedeml repaym€nt contract
Judicial retirement net pension obligatron
Total gancrrl lotrg-term obligtllons

Etrt€rprit€ funds
Colotutto Rlvu Comlrlssion:
Geneml obligation bonds exempt from

Constitutional Debt Llmitation
Houslng DtvMon:
Mortgage revenue tonds
Total gcnanl oblig.aiors
Net obligations under capital leases

Comp€nsated sbsences obligations
Totrl enlerpris. frrtrd!

Irtamal scnlce furds
Obligations under capitll leases

l,ess current portion
Net obligations under capital leases

Compensated absences obligations
Tolsl lntemrl scrvic. funds

Pen3ion trust futrds
Notes payable

Obligations under capital lease

Totll penslon trust funds

$ 2.329,t20 $ 2,327,t95 $ 149.595 t,66t,2ll
T-------;39-T-------'iJr6--

| 774,824 S

t.432,196

t22,100

774,824 $
|,430,27 |

t22,1N

50,420 $
7 | ,t46

21,8294 O0-7 00o/o

4 90-t2.940/0

47 |,975
t,153,835

35,400

5,004
61,732

t,918
452

175,785

600-t0.75./o $ 172,310 s l51,8lo $ 6,364 $ 61,760

43o-1.o0./o t2s0.N0 1,t74,787 _Jryl__lJg
$ t,422,310 t 1,326.597 $ 128,061 8?6,381

- 

o,225
3,437

$ t86,043

4 067 970/o i 6,12t $ 1,793 $ 2,t77
t,583

9 30%
5 74%

Bahoca

Jrly I, 1996

Ncw Oblig.rtuN
Incurlrd rnd
Cl.ngca ln
f,itimrtca

$ 9,s63 $ 96? $
296 108 27

-{_ry_-g_Lg_!3

B. Changes in General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
The following is a summary of changes in General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997 (expressed in thousands):

Obllgrtions B.bDca
Rctind Jutr.3o. 199

Bonds

Obligrlions under capilal leases

Compensated sbsences obligations
Arbitrage rebate liability
Claims and judgments

Federal repayment contract

Judicial retirehent net p€nsion obligation

Totrl

$ r,209,241 $
3,287

57,0t8
I,104

334

542,675 $
2,980
4,714

El4
452

-0-

-0-

($,705) $

(t.263'
-0-
-0-

(334)

(3,121)

-0-

t,661,2t I

5,004

6t,732
I,918

452

t75,785

t,963
55 $ r95.423r S l-90E-065



to Financial Statements
For the Fiscat Year Ended June 30, I 997

(Note I continued)

C, ConstitutionalDebtLimitations
Section 3. Article 9, of the State Constitution (as

amended) limits the aggregated principal amount of the

State's public debt to two percent (2o/o\ of the assessed

valuation of the State. Exempt from this limitation are

debts authorized by the Legislature that are incurred for

the protection and preservation or for obtaining the

benefits of any property or natural resources within the

State. At June 30, 1997, the debt limit and its unused
portion are computed as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Debt I imrtation (2% of total

assessed valuation) S 162,212

,e$: Bonds and leases Payable
as ofJune 30, 199?, subJect

to limitation 476,979

Remaioing dob! capacity S 285'23t

D. Nevada MuniciPal Bond Bank
General obligation bonds have been issued through the

Nevada Municipal Bond Bank, a special revenue fund, as

authorized by NRS 350A and NRS 349.950 These

bonds are sub,ect to statutory limitation of $1 8 billion and

are exempt from the constitutional debt limitation

Proceeds from the bonds are used to purchase the

validly issued general obligation bonds of the State's

local governments to finance projects related to natural

resources. The State anticipates that the debt service
revenue it receives from the participating local

governments will be sufficient to pay the debt service

reouirements of the State bonds as they become due.

Thirty-three projects were funded through the Nevada

Municipal Bond Bank as of June 30, 1997, and total

investments in local governments amounted to

$856,963,038.

E. Refunded Debt and RedemPtions
On June 4. 1997. the State issued $285,490,000 General

Obligation (Limited Tax) Municipal Bond Bank Bonds, of
which $19,990,250 was to partially advance refund

$18,710,000 of the December 1, 1994 Municipal Bond

Bank Projects 43 and 44 Bonds. The State completed

the refunding to reduce its total future debt service
payments by $1,627,304 and to obtain an economic gain

or present value savings of $753,014.

On December 12, 1996, the Colorado River Commission
(CRC) deposited with First Bank, N.A $17,999,649 to
advance refund term bonds in Series 1992 with a face
value of $17,235,000. The total amount deposited
included refunding costs of $764,649. To accomplish the

advanced refunding (defeasance), the CRC used the

$17,999,649 to purchase U.S. Government securities
Those securities were deoosited in an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments on the refunded bonds. The advance
refunding met the requirements of an in-substance debt

defeasance, and the liability for those bonds has been

removed ftom the CRC's balance sheet. The advance
refunding resulted in no gain or loss, since there was no

new debt involved.

In the current and prior years the State defeased certain
general obligations and other bonds by placing the
oroceeds of new bonds and other monies in an

irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service
payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust

account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds

are not included in the State's financial statements. The
total amount of defeased issues at June 30, 1997 is

$712,491,000.

F. Debt Service Requirements for Bonds
Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for all

long-term bonds and notes outstanding at June 30, 1997,

of the primary government are summarized in the table
following (expressed in thousands). Debt service
requirements for all capital leases and installment
purchases are presented in Section I of this note. No debt
service requirements are presented for compensated
absences obligations since the repayment dates are
unknown. All amounts listed for Housing Bonds are
projections and are subject to change based upon
changes in the mortgage interest market rate. Actual
results may vary considerably from these projections at
any point in time, depending upon market rates of
interest.



(Note I continued)

Genenl Long-Term Obligrtions Account Group
Genenl obligations terviced frotn Contolidated Bond
Interesl and Rederrplion DeU Senice Fund:
General obligation bonds (taxes)

Ccneral obligation bonds (loan rcpayrnents)

Genenl obligarion bonds (user fees)

Municipal boDd bank bonds (investments

in municiD6l bonds)

Federal repayment contract (user f€es)

University System projects bonds (slot machine tax)

Totrl gcncrtl oblig{tion botrds

Speciol obligalion bonds seniced lrom Highv,o!
Boadt Deb, Service Fund
Highway improvement revenue bonds (firel tax)

Totrl G.ncrrl Long-Tcrm Obligrtiom
Accoutrt Group

EntGrprisa Funds

Generdl obllgdtloh bonds seDiced Jrom:
Colorado River Commission Fund (user fees)

Housing Fund (investments in mortages)

Totrl Gnt.rpris€ funds

Pension Trust Fund

Notes payable servic€d from PERS

7,782 7,79t 1,793 7,801 3,E69

146,394 150,281 t56,223 155,601 t5t,776

19,7t0 18,939 -O- -0- -0.

56,E46 $
2,6t1

t1,7 t9

52,50r

8,935

57,4 t8 $

2,58t
t7,395

56,t60

8,935

57,548 $

2,534

tt,253

61,I60
t,935

57,622 $

2,466

tE,266

6 t,51 I

8,935

s1,293 S

2,373

18,288

61,01t
R qla

485,418

2l,330
334,U1

|,239,048

244,193

30,842

2,355,672

-0-

g t66,t74 $ 169,226 S t56,223 $ 156,601 J t5t,776 $ 2,355,672

5,799 5,804 5,798 5.195 r ?ts

88,902

8E,776

908,025106, 8 108,621 106,822 97,869

$ lt2,6l7 $ u4,425 $ I12,620 $ t03,664 94,68? $ 996,t0r

G. Amounts Available and Amounts to be
Provided for Debt Service

At June 30, 1997, the amount available in debt service
funds to service debt is $29,900,743. This total
consists of $693,251 available in the Highway
Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund to service the
Special Obligation Highway Revenue (Motor Vehicle
Fuef Tax) Bonds and $29,207,492 available in the
Consolidated Eond Interest and Redemption Debt
Service Fund. At June 30, 1997, the amount available
in soecial revenue funds is 9856,963.038. This
amount is available to service the Municipal Bond Bank
Bonds in the Municipal Bond Bank Special Revenue
Fund.

The amount to be provided by other governments of
$405.815,195 is due from the Southern Nevada Water
Authority (SNWA). Until January 1, 1996, the
Colorado River Commission, an enterprise fund which
is responsible for managing Nevada's interest in the
water and power resources available from the
Colorado River. ooerated the Southern Nevada Water
System (SNWS). In accordance with Chaper 393 of
the 1995 Legislature, certain rights, powers, duties and
liabilities of SNWS were transferred from the State and
CRC to the SNWA effective January 1. 1996. These

96? $ 96? $ 9103 -o- $ -0- $ {)-

rights, powers duties and liabilities included, but were
not limited to, the State of Nevada General Obligation
bonds, the existing water user contracts, the Federal
Repayment Contract, the Service Contract between
CRC and the Las Vegas Valley Water District, and all
other contracts related to the SNWS including
contracts for capital improvement. Accordingly, on
January 1, 1996 the State recorded the general
obligation bonds and federal repayment contract
previously reported in CRC and an associated amount
to be provided by other government in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

H. Bond Indenture Provisions
There are restnctions and limatations contained in the
various bond indentures. The State is in compliance
with the requirements of the bond covenants.

For The Fiscrl Y€rr
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For the Fisczt Yoar Ended June 30' 1997
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(Note I continued)

l. Capital Leases
The State has entered into various agreements for the lease of equipment Assets acquired under such leases of the

primary govemment at June 30, 1997, consist of the following (expressed in thousands):

Ganaral Intcr l Pension

Flt.d A3!.G Etrt rprk Scrvice Trust

Acco||tra GmuD Fuld! Fundr Frrd3 Totrl

$ 6.39? $ 26,410 $ 6,72t $ 301 $ 39'889
Equipment

Less accumulated dePreciation

Totrl

g ---Lg:q 3,t7t 

---.Er 
re,63e

3_-63rJ- -t--!-gl6? -{----U:9- -l----L2!- ry-

Latt:

Zass.'

For all caoital te nt, the

gross minimum b alue of

the net minimum 1997

follow (expressed in thousands):

K. Federal Repayment Contract
The State is obligated to the United States pursuant to

the terms of a contract entered into in 1967 and amended

in 1992 for the construction by the United States of a
prqect (the Griffith Project) for the principal purpose of
delivering water fior municipal and industrial use within

Clark County, Nevada. The Stiates' original obligation

under the contract was $51,164,299 in 1973 from the first

ohase of construction and an additional $125,817'815 in

1984 from the second phase. Both phases are being

repaid over a fif$ year period including interest at 3-25yo

Section F discloses the remaining debt service

requirements.

The obligation is repaid from the net revenues of Griffith

Project water users. The CRC operated the Griffith

Project system and collected the associated water
revenues until January 1, 1996, when the system, along

with additional water treatment operations and assets,

were transferred to the Southern Nevada Water Authority
(SNWA). In accordance with Chapter 393 of the 1995

Legislature, the duty of repaying this federal contract was
transfened to SNWA, however, the State remains the
primary obligor. Should the user revenues be insufficient

to meet the obligation, the United States may assert a
prior claim to ad valorem or other taxes or assessments

of the State.

L. Component Unit Obligations
8onds, notes and capital leases payable by

University System at June 30, 1997, consist of
following (expressed in thousands):

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

Total payments

Amount rcpresenung mEresl

cunent portion for
intemal service funds
Total

$ 5,557

4,854

893

721

15,591

I,466

14,l3 |

1,583T---rzF

Student fee revenue

bonds

Norcs payable

Capital leases

Toarl

Finrl Pritrciptl
Mrturity Out tndirg

60,705

8,488

584

J. Arbitrage Rebate Requirement
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate

requirement with respect to some bonds issued by the

State. Under this requirement, an amount equal to the

sum of (a) the excess of the aggregate amount earned

on all investments (other than certain specilied

exceptions) over the amount that would have been

eamed if all investments were invested at a rate equal to

the yield on the bonds, and (b) any income earned on the

excess described in (a), must be rebated to the United

States Treasury, in order fior the interest on the bonds to

be excluded from gross income for federal income tax
ce with the Intemal Revenue
n arbitrage rebate liability has

June 30, 1997. The liability is
payable as follows (expressed in thousands):
For tb. v.rr editrc Jun. J0 Amourt

1998

| 999

2000

2001

2002
Therealter

Totrl

the
the

AnnMl Rrle
oflntcEsts2\

6t5
539

224

261

252

3 00-8 50 %
5 O5-13 06 o/o

4 79-19 59 %

20t7 s
20t 5

2001

$ 69,n7
$ 1,918

34



Notes to Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1 9!t7

(Note I continuect)

The student fee revenue bonds are secured by tuition
and fees, auxiliary enterprises revenue and certain other
revenue as defined in the bond indentures.

Accrued compensated absences payable by the
Univerity System at June 30, 1997, were $18,453,000.

Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for
bonds, notes, and capital leases payable by the
University System for the years ending June 30 are as
follows (expressed in thousands).

Fiscrl y.rr.trdirg Jutrc 30 Amortrt

t99t
1999

At June 30, 1997 debt in the amount of $23,646,000 is
considered to be extinguished through refunding of prior
issues by a portion of the current issues. Sufficient

proceeds were invested in state and local government
securilies and placed in escrow to assure the timely
payment of the maturities of prior issues. Neither the
debt nor the escrowed assets are reflected on the
financial statements.

M. Conduit Debt Obligations
The State has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to
provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for
the acouisition and construction of commercial facilities
deemed to be in the Dublic interest. The bonds are
secured by the property financed and are payable solely
from payments received on the underlying mortgage
loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the
acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity
served by the bond issuance. The State in not obligated
in any manner for the repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in
the accompanying fi nancial statements.

As of June 30, 1997, there were eighteen series of
Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding, with an aggregate
principal amount payable of $49,797,992.

2000
2001

2002

Thereaft€r

Totrl

$ 4,192

5,U3
4,978
4,524

4,562

45,878

s 69,17'l

The Nevada Legislature has created various plans to
provide benefits to qualified employees and Legislators
of the State as well as employees of other public
employers. The Public Employees' Retirement Board
administers the Public Employees' Retirement System
of Nevada (PERS) and the Legislators' Retirement
System of Nevada (LRS). A summary description of the
plans follows.

A. PERS
Plan Description - All full-time State employees and full-
time employees of participating local government
entities in the State are members in the PERS, a
defined benefit cost-sharing, multiple-employer public
employees' retirement system established in 1947 by
the Nevada Legislature. Any government employer in

the State may elect to have its general, police and fire
department employees covered by PERS.

At June 30, 1997, the number of participating
government employers was:

Benefits, as required by statute, are determined by the
number of years of accredited service at the time of
retirement and the member's highest average
compensation in any 36 consecutive months. Benefit
payments to which participants may be entitled under the
plan include pension benefits, disability benefits and death
benefits, Monthly benefit allowances for regular members
are computed at 2.5% ot average compensation (36
consecutive months of highest compensation) for each
accredited year of service before retirement with a ceiling
of 75o/o of the average compensation. Regular members
are eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service,
at age 60 with 10 years of service or at any age with 30
years of service. Police and firemen are eligible for

35

State and its component unit5

Cities

Counties and rclated agencies

School districts

Hosprtals and health care

Utility and Frgation drsFicts

Special districts and agencies

Totrl .mploycls

I

20

l8
IO

l6
30

t2l



to Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

(Note I continued)

retirement at age 65 with 5 years of accredited police
and fire seNice, at age 55 with 10 years of accredited
police and fire service, at 50 with 20 years of accredited
police and fire service, or at any age with 30 years of
accredited service. A member who retired on or after
July 1, 1977, or is an active member whose effective
date of membership is before July 1, 1985, and who
has 36 years of service, is entitled to a benefit of up to
90% of average compensation. Wlen members are
eligible for earlier retirement due to the increased
service years, the ceiling limitation on monthly benefit
allowances increases from the normal 75% to a
maximum of 90% of aveEge compensation. Regular
members and police and firemen become fully vested
as to benefits upon completion of 5 years of service.

Fundinq Policv - The authority for establishing and
amending the obligation to make contributions is
provided by statute. Member contribution rates are also
established by statute. New employees of the State of
Nevada and public employers who were not under the
employer-pay contribution plan prior to July 1, 1983,
have the option of selecting either the employee and
employer contribution plan or the employer-pay
contribution plan. One plan provides for matching
employee and employer contributions while the other
plan provides for employer contributions only.

I 28218 I 7r,533 I 101.306 I

4 t94 I t.35t 16,045
-G .O- -O, -0-

PERS' basic fund policy provides for periodic contributions
at a level paftern of cost as a percentage of salary
throughout an employee's working lifetime, in order to
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.
Although PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an
annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to
fund PERS on an actuarial reserve basis, both for funding
purposes and GASB disclosure purposes, contributions
actually made are according to the required rates
established by the Legislature. These statutory rates are
increased or decreased oursuant to NRS 286.421 and
286.450.

Actuarially required and statutory employee and employer
contribution rates, as a percentage of covered payroll, for
regular and police and fire members in effect for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1997, were as follows:

Funding Shautory
Brsb Rrte

R€g'rlrr enploye.s:
Employer -pay plan

Employec ard anployq plu
Polic! rn{t FiE €mploye..:
Employer -pay plan

Employe€ and employer plan

t8 330/, 1875%
915./. t0 00%

21360/" 27 00%

14 2l% 14 ooYr

The State's contribution requirements for the current fiscal year and each of the two preceding years were (expressed
in thousands):

1997 1996 1995

Totrl srrt Tot l srrt aotrr s1.@
E.Dloyd' EDDloy.6' CorEiburio! EDploy€' Enplor.6' Conrribrtor [EFlotd' Enploy.n' Cont.ibtriiot
Coocibrriotr Coldiburid R4oiEElr Cortribdd Contiburid n4riEmr Coldiblrion Corrnbdid RdiEc.t

Reouired Suoolementary Information - Schedules of
funding progress and employer contributions are presented
in the PERS June 30, 1997, comprehensive annual
financial report. PERS' financial report may be obtained
from the Public Employees' Retirement System, 693 West
Nye Lane, Carson City, Nevada 89703.

25,276 S 68,629 I 93,905 I 2r,151 I 62,517 I a1,274

7,242 9,569 t23l | 1065 9,194 12,359

t 12412 I 35,ill9 t ll7,35l I 28,518 I 78,t93 I 24,422 S Tlrtt I

!ll peticiplting.ntili6
of t5l?.6{5, t4?1,707

B. LRS
Plan Description - All State Legislators are members in
LRS, a defined benefit, single-employer public
employees' retirement system established in 1967 by
the Nevada Legislature. LRS is legislated by and
functions in accordance with State laws established by
the Nevada Legislature. lt is admanistered by the PERS
Board of the State of Nevada.

Benefits, as required by statute, are determined by the
number of years of accredited service at the time of
retirement. Service years include the entire election term
whether or not the Legislature is in session. Benefit
payments to which participants may be entitled under the
plan include pension benefits and death benefits.



For the Fiscat Year Ended June 30, 1997

(Note I continued)

Monthly benefit allowances are $25 for each year of
service up to thirty years. Contributions and investment
earnings provide benefits under the system. Legislators
become fully vested as to benefits at age 60 and 8 years
of service before July 1, 1985, or at age 60 and 10 years
of service after July 1,1985.

LRS issues separate financial statements which are
available from the Public Employees' Retirement
System, 693 West Nye Lane, Carson City, Nevada
89703.

Fundino Policv - The Legislator contribution ot 15o/o ot
compensation is paid by the Legislator only when the
Legislature is in session, as required by statute. The
Legislature holds sessions every two years. Prior to
1985, the employee contributions were matched by the
employer. The 1985 Legislators' Retirement Act
includes NRS 218.2387(2\ which states "The Director of
the Legislative Counsel Bureau shall pay to the Board
from the Legislative Fund an amount as the contribution
of the State of Nevada as employer which is actuarially
determined to be sufficient to provide the System with
enough money to pay all benefits for which the System
wiff be fiable.' The Legislature appropriated $357,428
for calendar years 1997 and 1998, which is the annual
required State contribution as determined by the
actuary. This amount was paid by the Legislative Fund
and was recorded as an employer contribution in the
flscal year ended June 30, 1997, since the Legislature
was in session in fiscal year 1997.

Actuarial Information - Actuarial methods and significant
assumptions used in the January 1, 1997, actuarial
valuation include the following:

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry age

Amortization Method: Level percent closed

Remaininq Amortization Period: 28 years

Asset Valuation Method: 5 year smoothed market

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment yield 8Yo
Projected salary increases None

Retirement Aqe for Active Members: Earlier of age 64
or age 60 with 24 years of service

Assumed Mortalitv Rate: 1983 Group Annuity
Mortality Table

Cost of Livinq (Post-Retirement) Increasesi
2% after 3 years of receiving benefits
37o after 6 years of receivang benefits
3.5% after 9 years of receiving benefits

Trends can be affected by investment experience
(favorable or unfavorable), salary experience, or changes
in demographic characteristics of employees. Other
factors include retirement experience. Changes in
benefits Drovisions and in actuarial methods and
assumotions can also affect trends.

Required Supolementarv lnformation - Actuarial valuations of the LRS are prepared every two years to determine
State contributions required to fund the system on an actuarial basis. A schedule of funding progress is as follows
(expressed in thousands):

Volurtion
Ye&r

Actuarial Accrued
Liability (AAL)

$ 4,665

Actuarial VNlu€
of Assets

$ r,9?6 $

Annual Staae

Pension Contribution
Cost Made

Unfundcd
Acturdrl Accru€d
Lirbility (UAAL)

Rrtio of
Ass.ts to AAL

2,6E9 42% $

2,401 480/0

Percentrgc of
Annusl Pension

Cost Contributed

Annurl UAAL as N o/o

Covered ofAnnusl
Payroll overed Psyro

1993

t995

1997

4,605 2,t9t
4,17E 2,951 t,62t 62%

492 5470/.

491 49e/o

49r 37lo/.

Trend lnformation: Three-year trend information follows (expressed in thousands):
Fiscrl
Year

Ended

Net
Pension

Oblisotion

6/30/95

6t30/96

6130197

215 $

215

119

2000/.

00/"

2000/0

430

0

357

0

0

0
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C. The Judicial Retirement System
Plan Description - The justices of the Supreme Court and
district court judges have been granted special
retirement provisions by various Legislatures. This is a
single-employer, State of Nevada, defined benefit,
unfunded plan that is administered by the clerk of the
Supreme Court. The plan does not issue separate
financial statements, nor is it included in the report of
another PERS. An actuarial valuation for this plan was
prepared according to the provisions of Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27,

Accounting for Pensions by Sfafe and Local
Govemmental Employers. At the actuarial valuation date
of July 1, 1995, (the most recent valuation date)
membershio consisted of 49 active members and 28
retirees and beneficiaraes receiving benefits.

Benefits to which members may be entitled under the
plan are defined by statute and include pension benefits,
disability benefits and death benefits. Justices and
judges who have served as a justice of the Supreme
Court or a judge of a district court are eligible for
retirement at age 60 with five years of aggregate service
in any one or more of those courts. The annual benefit is

equal to 4.1666 percent of the salary of the last year of
service. The benefit is increased 4.1666 percent for each
year of service between five years and 22 years. The
maximum benefit is three-fourths of the salary of the last
year of service at age 60 with 22 years of service. Any
justice or judge who has the years of service necessary
to retire but has not attained the required age may retire
at any age with a benefit actuarially reduced to the
required retirement age.

Fundinq Policv - No contributions are required of the
justices and judges. Funding is provided from the
General Fund on a pay-as-you-go basis, according to
statute. Benefit expenditures are reported in the law,
justice and public safety function of the General Fund.
The State's contribution for the years ended June 30,
1996 and 1997, were $917,822 and $969,390,
respectively. The actuarial valuation at July 1, 1995,
determined the annual required contribution for the year
ended June 30, 1996, using the entry-age-normal level
percent of pay cost method for salary related benefits
and level dollar for non-salary related benefits. The
annual required contribution, annual pension cost and
net pension obligation for the year ended June 30, 1996,
are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Annuol requlrcd anl butioh
Annual normal cost, beginning of year

40 ye6r arnortization ofunfunded actuarial
aooru€d liability, beginning of year

InteFst to €nd of y€ar

Annuol equircd conl bulior\ end oflear
Inlerest on net persion obligation
Adjustrnent to annual requircd contribution
l4nnuol pensloh cosl
Benelits Daid

Increase in net p€nsion obligation
Net pension obligation, beginning of year

Nel peaslon obhgadorr, end ofleor

|,571
21t

z"t-dl-
-0-
-0--........r

918------tq.;-
-0-

$ 1,963

The net pension obligation of $1,963,000, is reported in

the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
Historically, an actuarial determination of the actuarial
required contribution has not been made. The
contribution to the plan has equaled the benefit
payments from the plan. As a result, the net pension
obligation at transition is equal to zero as of July 1, 1995,
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27.

The plan accumulates no assets to pay benefits. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability as of July 1, 1995,
was $20,229,000. This unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is to be amortized, using the level dollar method,
over a period of 40 years on a closed basis from July 1,

1995.

Actuarial lnformation - Significant actuarial assumptions
used in the valuation included the following:

lnterest Rate: 8%

Salary lncrease: Position pay increases are
assumed to be 3% per year in anticipation of
legislated increases. Longevity increases at 6% after
six years and 1% per year for each subsequent year
up to 17 additional years.

Retirement Aqei This is assumed to be normal
retirement age.

Termination Prior to Retirement : None.

@!el!L0eepaelu.: None.

Mortalitv Rates: The assumed mortality experience
is projected by using the 1983 Group Mortality Table.

Presence and Aoe of SDouse: All of the members
are married and the soouses are assumed to be
three years younger/(older) if the member is
male/(female).
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ended June 30. 1997

(Note I continued)

Reouired Suoolementiarv lnformation - The schedule of funding progress for
(expressed in thousands):

Actu|rirl Actuorirl Unfunded

the transition year is as follows

Vrluatiort Value of Accru€d Actuarirl Accruad Fuoded Covcrcd
UAAL rs f,

Parccntage of
Drt€ Ass€1s Lixbilitics LirbitilEg@llL Ratio pryroll Covcr.d pryrotl

7/U95 S -0- $ 20,229 S 20,229 00/. $ 4,154 4870/.

The schedule of employer contributions for the transition year is as bllows (expressed in thousands):

Fisarl Year
Ended

Atrnurl Raquirad
Contributiotr(ARC)

Strtc Stata Coltribution
Cool butiotr es a o/r ARC

6/30/96 $ 2,88t $ 9tE 320/.

Trend Information - Transition year trend information follows (expressed in thousands):

Fircrl Y€sr
Ended

Annucl
P.nsion Cost

$ 2,8E1

7o ofAnnurl Pension

Cost Contributed
Net Pcnsion

Oblig.tion

D. Post-RetirementlnsuranceBenefits
Any retiree of the State who meets the eligibility
requirements for retirement as outlined in sections A
through C of this note, and at the time of retirement is
covered or had his dependents covered by any group
insurance or medical and hospital service. has the
option upon retirement to continue group insurance. NRS
287.023 establishes this benefit uDon the retiree
assuming the portion of the premium not covered by the
State. For the year ended June 30, 1997, 3,521 retirees

3t.90/.

were covered at a cost of $5,875,781 which represents
63% of total costs. The State allocates funds for
payment of insuranc€ benefits as a percentage of payroll.
The cost of the employer contnbution is recognized in the
year the costs are charged. Any unused funds are
carried foMard to the next fiscal year. The carry foMard
to fiscal year 1998 was $86,628.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

The State of Nevada established the Self-lnsurance and

lnsurance Premiums funds in 1983 and 1979'

respectively. Both funds are classified as intemal service
funds, The claims liabilities of $451,486 in General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group, $9,830,000 in the Self-

Insurance Fund, and $5,848,323 in the Insurance

Premiums Fund at June 30, 1997, is recorded in

accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, which requires

that a liability for claims be reported if information

received before the issuance of the financial statements
indicates that it is probable that a liability has been

incurred at the date of the financial statements and the

amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These

liabilities do not include incremental claims adjustment

costs.

The property casualty insurance functions that are

accounted for in the General Fund are financed by the

State. At June 30, 1997, incurred but not reported claims

liability is based upon experience trends.

The Self-lnsurance Fund is financed primarily by the

State for group health insurance coverage. At June 30,

1997, incurred but not reported claims liability is based

upon the actuary's estimate for the Selflnsurance Fund.

The Insurance Premiums Fund provides self-insurance

for general, civil (tort) and auto liabilities of State

agencies. lt also accumulates workers' compensation
premiums for State employees and buys insurance from

Industrial lnsurance (SllS) which is reported as an

enterorise fund. At June 30, 1997, incurred but not

reported claims liability is based upon the actuary's

estimate for the Insurance Premiums Fund.

The State has a maximum exposure of $50,000 for each
general liability and fleet liability claim lt has a self-

insured retention of $200,000 for property and contents
per occurrence with an aggregate annual limit of

$400,000. When the $400,000 aggregate limit is met, the

deductible Der occurrence ls reduced to $50,000 and the

remainder is insured up to $100,000. Per State statute,

in the event of future general liability or fleet catastroPhic

losses and fund overage is exhausted, coverage would

revert to the General Fund.

There were no significant reductions in insurance

coverage from the prior year for group medical, general

liability, automobile liability, or property and casualty.

There were no material settlements in excess of
insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal
years.

Interfund premiums are reported as quasi-external

transactions of the Self-lnsurance and Insurance
Premiums funds. All State funds Participate in the
insurance program. Interfund premiums paid to the
General Fund are reported as reimbursements. Changes
in the claims liabilities during the past two fiscal years
were as follows (expressed in thousands):

G€tr€r.l lrng-
Term Obligations

Account Croup

S.lf Insurlnc€
Insurence PrcmiunN

Fuod Fund

claim paymenLs (341) _9,$-D_ (1,741)

Balance, July l, 1995 S

CIaim and changes

in estimates

Balance, June 10. 1996

Claim and changes

rn estimates

85$7,69ES4,463

590 53,831 2,662

334 9,098 5,384

't94 65,t96 2,ss6

claim paymenrs (676) (6s,064) (2,O92t

Brlancc,
rune 30, ree? !_-----4e- -{-----3!19- i--l!l!-
slls has established a liability for both reported and

unreported insured events, which includes estimates of
future payments of claims and related claim adjustment
expenses, and which is based on the estimated ultimate
cost ol settling claims. In estimating its liability for
incurred but unDaid claims, SllS considers prior

experience, industry information, currently recognized

trends affecting data specific to SllS and other factors
relating to worke/s compensation insurance underwritten
by SllS. Because actual claim costs depend uPon such
factors as duration of worker disability, medical cost
trends, occuDational disease and inflation, the process

used in computing the ultimate cost of settling claims and

expense for administering claims is necessarily based on

estimates. The following represents changes in the

aggregate liabilities for incurred but unpaid claims
(IBUC), net of reinsurance recoverable, for SllS during

the past two fiscal years (expressed in thousands):
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(Note tO continued)

Liabiliry for IBUC and ctaims
i(rjusthent exp€nses.
,uty I, undiscounred

Jhcafiedclo!rr'{,:
ffovtston for iDsured

^events 
of the cunerrt vearu€crelses in provision

Ior tnsured evenh
of prior years

Toral incurred ciaims

Liability for IBUC and ctaihs
adJustrnent expenses.
June 30, undiscouDred

t996

$ 2,443,000 $ 2,600,000 i,*, *i{ft "#",""::"i:"0 
:il3 1t x%%, :ri

r_3,:!999q-!_3g:.qq_
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For the Fiscat Y@r Ended Juna m' I 997
Notes to Statements

Fund balances, reserved for other and unreserved, designated fund balances at June 30, 1997, are explained as

follows (expressed in thousands)
Componant

Gov€mn.narl Fund Tvplt Tot'l Unit Tohl

ffi Fidu.i'"y p;..'v ffiiF n pomog

cencr|l Rcv!.u. -.]B!9- -4iE!- 
i4-E- Gov.mnmr svltcE Enritv

Futul bdan a, rut rvdlor ofi.r:
Res.n€d for prepaid it€ms
R.s€rved for noncutrcnt rc..ivablcs '

Resqved for nonorrr! rcccivabl.8 '
inlergovcmmcnlal

R€scflcd for fiscd cn|cr8lncY

Rcs.flcd for debt sdicc
Rcs€ded for ctDPloy€.J Mitctnc sv$cm

Reserved for thc ptitciptl ponion of non-

€xD€d&bl€ Eust tunds

R€rerved for €ndowncnl
Reserv€d for sp.ci6c futut€ allocariofls

Resered for Univ€rsity Syst.m
unexp€nded plant

Res€rved for University Syst m cun.nt
op€mting restict€d fund

R€s€rved for appropriations subjcct to rcv.rsion

md for r€findablc fcd.ral g'anrs

Tot l furd ]rl.nc.., rt .rvcd for olhcl

U n6avd bignd Iud botorc6 :
DcsigDd for apFovcd crpittl p.oj€cts

DcsigDat€d to pr!-r€dc a ponion of pincipal
pcr NRli 504.450

D€sigFat€d by Bosrd of Muscums and Hislory

Totrl uEs.rv.d, d6iSDri.d tund

8lE 1234a -0-

178 22 4-
+. l2a,M1 -0-

-0- 856,963 29,901

-0- 4- {l

-0- {- 4-
4- 4- -0-

-0- 4,000 -0-

-0- -0- -0-

4- -0- 4-

.0- {)- 200

+ -{r 128,86?

+ -{)- tE6.864

{- 9,200,65E 9200,658

1t6 g -0- t
-0"

736 S

13,516

{-s {-s -0- I

2,661

.0- 200

.0- 12E,86?

3,0t8 889.8t2
+ 9,200,65E

r6,111

61,244

t75,MO
4,500

4- 6t244
-0. 30

-0- 500

4- -0-

4- -0-

EnlcrDrila Scrvicc

893 $

6t,244 -0-

30 175,410

4,500 -0.

-0- l8l,l95 l8l,195

-0- 16,847 16,841

{- 11,620 -0- -0- 4' 11,620 7,497 t9,ll7
.D- 26.363 -0- -G 9 26,172 4' 26372

i f-732 S t.0.{0,483 t 29,901 t -{!s 9262,491 $ 10.334.607 3 386'628 I 10'721.235-

t -{r $ +$ -0- t 89,086 S -{! J 89'086 I {-l 89,086

4- -0- 900

1114- 4 -O 174 171 -G

s -Gr -0- s -0- 3 89,086 S 1,0?4 $ 9!J!q I '0' $ 90'160
4-::-

{-
-0-

Retained earnings is explained as follows (expressed in thousands):

Raotnad canlngs, raemed:
Reservcd for oD€ration atd mdntenance

Rcserved as sccuriiy for outstanding obligations

Total rttalnad armlng!, rcacn cd s 90.604 t -G t m,6M:-:
89,7t I

I 893

t9,71 |
4-
{)-

Proprl.trry Fund Typ.s
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The principal taxing authorities for the State of Nevada
are the Nevada Tax Commission and the Nevada
Gaming Commission.

The Nevada Tax Commission was created under NRS
360.010 and is the taxing and collecting authority for
taxes. The following are the primary tax revenues:

Sales and Use Taxes are imposed at a total rate of
6.57o, with local county option up to an additional
.5%, on all taxable sales and taxable items of use.
The State receives tax revenue of 2% of total sales
with the balance distributed to local governmental
entities and school districts. Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax
is levied at 23 cents per gallon on gasoline and
gasohol sales. 17.65 cents of the tax goes to the
State Highway Fund, the remainder to the counties.
Insurance Premium Tax is imposed at 3.5% on
insurance premiums written in Nevada. A "Home
Office Credit" is given to insurance companies with
home or regional offices in Nevada, but not to exceed
80% of the taxes due. Other Sources of tax revenues
are: Property Tax, Cigarette Tax, Estate Tax, Net
Proceeds of Minerals Tax, Business Tax, and Liquor
Tax.

The Nevada Gaming Commission was created under
NRS 463.022 and is charged with collecting state gaming
taxes and fees. The following sources account for
gaming tax revenues:

Percentaqe Fees are the largest of several State
levies on gaming. They are based upon gross
revenue and are collected monthly, The fee is
applied on a graduated basis at the following monthly
rates:

Three percent of the first $50,000 of gross revenue;
four percent of the next $84,000 of gross revenue;
and six and one quarter percent of the gross revenue
in excess of $134,000-

Casino Entertainment Taxes are imposed at 10o/o ol
all amounts paid for admission, food, merchandise or
refreshment, while the establishment is providing
entertiainment as specified in NRS 463.401. Flat Fee
Collections are levied on the number of gambling
games and slot machines operated. Licensees remit
from $20 to $106 per quarter per machine and pay a
fee at variable rates on the number of games
operated as established in NRS 463.373, NRS
463.375 and NRS 463.383, Several Other Sources
of gaming tax revenues are: Annual State Slot
Machine taxes, Annual License Fees and
Miscellaneous Collections, which consists of
penalties and fines, manufactureis, distributor's and
slot route operato/s fees, advance payments, race
wire fees, pari-mutuel wagering tax and other
nominal miscellaneous items.

The State has seven enterprise funds which provide the
services described below. Net working capital is not
shown for Housing Division and SllS in the table of
segment information since their balance sheets cannot
be classified.

The Colorado River Commission (CRC) is responsible for
managing Nevada's interest in the water and power
resources available from the Colorado River. The Power
Marketing Fund is required by the bond resolution
authorizing the financing of Nevada's share of the cost of
uprating the generating facilities at Hoover Dam. It is
used to record purchases and sales of power and other
power marketing related activities.

The Nevada Housinq Division was created to make
available additional funds to assist private enterDrise and

governmental agencies in providing housing facilities for
low and moderate income households. The Division is
currently authorized to issue its bonds, notes and other
obligations in an aggregate amount not to exceed
$1,250,000,000. These tunds may be used to make
loans to purchase mortgage loans from mortgage
lenders, and to make temporary loans and advances in
anticipation of insured mortgage loans or to finance
permanent mortgage loans for the construction or
rehabilitation of multi-unit residential housing.

Industrial Insurance (SllS) is a separate self-supporting
agency of the State, which provides insurance to
employers against liability for workers' compensation
claims. SllS also operates a rehabilitation center in Las
Veoas.
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Notes to
For tho Flsctl Y@r Ended June 30, 1997

(Note 14 continued)

Other funds include: Forestry Nurseries propagates,
maintains and distributes plants for conservation
purposes. Prison Industrv produces various products,

while employing and training inmates. Neyed4MggilC
publishes the State magazine to promote tourism.
Marlette Lake Water Svstem operates a water distribution
svstem.

Segment information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, is as follows (expressed in thousands):
Colondo
Rivc. Ho$itrg

CorDmilaior Divisior
Induslrid
Insurrncc Other Tolrl

Openting revenues

Depreciation exp€nse

Operating income

Op€rating granls

Op€mting interfund ttansfers out

Net income (loss)

Propcrty, planl ond cquipnql:
Additions and adjusEnents

Deletions and adjustmenls

Net working capilel

Total assets

Bonds and olher long-lerm liobiliti.f:
Payable from op€rating rcveoues

Payabl€ from othe. sourc€s

Total equiry (deficit)

24,175 S 65,849 $

55 8,73t
-0- -0-

-o- (31)

133 8,700

6J
-G.

932,511

814,747

-0-

92,094

4t1,436 S

325,380

-0-
(235)

418,550

10,949

574

1,691,O52

9,t63
84,155

(856,421)

5,745 $ 583,805

t87 3,493
356 334,522

62 62

(26) (2e2)

42t 447,904

-0-

-0-

2096
76,422

70,294

1.090

-0-

2,32)
5,621

I |,065
574

23,232
2,111,612

596 894,800

-0- t6,38E

4,185 (159,052)

A, Through the 1993 fiscal year, SllS experienced
several years of continuing severe operating losses and
cash flow deficiencies that resulted in an accumulated
deficit of over $2 billion at June 30, 1993. In reaction, the
Governor, the State Legislature and SllS' management
undertook a sweeping plan of legislation and
management reforms to address the issues affecting
SllS' operational profitability. Beginning with the 1994

fiscal year, SllS began a record of profitability and
positive cash flows. These changes resulted in
improvements that reduced the accumulated deficit to
$981,883,000 at June 30, 1997,

Management believes that the combination of changes
initiated to the operational and claims management
processes as well as the impact of recent legislative
changes have enabled SllS to generate net income and
positive cash flow, as well as decrease overall claims
liabilities, Further, as explained in Note 16, other
legislative changes enacted subsequent to June 30, 1997
are intended to bring about other positive changes in

SllS' fi nancial outlook.

SllS is involved in litigation arising out of matters incident
to the conduct of its insurance ooerations. In the oDinion

of management, resolution of this litigation will not have a
material adverse effect on SllS' financial Dosition,

B. In 1977 and 1989 the State issued $13,730,000
and $14,755,000, respectively, in General Obligation
Sewer lmprovement Bonds for and on behalf of Clark
County. To date, the bonds have been completely
serviced by Clark County; however, the State remains
contingently liable on the bonds through maturity on July
1, 2004. The amount of bonds outstanding at June 30,
1997, is $15,700,000.

C, The State Attorney General's Office reported that
the State or its officers and employees were parties to
numerous lawsuits, in addition to those described below.
In view of the financial condition of the State, the State
Attorney General is of the opinion that the State's
financial condition will not be materially affected by this
litigation, based on information known at this time.

Several of the actions pending against the State are
based upon the State's (or its agents') alleged negligence
in which the State must be named as a party defendant.
However, there is a statutory limit to the Stiate's liability of
$50,000 per claim. Such limitation does not apply to
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the Fiscat Year Ended June 3Q, 19!t7

(Note 15 continued)

federal actions such as civil rights actions under 42
U.S.C. Section 1983 brought under federal law or to
actions in other states. Tort claims are handled in

accordance with NRS 41 ,

The State is a party to several lawsuits that have been
filed under the federal civil rights statutes. In the district
of Nevada, none of the United States district judges have
ruled that the State is directly liable for damages awarded
under federal civil rights statutes. However, the State is
statutorily required to indemnify its officers and
employees held liable in damages for acts or omissions
on the part of its officers and employees occurring in the
course of their public employment. Several claims may
thus be filed against the State based on alleged civil
rights violations by its otftcers and employees. Since the
statutory limit of liability (discussed above) does not apply
in federal civil rights cases, the potential liability of the
State is not ascertainable at the present time.

D. PERS has entered into investment funding
commitments as of June 30, 1997. For altemative
investments, PERS has committed to fund $44,437,000
at some future date.

E. The State is obligated by leases accounted for as
operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to
property rights as capital leases do. Therefore, the
results ofthe lease agreements are not reflected in

the account groups. Lease expense for the year ended
June 30, 1997, amounted to $16,849,789. Following is a
schedule of future minimum rental payments required
under operating leases that have initial or remaining
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of
June 30, 1997, (expressed in thousands):

for 3he Ycrr

-@elg- 
.A^""t

1998 S 12,762

1999 11,170

2000 9 237

2001 6.837

2002 3,490
Thereafter 15,938

ro.rr ulll!

F. The University System (a component unit) is a
defendant or co-defendant in legal actions in several
jurisdictions. Based on present knowledge and advice of
legal counsel, management believes any ultimate liability
in these matters, in excess of insurance coverage, will
not materially effect the financial position of the University
System.

G. The Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate
requirement with respect to some bonds issued by the
State. Under this requirement, an amount equal to the
sum of (a) the excess of the aggregate amount earned
on all investments (other than certain specified
exceptions) over the amount that would have been
earned if all investments were invested at a rate equal to
the yield on the bonds, and (b) any income earned on the
excess described in (a), is required to be rebated to the
U.S. Treasury, in order for the interest on the bonds to be
excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. Rebatable arbitrage is computed as of each
installment computation date. The present value of the
rebatable arbitrage has been recorded in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1997.
Future calculations might result in ditferent rebatable
arbitrage amounts.

General Oblioation Bonds - The following bonds were
sold after June 30, 1997:

$81,090,000 Series July 15, 1997, A-1 and A-2 General
Obligation (Limited Tax) Retunding Bonds due in annual
installments of $5,000 to $15,135,000, plus interest, at
3.75o/o lo 6.00% through May 15, 2011. Bonds are
callable on or after May 15, 2007, at par plus a premium

ot 5.0o/o. Series 1997 A-1 Bonds are subject to the
constitutional debt limit. Series 1997 A-2 bonds are
exemot from the constitutional debt limit.

$5,545,000 Series September 15, 19978 (Limited Ta,
Revenue Supported) Water Refunding Bonds due in
annual installments of $30,000 to $775,000, plus interest
at 4.00o/o to 5.125o/o through July 1, 2012. Bonds are
callable on and after July 1, 2008, at par.

Colorado River Commission - The following bonds have
been sold by the Colorado River Commission after June
30, 1997:
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(Note 16 continued)

$49,270,000 Series September 15, 1997A (Limited Tax/

Revenue Supported) Power Delivery Project Bonds due

in annual installments of $815,000 to $1 ,940,000, plus

interest at 4,25% to 7.00% through Septembet 15, 2017.
Bonds are callable on and after September 15' 2008 at

oar.

- On October
71 ,319 lease

purchase agreement with Corrections Corporation of
America for a correctional fiacility for women in Southern

Nevada. The lease is payable in monthly installments of

$192,411 including interest at 5.5% through June 30,

2015, at which time all remaining unpaid principal is also

due. The management agreement calls for payment of

$40.03 per inmate day, with an annual inflation

adjustment. The management agreement concludes

June 30, 2015, or may be terminated by mutual consent

or unilaterally by the State without cause upon one

hundred eighty day notice.

Housino Division - In July 1997, the Housing Division

issued 1997 lssue C Single Housing Revenue Bonds in

the amount of $30,615,000. The last maturity of the

bonds is April 1,2029. On September 26, 1997, the

Division redeemed 52.8 million of the 1982 lssue A Multi-
Family Revenue Bonds for $2,554,924, resulting in a net
gain of $245,075.

lndustrial Insurance (SllS) - In July 1997, the Nevada

Legislature enacted Assembly Bill 609 which was
designed to make various changes to provisions

governing Industrial Insurance. One change was to allow

the business of SllS to be allocated among two new sub-

entities. New business and existing claims liabilities on

business writlen since July 1, 1995, will be the new sub-

entity 'New Fund," while business undeMritten and

incurred prior to that date will be the new sub-entity "Old

Fund." All future underwritten business will be recorded
in the "New Fund."

To facilitate the orderly transition of SllS' accounting
processes for these new sub-entlties, claims liabilities
related to business incurred before June 30, 1995, and

$650 million of cash and investments were transferred to

the "Old Fund' sub-entity. SllS' management believes
that such amount, together with future interest eamed
and appreciation thereon, will be sufficient to seftle claims
liabilities assumed.
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Comparative Balance Sheet
General Fund

Cash snd Noled investments:
Cash with f€asurer
Cash In custody ot other ofricials

Food slamp coupons
ReceivaUos:
Accounb receiYable
Tax6 r€c€itable
Accruld lntercsi and dlvidends
I ntergoYqmmental receiyables
Notea r€cetuable
olher recElvabl6

Due lrom othef funds
Due from cgm9onent units
Intertund r€c€lyableg
Advanc€€ to oiher funds
Offier assols;

PreDaid llems

Total i8rlis

Liab ruBf:
AccounE payaue and accruals:

Accounts p€yabl€
Accrued pafoll and rolat€d liabilities
Intergovernmental payabl€s

Contracts pafable
Due to other funds
Due to component units
Deferred revenue
Other liabilnles

Total llabilities

Fund batanc8:
Reserygd:
EncumbrancB and contrEcts
Advanceg
Balances forward
Othet:

Prepaid iterns
Other

UnrcseNecl:
Designated for budgel stabilization
Undesignated dencit

Tolal fund balancls

Total liabilities and fund balanc.r

20,204,508

s 871,973,829

t't0,390,508
8,833,3't0

15,002,626

321,427,286
27,103,947
99,729,1 13

t 04,096,697
I,601 ,277

41,730,049

1,702p90
343,990,050

4,36A,5n
98,097,455

7,875,254

611/62,249

2,441p03
3,621,603

268,634,736

736,059
995,648

(9,3s9,844

267,070,102

$ 87E,532,351

June 30,'1997

$ ,46,270,E07
1,E73,505

14,494,101

6,632,975
277,590,172
11,0n,$7

1M,O27,479
E18,198

377
20,947,492

1,900
435,426

3,621,603

736,059

$ 878,532,351

June 30, 1996
lncrcase

(Decrease)

$ 6,020,290
204,682

(e,7s4,1871

1,676,46
1s,4o1,579

152,879
12,107,156

1@,729
377

515,389
(2,387)

(136,425)
(2ffi,s17]-

(19,.t68,449)

$ 6,ss8,522

(6,293,8't r)
767,!57

26,727,421

1,702p90
22,'162,764

(2,73s,3701
(1,631,658)
(3,250,413)

(1,970,322)
(268,s17)

30,1733n

(19,2168,449)
109,730

(1O,1O7,240)-
(9,359,847)

2t30,250,517
1,668,823

24,252,2aA

4,956,569
262,188,593

10,924,578
91,920,723

708,,159

20,432,503
4,2A7

571,851
3,8S0,t 20

11,125,667

594,0't2,459

4,412,225
3,890,120

238,461,359

20,204,504
885,91E

10,10724
-0-

2n,961,370

$ 871,973,829



Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1997 with comparative totals fot 1996 Exhibit A-2

Gaming taxes, fees. licenses
Sales taxes
Intergovernmental
Other taxes
Licenses, fees and permits
Sales and charges for services
lnterest
Other

Cunent:
General government
Health and social se.vices
Education and supporl services
Law, justics and public safety
Regulation of business
Recreation and resource dev€lopmenl

lnterggvemmental:
Education
Other

Debt seryicta:
Principal
lnterest
Arbitrag€ paymenls

Total expenditurcs

Excess of rgvenues over
expend ituass

Proceeds trom ceDital leases
Proc€eds trom sale of bonds
Proceeds trom sale ol fixed asssts
Operating transfers in

Transfer from component unit
OpeEting transfeF out
Transfer to component unit

Total other financing
sourc€r (useg)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
fi nancing sou.ces over expendrtures
and other financing uses

Fund balances, July 1

Fund balanca!, June 30

Juno 30, 1997 June 30. 1996
Incroaso

(Decr€a!€)

(1,373,775\
51,930,415
14,645,563

5,984,657
5,486,673

598,277
3,249,907
5,108,771

85,630,488

422,410
7,898,730
2,747,325

12,387,504
2,302,372
7,500,358

26,098,390
17,535,283

271,974
44,662

137,823

77,346,831

8,283.657

1,168,525
6,030,450
(131,042)

13,917,239
43,78

(53,453,789)
(88,915,124)

(121,299,993)

(113,016,336)

102,125.058

545,585,170
554,890,629
719,931,100
249,514,950

82,031,493
24,777 ,730
36,531.326
29,223,v5

546,9s8,945
502,960,214
705,285,537
243,530,293
76,544,820
24,179,453
33,281,419
24,114,574

3 2,242,485,7 43 2,155,855,255

56,400,140
889,956,203
24,575,216

192,382,O24
35,208,581
72,328,172

549,924,753
48,276,624

522,359
95,3&l

137,823

55,977,730
882,057,473
21,427,891

179pg4,524
32,906,209
64,827,814

30,741,U1

250,385
50,702

-0-

1,86S,807,263

372,678,480

1,317,785
6,030,450

74,275
51,971,517

246,569
( 1 29,81 8,9,18)
(313,391,396)

(383,569,748)

(10,891,268)

277,961,370

$ 267,070,102

1,792,460,432

364,394,823

149,260
-0-

205,317
38,054,278

'162,821
(76,365,159)

(224 ,476,272)

(262,269,755\

102,125,068

175,836,302

52

$ 277,961,370 (10,891,268)



Special Raenue Funds acnunt for the reeeipt and use of gecifc
reuenues that are legally restricted for particalal purposes.

.sf '



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

State Highway Accounts 
- 
for the maintenance'

leouiation]ano construction of public highways and is.

irii"J tiii-sn vehicle tuel taxes' federal tunds' and

other charges (NRS 408 235)'

Legislative Accounts for the operation of .!t9
i;;;l;il and Legislative counsel Bureau (NRS

218.085).

463.385).

Cleanlng Up Petroleum Discharges Accounts for

f""t .off-"AiO and claims paid related to the use'

sioia; or oiscnarge of petroleum (NRS 590 830)'

(NRS 428.175).

Tourism Promotion Accounts for room taxes ano

oii,-e, 
- 

monies designated for the support of the

Commission on Tourism (NRS 231 250)'

(NRS 209.221).

Fort Moiave Valley (NRS 321 520)

Examiners (NRS 353.266)'

Gare of Sites for Radioactive Waste Disposal

n"counts for receipts for the care of sites for the

disposal of radioactive waste (NRS 459 231)'

I
I

I
I

)
I

)

I

I

l

i

I
)

I

J

I

)



the Legislature and Govemor declare that a fiscal
emergency exists (NRS 353.288).

Miscellaneous Accounts for receipts and expenditures
related to compensation of victims of crime (NRS
217.26O); fees related to private investigators and
recoveries for unfair fade practices (NRS 228.096);
prosecution of racketeering (NRS 207.415); the office
of advocate for customers of public utilities (NRS
228.310)i administration of capital improvement
projects (NRS Y1.146); and substance abuse
education, prevention; enforcement and treatment
(NRS 458.400). lt also accounts for appropriations
and interest income for support of museums and

history (NRS 381.0064); loans for farm projects (NRS
516.405); fees collected from ownerc of mobile home
parks to provide mobile home lot rent assistance to
fow-income mobile home owner (NRS 1188.215);
liquor taxes collected for and gifrs received by the
Department of Human Resources (NRS 232.355);
loans and stipends to students in professional and
graduate programs where such education is not
available from an institution within the State (NRS
397.063); appropriations, donations and interest
income to support the National Judicial College and the
National College of Juvenile and Family Law
(NRS1.470 and 1.480); and appropriations for disaster
relief grants and loans to state agencies and local
governments (NRS 353.2735).



Combining Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 1997 with comparctive totals for 1996

State
Highway

$ 164,372,437
422,471

+
565,871

15,341,697

7,793$25

41,755,&
-u-

2,2't2
9,668,595

4s,757,262
a <a',

Claaa-6ize
Reduction

Employmenl
securily Regulaiory Legislative

Cash and pooled investments:
Cash with treasurer
Cash in custody of other officials

lnvestments

Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Accrued interest and dividends
Intergovemmental receivablG
Notes receivable

Due from other funds
Due from cgmponent unlt
lnterfund receivables
Inventory
Advances to olher tunds
Restricted assets (non-cash)
Prepaid items

Total assets

Llabilidas:
Accounb payable and accruds:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Intergovemmental payables

Contracts payable
Due lo other funds
Due lo compone.f unil
Defered revenue

other liabllltles:
Pa)rable from restricted assets

Total liabilities

Fund batances:
Reserved:
Encumbrances and contracts
Inventory
Ad'Jances
Balancas forward
Other:

Fiscal emergency
Investments in municipal securities
RevoMng loans
Other

UnreseNed:
Undesignaled

Total fund balances

Total liabllities and tund balances

$ 3,254,809
6,2U,198

11 ,127,854

10,987,615
13,411,485

32,7
679,215

4s,757,62

91,535,234

8,201,044 $

-0-
-0-
-0-
4
-0'

9r5,r51

+.

9,631,097
225

10,429
494,952

780,537
4-

439,147

1 1 ,1 15,165
239,0U

-0-

568,075

-0-
4,167

-0-

E3,974

4,533,217
161,353

+
4

-0-
-0-

2E0,950
-0-

0
0
0
-0- 14,781 50,e16

$ 2A5,709,741 $ 9,116,19s $ 11,356,387 $ 12,025,26 $ 6,021,956

-G

-0-
-0-
-0-

4
-0-
-0-
-0-

+9

{).
.G

4a7,192
s30,480

29,068

714,Am
139,64i)

-0-

254,059
203,144

3,340

1,236,494
2,500

4,348,306

223,O49
688,681

188,385
452,016

{t
-0-

1,fiI,411 6,051,84i! 1,552,171

117,A13,542 4 4,834
9,668,595 + -{L

26,555 +. 4
25,866,582 -0- -G

13,324 544,260
-{1. 280,950

-0- 4,672,173

4-

4,799,233 9, 6,195 9,4fi,142 5,960,079 972,42

1 ,174,fi7 9,1'6,19s 9,.+31,976 5,973,2n3 6,,t59,7Es

$ 28s,7O9,741 $ 9,116,195 $ 11,356,387 $ 12p2s2$ $ 8,021,956



Exhifit &1

lrunlclpal Comp€n€ation Cap rl P€tloleum Indlgenl

$ 19,894,290 $ 15,705,210 $ 15,747,m7 $ 2,61,727 0 3,339,4{4 $ 2,71E,92s $ 2,432362 $+ 300 + -G, {L -0- +

Bond gank and Sat€ty Conclnrc{lon Disqhargcs Persons

856.9dt.068 -G +

TouriEm Offendcrs' Colorado Rlvcr
Promotlon Stote Comis6ion

9,9.15,657

7,6E9,562

155,rt62

1,2o2

fi2,n0
-{}

-G
-G
JL

47,UI
{t

64,300

.G

7E9,769

.$

86,332
-G

a o,t,l

-G

.G

163,236+

-0-

1.13,060

303,.106

+

3,4F,51n
m

70,ffi

-0-

374,n1

-(r

+
1 17,086

-()-
-0-

.{r $

-0.

571,034 $ 146.300 $
21,357 4,81

127,629 -G
+. -G

203,525
23,601

1,197,978

.G
3,211

327,U1

3),389
-0-

3,.166

$694,692,547$16,24,&$15,859,3.18$2,118,813$4,311,n4$2,808,168$3,042,064$3,941,321

2s0 $

1,265,836

-0-
134,3E9

3E4,031 $
169,491

3,296

974,767
155

.G

+s

-()-
5,'t34,5&

73,0S9 $
-(l

1E5,'t38
-()-
-G.

1,420,475 '1,535,7rO 5,'t 34,504 N,237 753,875 214,161 1,755,65/{t

-G

-o-

{r

-o-

-&

-G20,6n

-G

.o-

303,406
27,576

856,963,038
9,9115,65/

8,ffi,377

+ 14,668,€6 10,724,W f ,860,576 4,311,n4 2,t2,,237 2,524,42A 2,158,088

&c4,272,O72 't4,ffi,724 10,724,A4 1,860,576 4311,n4 zw,m 2,827,98 2,185,664

$ 894,692,547 $ 16,24,64 $ 15,859,3.18 $ 2,11E,E13 $ 4,311,774 $ 2,808,168 $ 3,042,064 $

-o-
-0-

+.

-0-

3,U1,321



Combining Balance Sheet
Soecial Revenue Funds

Exhibit B-1
June 30, 1997 with comparative totals for 1996 Page 2 of 2

Car€ ot Slte3 Stablllz€ the
for Radioactiv€ Opcrations ot

Wasle State
Conting€ncy Disposal Govcmment Miscellaneous

Total All Funds

1997 1996

Cash and pgghd lnvestmants:
Cash with treasurer
cash in custody of other ofticials

lnv€stments

Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Taxes recei\€ble
Accrued interGt and dMdends
Intergovemmental receivablG
Notes receivable

Due from other funds
Due from componenl unil
lnterfund r€ceivables
Inventory
Advances to other tunds
Reslricted a$ets (non{ash)
Prepaid items

Total asEets

Ltab t es;
Accounts payable and accruds:

Accounts paydble
Accrued payroll
Inlergovemmental pafablF

Contracb payable
Due lo other funds
Due to componenl unil
Deferred revgnue

Other liabilitios:
Payable trom Gslricted assets

Total liabilitie6

Fund batances:
Reserved:

Encumbranc6 and contracts
Inventory
Advances
Balanc6 forvlard
Othet

Fiscal emerg€ocy
Investments in municipal securitiF
RevoMng loans
Other

Unreserued:
Undesignaled

Total tund balance8

+-G
-G. 11,500

-G 22,2A7

-0- 107,$0
-0- 2,701,83

5,474,82 10,920,084
0
0
0
0
0
0

823,683 1,113,532

856,974,538 391,985,862

1,nO,194 
',2O6,32815,953,735 12,&,474

+ 107
14,444,837 21,3€5,72.
2,701,83 2,411,542

73,699,228 r50,392,s04
-G 392

2,212 I,072

8,E56,,[44 $ 8,793,950 $ 123,392,m $ 9,907,728 $ 414,127,654 $ 3M,8'l0,141
-o-

4
-0.

-{)'

,14,668+
-(L
-G

2'40

1 ,389,077

-G.
10,709,030

28,767
$,757,262 38,888,865

69,124 73,217

$ 10,267,925 $ 8,970,357 $ 128,866,608 $ 23,670,542 $ 1,,141,003,.156 $ 935,113,955

-G
,10,388

-G

,197,620 $
66,128

91s

-0'
102,433

36,631
87,350

6.099,009 $
8,031,561

13,r/5,916

11,176,000
2,,447,451

5,445,678

9.129,660
6,596,703

13,420,747

9,361,3,16
35,872,868

186,244
8,088,552

4$+
-G.

{-
-0-
-0-
-0-

-G$
-o-
-0.

29

+$
-G
-(r

0
0
0
0

6,757262 38,884,865

40,388 29 -0- 791,277 ',t12,945,002 121,545,025

-o

-G
2,M

4

4++
4

7,268

+

118,463,557 1U,492,756
r0,252,951 r0,709,030

26.555 28.767
30,538,755 27,ffi,744

12E,E66,60E 1 ,392,26
855,963,038 &1,974,362

9,945,657 37,378,76
44,707,260 7,456,342

10,20E'137 E,970,328

| 2E,E66,608
-{)-
-G
-G

-G

4++
14321,43

4,550,514 124,?34,073 111,126,997

10,27,537 8,970,328 't28,866,608 2.,879,265 1,328,058,441 8't4,568,930

Tolaf fiabilitfes and tund balances $ 10,267,925 $ 8,970,357 $

58

12E,866,608 $ 23,670,542 $ 1,441,003,456 $ 936,113,955
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Combining Statement of Revenues' Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Special Revenue Funds

srate gl":s :J:: EtpJJffiil n"gur"tory Lesislative
Highway Rcduct|on

-G+
73,488,759

312,591,95,|

631,620 *131,516 -:
_n-

386,S66,051 55,713'459

5S,S42,388 (41,427,945) 2',319',106 3',692',016 (42',372'1601

ue5

Cwraot:

TransPorbtion
Recreration, resource devebPmem

lntetgovemmental:
Educaiion
Other

Debt seryice:
PinciPal
lnter6t
Bond issuance cods

Total Gxpenditure8

Exc63 (deficiency) of revenues

over o9enditures

op€ratlng transfers in

Transler from componsm unl

eni

Total othcr fimnclng
goulces (usesl

Exc6s (deficiency) ol revenues anq

othel financing sources over

expenditurF and other llmncing uses

Fund balances, JulY 1

Fuld balanccs, Junc 30

.l

I
I

I

+.

55,713,459

+.
32,72.,W1

-{l
+
4-
-0-

15,7/15,695

42,843,86

-G
-G

-G.

-G.

-G
+.
+.

{J-+
500

-0-

1,756,526

2Jn,721
-0-

(8,544,662)
(4.370)

39,,|09,870
-0-

(13O,6E0)
-0-

(s,5E6,836)

59,870

17,061
1,160,134

(4.871,363)
-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-

32,,|11,601
.G

(58,039)

+

I
I
I

/
I

I

I
I
I
I
?

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

)
I
II

a0- -u-_0_ .u-.0- '\J'_0. -(F

(4,614,7S5) 38,979,1s0 (s',284',213) (3',631'29E) 32',O53',562

54,227,ffi (2,4]s5) (2,965'l0a 57,718 (10,31E'598)

139,e46,9o4 11,s64,s50 rz,azo'oea s'91i'999 
-........j@

-, 

,*uo- 

-, 

"r'tr* 3_.....@l t'** I 6'45'€'?85
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Exhlbit &2

Municipal
Eond Bank

compenEation capital Petroleum
andSafety Conslrucllon Discharges

Indigent
Pet6on6

TourlBm
Prorption

offende?s' coloradoRivel
Siore Cor nission

-G$
5,970,993 |,N,O74

-0- 15,550,588
-0- 213,569
-0- 8,804

33,193,94'1 1,038,709
1,316,369 1,589,532

/|t),,|a1,303 19,691,276

4,+

+
-0-

6,663,879

-G $ 15.168,527 $ -o- $ +$
327,000 -G

8,575,174 7,980,€5

-0-
308,797

-G

+$ -{r
-G 1 ,005,017-0- -0-

68,640 4- -0-
1,144 7,196,003 562,28

-G$

-0- I,E34,496.0. 435,350
-0- .0-
-0- 156,616 + 117,735

+ z&,5o7 24390

15,168,527 10,426,62 9,210,971 8,050,219 7,544,245 1,798,,1s0

-G

8,718,081

5,046,476+

3,392,862

0
G
0
0
0
0

6 184 427

-{)'
-o-
-0-

5,978,3,16

-0-
-0-

206,815

+

1,632,39

2,210,@0

500
{)-

-G

4.
4,

{r

4-

+.
4

4

.G
++

.0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

+-o-
-(l

-(!
{r

-0-
-G.

6,664,379 12,231,7s8 8,718,0E1 8,441,338 6,1U,427 5,978,3,16 3,842,339

33,8'f6,924 7.,159,518 15,168,527 1,708,381 769,633 1,865,792 1,565,899 (2'0'+3'889)

-0. -0-
475,439,750 -0-

0
0+

463,AA1,271

429,390,801

-0-
11,345

(1 5,31 7,935)
(1,169,594) -G

0
0
0
0

(1 s0o)
-G
0
0

24,443
-G

(3,080,,166)
4-

++
(724,3941+

-0-

-0-

-0-
{-

(2,24s)

-0-

(i15,386,7,4) (6,G)2,0,19)++
19,9S0,250 -0-
(19,990,250) -o-

4@,cf.4,347 (6,0s2,0,19). (1 6,'1E7,s29) (390,s{X} (1 ,500) (3,0ss,623) (724,3p4) (21 '1m)

1,367,,69 (l,319,002) 1,317,877 768,133 (1,189,831) 841,505 (2,065,009)

13,321,255 12,043,8,15 s42,699 3,543,641 3,244,124 1 '986,398 4250'673

$ afrJ272p72 $ 14,ffi]24 $ 10J24,84 $ 1,860,576 $ 4,311,774 $ 2,031,293 $ 2,A27 '9['3 $ 2'lE5'664

6'l



Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Special Revenue Funds

Exhlbit &2

Care of Sites
fol Radloactive Operation6 ol

Waste State
DiEpocal covemrEnt Miscellaneous

Total All Funds

Conlingency

@
Gaming taxes, fees, licenses
Inlergovemmental
Olher taxes
Lic€nses, fees and permit€
Sales and charg€s tor servicG
lnlerest
Other

Tolal revenucs

@
Cunent:

General govemment
H6alth and social seMces
Education and support services
Law, justice and public safety
Regulation ot business
Transportation
Recreation, rFource development

Intergovemmentel:
Education
Other

Debt setuice:
Principal
Int€r61
Bond issuance costs

Total expenditules

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over ogenditures

Proceeds from caDital leases
Proc€eds trom saie of bonds
Proceeds from sale of fxed assets
Operaling transfers in
Transler from component unit
Operating transters out
Trdnsfer to comDonent unit
Proc€eds of refunding bonds
Payment to retunded bond agenl

Tolal olher financing
souaces (uscs,

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
olher financing sources over
exp€ndilures and other financing uses

Fund balanc€s, July I

Fund balances, June 30

-G.
-G

-0- $

-0-

_0_ $

-G
't59,120

523,698
100

-0- $

1,950,668
4,393,037

20,493,661 $ 19,874,527
't59,637,970 152,03'1,369
255,555,373 230.830.986
't 'f 6,59'f ,099 10a,a29,771'f9,570,154 16,722,160
49,624,913 34,147,6aa

953,209 14,654,796 10,123,456

-0-

+

.0-

.G
-{!

-G
-{!

.G

-G.
63,442

+
4-
-0-

+

4+-0-

2,276,459
621,803
665,,190

4,229,849
35a,2/6

-0-

19,791,687
31,033,3,14

577,144
75,A51,44
25,766,595

34,182,ffi
15,723,839

43,4/6,173
8,3&t,980

799,842
't95,598

4+

(239,,1o3)+
-0-
-0-

4-
.0-

5,474,382

+

1U,414,2&
4,905

76,42A,227
70,000

(7 4,O79,5751
(2,561,080)

-0- 1,E16,396
-G 475,.139,750
+. 18,186

10,A74,293 92,,154,993
-0- -0-

(146,657) (96,678,396)
4 (1,{4,U4')
-G 19,990,250
-0- (9,990,250)

(s,0o7,4'f4) (239,/03) - 5,474,82 10/27,6jG 471,7$,26 194,276,727

(5,O74.276) 380,073 5,4743A2 10,554,07t 513,4a9,524 2Ot,tOO,888

f5,30'f,8,f3 8,590,255 - 123'392fifi 12,325,194 8.t4,568,930 613,$8,042

8,970,32E $ 128,866,608 $ 22,879,265 $ 1,328,0s8,,154 $ E|4,S6B,93O

682,918 -(r 7,9A2,507 636,128,165 572,ss9,957

45,1U,632
38,456,622

665,490
83,696,954

,336,229
312,s91,951

16,538,542

55,713,959
12,311,981

742,112
166,455

-0- 2,207

63/42 8,156,O72 5p4,384,927 565,735,796

(66,862) 619.476 -(L (173,565) 41,743,29 6,A24,161

4.
{L

1,208,181

(6,215,595)++

43,A27

-o-
.G

-0-
23,035



Debt Seruice Funds accortrtt fbr the paynart of principal
and intercst on gcneral longtenn bonds.



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

consoridatod Bond rnre,ost and Redemption - Acc'Tyl"l= Iflli:iji:ffi$lfi::::l til["jefjffi6t"*"t on

;;ffififi;; bonds of the state' Bonds have been issued ro

Finar "H:::Y
Purpose lssued Ma$riv 5'30'96

J
I

I
I

I
/
I
I
I
II
I

I
?

I
I

I

I
I

I
II
I
I
I

/
I
I
I
I
)
I
I
I
I
I
I
t

Purchase of Municipal Securities

Capital Consfuction, Acquisition

and Renovation

UniversitY Proiects

Recreation and Resoulce Development

Various Purposes

Highway lmProvemen
(Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax)

s 2.205.095,245
-L.:-

$ 1.630,536,245

$ 863,665,000

672,750,000

't08,074,000

536,721,245

23,885,000

2027 $ 795,785'000

2016 399'490'000

2013 72,485,000

20'16 3/,5,201'245

2011 ',17,575'000

[YJ#:'rHJ::ff 3'.H ,i"-tJTri".i6monies 

nor the pavment or principarand interest on the rorrowins hishwav

$ 12?J!9499- leee !-4!99-

Some issues have been parlially refunded by various refunding issues'
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Combining Balance Sheet
Debt Service Funds

June 30, 1997 with comparative totals for 1996 Exhibtt Ci

Total Both Funds
cong Bond
Interest and
Redemptlon

$ 39,6s0,349
12,921

406',323,471

6,893,474

Highway
Rgvgnqg
Bond3 1997 1996

Cash dN 
'€,oled 

investmenls:

Cash with treasurer

Cash in custody of other oficials
IntErgovem[€ntal rec€ivables

Due fiom other tunds

Total assot!

Uilititiq6.:
Ac@unts payable and aarudls:

Accounts payable

Matured interest payeble

Matured bonds payable

Interest payable

Due to other funds

DeE[ed revenue

Bonds payable

Total liabilltles

Fund balmces:
Reserved for debt servica

Total llablllUer and fund bdanc€

630,743

-0-
-0-

62,508

$ 40,281,092

12,921

406',323,471

8,955,982

$ 21.380,858

12,921

418,352,693
12,582,515

$ 454,880,215

$ '12,986

7,921

5,000

7,216,702
7,889.919

405,815,195
4,725,000

$ 693,251 $ 455,573,466 $ 452,328,987

-G
.G.

$ 12,986

7,921

5,000

7,216,702
7,889,919

405,815,195
4,725,000

$ 109,915

7,921

5,000

7,714,374

412,560,984
4,515,000

425,672,723 425,672,723 424,913,194

29,207,192 693,25'l 29,900,743 27,415,793

$ 454,880,215 693,251 $ 455,573,466 $ 452,328,987
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Debt Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with comparative totals for 1996 Exhibit C-2

Total Both Funds
Cons Bond
lnterest and
Redemption 1997 1996

Highway
Revenue
Bonds

@
Intergovernmental

Taxes
Interest

Other

Total rcvenues

@
Debt seryice:

Principal

Interest, flscal charges

Bond issuance costs
Arbit.age payments

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues

over expenditures

Proceeds from sale of bonds
Operating lransfers in

Transfer trom component !nit
Operating transfers out
Transfer to component unit

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
linancing sources over expend ures

and other financing uses

Fund balances, July 1

Fund balanc6, Jun6 30

16,414,O24

51,885,180

2,991,248
E18

16,414,024
79,271,370

2,991,248

818

10,366,876

82,037,130

2,591,530

71 ,291 ,270 27,386,190 98,677,460 95,095,536

47,575,000

74,191,414
149,273

13,7 t5

24,420,000
3,409,410

-o-

-0-

71,995,000

77,600,824
149,273

13,715

149,758,412

77,435,000

59,789,386

267,U3
-0-

121,929,402 27,829,4 t0 137,491,929

(50,638,132)

29,550

s3,430,999
290,3't3
(1 1,345)

(173,215)

(443,22O)

0

0

0

0

0

(5r,081,352)

,o 44n

53,430,999

290,313
(11,345)

(173,215)

53,566,302

(42,396,393)

1't5,750
45,427,485

(193,637)

53,566,302 45,749,598

2,924,170

26,279,322

(443,2201

1,136,471

2,484,950

27,415,793

3,353,205

24,062,588

s 29,207 ,492 $ 29,900,743 27,415,793693,251







CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Parks Capital Project Construction Accounts for the
parks improvements program for the Division of
State Parks of the Department of Conservation and
Natural Resources (NRS 4O7.065).

Capital lmprovement Program - Motor Vehicle
Accounts for capital improvement projects for the
Department of Motor Vehicles and Public Safety
{NRS 341.146}.

Capital lmprovsment Program - Human Resources
Accounts for capital improvement proiects for the
Dspartment of Human Resources (NRS 341,146).

Capital lmprovement Program - University System
Accounts for capital improvement projects for the
University and Community College System of
Nevada (NRS 341 .1461.

Capital lmprovement P.ogram - Genelal State
Government Accounts for capital improvement
projects tor general government (NRS 341 . 146).

Capital lmprovement Progiam - Special Projects
Accounts for asbestos removal and mast€r plan
proiects of the Public Works Board (NRS 341 .146).

Capital lmprovem€nt Program - Prison System
Accounts for capital improvement proiects for the
Department of Prisons (NRS 341.146).

Capital lmprovemont Program - Military Accounts
for capital improvement proiects for the Department
of Military (NRS 341 .146).

Capital lmprovement Program - Wlldlife Accounts
for capital improvement projects for the Department
of Wildlife (NRS 341 .146).

Miscellaneous Accounts for capital improvement
projects which are not directed by the Public Works
Board.



Combining Balance Sheet
Capital Projects Funds

June 30, 1997 with comparative totals for 1996

Pa (s Capit l
Proj€ct

Construction

ctP
Hrrnan

Resoutces

ctP
Unlver8ity
Sy6t€m

ctP
Gen State

Govl

ctP
Motor

Vehicle

Cash \rrith treasurer
Receivablas:
Intergovemmental receivable

Due from other funds

Total assets

@
Liabilities;
Accounb payaue and accruals:
Accounis payable
Intergovernmental payables

Contrac|s payable:
Contracts payable
Retentlon payable

Due to other funds
Due to component unit
Oetered revenues

Total liaDiliths

Fund balances:
Rgs€rvgd

Encumbrances and contracts
Unreserved:

Designaied for approved
capltal projects

Undesignated

Total tund balances

Toial liabilities and frrnd bahnces

$ 4E,491 $ 5,566 $ 14
48,000 .0- -0-

2,5;5,843 $ 17,572 $ 3,423,62 $ 5,0,16,613 $ s2,163,455

1 E,700 -0- 4. -0- -0-
799,026 | 5,330,206 12,787,087 72,n4,597 16,244,296

$ 3,3,(3,s69 $ 1 5,347,7/8 S I 6,21 0,5rts $ 77 ,X1 ,21o $ 6E,t1o7,751

5,5'f 3 $ 2E,210
-0- 27,118

712,806 3,253,079
533,683 1,833,664

184,349
20,,$3
31,868

625,499
136,599
181,716

297,18O
92,568
82,975

-G
4

292,413
75,706,395+

2n,528
25,27,903

4
-O' +
+{.

333,t9t 949,380 472,737 77,251,210 9,647,702

613,863 3,050,E90 1.047,573 .G

2,396,s1s | |,347,508
-0-

14,690,239

6,9E9,909

30,n0,1400
0

3,010,378 14,398,398 15,737,A12 37,760,049

$ 3,343,569 $ 1 5,347,778 $ 1 6,21 0,5rts $ 77 ,81 ,21O $ 68,.107,751
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Exhlblt D1
Total All Funds

ctP
Spccial

ctP
Pdson ctP

Proj€ctc Sysicm Mllnary
ctP

Wildlile

{r $ 33,,160,381 $ 2.518.315 $ 3.723.753

.G 79J02 4.

-G$102,879,394$137,227,A1A

{L 97,802 2,5f.2,U7

Mircellaneous 1997 1996

-{L 1,W,327 -& 406,558 119,752,@7 10,960,036

$ + I 35,4/0,708 $ 2,597,417 $ 3,73,753 $ .to6,s58 $ U.,7?p.,m3 $ iSO,77O,2o1

-G

$ 19,s7r $

+
-(r
-s

a1

.(}'

.G

$ 13,797
-(l

2,443,912
1,507,036
1n,w

75,000

$ 121,399
75,.t,t8

7,608,830
4,6/.1,161

994,E33
| 00,s4,298

75,0i13 1,114,320

114,ffi,ffi2 42s21,7654,167,674 609,207 19,5n

7,357,559

92,0(F
516,92E

-G

€

120,5E3

1,86'7,627
JL

3,7U,176
-G

11,606 19,191,983

41,139
n,2e

5,7n,fi3
2,082,995

674,612
33,255,,198

10,736,320

99,782,371394,92 E9.086.628
-0- (2,670,255)

-O- 31 ,2n,tn | ,9EE,2l 0 3,704,176 .106,558 I 08,278,61 I 1 07,8,t0,,136

$ -0- $ 3s,44o,70E $ 2,597,417 S 3,723,753 $ ,$6,ss8 $ -ry_ g_lso,zo2gl_

+ 23,915,471
+ -{!
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Capital Projects Funds

Fot the Fiscal Yeat Ended June

Pad(s capital
Projesf

con6{ruc'iion

ctP
HurEn

Resources

ctP
Universlty

System

t9

'tdl,@4
+

7,505

171,1g9

+$+
.o-

+9 -0- $
-o-
-0- 247,123

247,123

Total erpendltures

Deticiency of rev€nugs
over e)pendltureg

Proceeds from sale of boodg
Operating transfeE in
Operating traNferB out
Transter to componq unit

Tolal othcr fnrncing aoulcc6 lusesl

Exc6s (defriency) ot revenus€ and ofrier
tinancing souic€3 ovor €xp€nditurG
and other tlnancing us€g

Fund balances, July 1

Fund balanccE. Juns 30

1,030,16E 2,914,711

1,030,168 2,914,711

(8sE,e69) (2,914,711)

+
't,066,750

(,14n

-(L
7,2E1942
(149,300)

.G

2,688,513

2,688,513

(2,688,s13)

12,787,87
(82,97s)+

6,572,016

8,572,016

(8,324,693)

37,6z3p45
15,884,920

(689,23s)
(36,073,21s)

-G+

| ,067,603 7,132,U2

208,64 4,217,931

2,801,744 10,180,467

$ 3,010,378 $ 14,398,398

12,7U,112

'10,0'15,599

5,72.,213

$ 15,737,412

16,7,15,515

8,420,62.

29,339,427

$ 37,760,0'19

0

0



bhibitu2

Total All Funds

,"Bi:51 ffill' Mirr."ry wrq*.'

.o-$ +. $ 5,472,173 s *'oI $

q-
59,ei9 --q- '--q -'*- M.21

1996

Wildlils Miscelhneous leel1997

-G$6,12.9,99'"'u*'u* u,62541,323
a17,574314,&7

-tu b'+rc'or "6,475,62q
4,4,942

ctP
Prison

.0. '" "''-

41,323

1O1i62 5,472J73

+ 2sat1.6z 3.s12368 +* 
21'87 .....# 

27'e31'20s

-:- :i:" 12 
=C 

1'546'1e1 
---G 'l€'2s€'-ot5 27 e31'ffi

4- (2E'91 O'3OO) 1 ',959',806 
(1 

'061 ',970) e1 ',487) (42'621 ',O3S) Q3',81 'zdn

+ (23'308'9ss) '1',959',S05 0'





Enterprise Funds account for operations tlnt are fnanced
and operated bt n ntattner sintiltt' to ptiadte businesscs.

Tbe intent oJ'the state h tbat the cost ofproufuling these goods ntd
struices be fnanced or recot,ered pt intaily through usn cltarges.

i". "".





ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Colorado River Gommission Water Trcatment
Accounts for the operations of the Affred Menitt
Smith Water Treatment Facility. Such operations
were transferred on January 1 , 1996 to the Southern
Nevada Water Authority (SNWA), a utility supplying
water to retailing entities in Clark County, Nevada
( .8.542, Chapter393, 1995).

Colorado River Commission Water Transmission
Accounts for the ooerations of the Robert G. Griffith
Water Project (federal facilities). Such operations
were transferred on January '1, 1996 to SNWA (A.8.
542, Chapter 393, 1995).

Colorado Raver Commission Powet tlarketing
Accounts for the State's share of the cost of uprating
the generating facilities at Hoover Dam, which was
financed through the sale of bonds. The fund also
records purchases and sales of power and other
power marketing related activities, which include
constructing a $75 million transmission and
distribution system to provide electricity to the
Southem Nevada Water Authority's new water
transmission facilities serving the Las Vegas Valley
(NRS 538.211).

Housing Division Accounts for the State program

to assist private lenders in providing low interest
housing loans to low and moderate income
households. The program is financed through the
sale of bonds (NRS 319.170).

Industrial Insurance Accounts for the operations of
the State Industrial Insurance System. The system
provides statutory benefits of medical care, disability
comoensation and rehabilitation services for workers
who are injured or contract an occupational disease
in the course of their employment (NRS 6168.086).

Forestry Nurseries Accounts for the self-
supporting operation of State nurseries, which
propagate, maintain and distribute plants for
conservation purposes (NRS 528. 1 00).

Prison Industry Accounts for a self-supporting
program of job training through the employment of
inmates in farming and manufacturing (NRS
209.189).

Nevada Magazine Accounts for the operation of the
pubfication, Nevada Magazine, which is published to
promote tourism (NRS 231.290).

Marlette Lake Water System Accounts for the
costs of operating the State-owned Marlette Lake
Water System. The system serves the State
Buildings and Grounds Division and portions of
Carson City and Storey County (NRS 331.180).



Combining Balance Sheet
Enterprise Funds

June 30, 1997 with comparative totals for 1996
Color.do

Rlvor
Commlrtlon

$ 902,021

-0-

2,257,256
-0-
-o-

172,151
-0-
-0-

17,200,E77
+
-G

4,627,795
746,223

45,774,745
-G
-0-

4,700,455

-G

2,233,334

8,435,265

$ 1E6,E95

171,213,916

+
6,523,626

-0-

532
-0-

{)-
73,0E5,560

670,,{51,92

I0, t88,8'14

16.657
106.680
362,819

(220,526)

-tt
{-

t 97,7,12,000
3,737,000

1,356,969,000

106,E67,634
10,E96,000

-0-

s46,32

646,000

-o-
{-
+

466,000
-0-

882,000
3,r,9,000

't5,,125,000

32,806,000
(25,352,000)

119,432
(96,811)

Pdaon
Indugtry

$ 933,633

200.280

213U
383,921

5,164
843,148

-G
-0-
-0-

-0-

20.579
2,'t79,601

(1,745,450)
-0-

Hou!lng
DlYlrlon

Indugt,lal
Inlunlnc9

Forqstry
NU]!€ri€g

Cash and Doded hveslments:
Cash wilh treasur€r
Cash in custody ot other officials

lnv€3tmgnts

R6c6ivEb/esi
Accounts receivable
Acc|t€d inleresl and dividerds
Inteeovemmental aeceivables

Ous from other funds
Oue from comDonent unit
Invenlory

ReshAed assetsl
Cash
Non-c€sh

MorlgagE loans r6c6ivable

Ddfenad charyas and olter assetsj
Prepaid expenses
Detered charges
Oth€r ass€ts

Land
Struclures and improvements
Fumilure and equipmenl
Ac,cumulated deDrecialion
ConElruclion in progres8

Tottl a!99t!

@
Ll.Ufftles:
Accounts payable and eccruals:

Accounts payable
Unpaid bonefils
Doe to brokers for gecurity purchasss
Inte.est payable
htergovemmental payables

Due lo other tunds
Interfund payables
Accrued compenaated absEnces
Dgigrred Gvenue

Bgnds payable
Advances l?om gengral fund
Obligations under c€pitgl leases

Othet liabilities:
Payable lrom restrictEd assets
Dsposils
Olh6. liabililies

Tot l ll.bllltlor
Fund equity (ddtcq:
Contributed capilal
Retained aaming s (defi cit) :

Reg€rved for operalion and mainlenance
ReseNed as security for outstanding
obligalions

UnreseNed
Net unrealized gain on €quity sedrities

Tot l tund equlty (d.flclt)

Tirtll ll.bllltle! lnd lund oqulty

-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-o- 23,772,612
{- -0-

331,391 12,298
54,081 -0-
98,616 123,996

314,475 -O-

61,760,000 814,623,084

$ 235,(X7
{-

12,613
.G
-0,

11,(Nl

86,289

-0-
-o-

0
0
0
0
0

-0- 11,242,000

$ 76,121,523 $ 932,517,152 $'1,697,052,066 $ 366,011 $ 3,611,065

$ 2,103,215 $ 1,E91,371 $ 15,402,697
2,300,000,000

134,147,000
-0-
-0-

10,605,369

2,940,000

{)-
4-

6,223,000

51,295,000

6,764
-0-
-0-
-G
-G

20,846

34,982

-o-

{)-

129,175

-0-
-0-

74,100
15,000

132,236
10,000

.G
175.000

-0-

0
0

0
0

0
0
-G 32,E60,000 g 6,7E9

75,331,177 E40,423,361 2,553,473,066 62,592 5,t2,3(x)

893,209 -G. -0-

{)- 89,710,7,10 {-
't97,'t37

{-
2,3E3,05't (981,0E3,000)

68,382 2,179,590

-0- -0-

-G {-
235,037 889,175

-0- '125,462,000

't,090,346 92,093,791 (056,421,000) 303,419 3,068,765

$ 76,,121,523 $ S32,517,152 S1,697,052.066 $ 366,011 $ 3.611.065



Exhibit E-1

Total All Fundr
Nevada Ma,lotto Lake
Magazlne Wator System ,t 997

107,2s1
140

-0-

92,178
-0-
-0-

763
-0-

32,070

-0-

29,403
-0-

4-

44,555
(44,555)

-0-

351,E83,089
3,816,140

1,119,042,121

128,067,181
12,350,712

107,237

4,503.158
855,113

1,245,489

30,889,638
70,604,941

551,745,008

7,453,783
9,583,060

46,277,674
4,270,478

19,290,734
29,598,299

(26 ,282,163)

s 133,629

-0-
-0-

4,046

31,626

-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

425,742
1,127,077
1,44E,995

(1,76E,47E1
-0-

$ 100,240,479
3,737,140

1,520,182,916

't89,469,961

17 ,419,628
25,380

1,546,466
5,t64

1,607.507

17,200,E77
73,665,560

670,451,977

5,123,198
10,935,037
46,656,745
4,241,978

18,838,558
35,551,056

\29 ,249 ,820)
15,942,455 6,948,263

$ 261,808 $ 1,3E2,637 S 2,711,6't2,262 $ 2,372,249,955

19,509
-0-
-0-

't,578
-0-

75,111
518,589

-0-
-0-

-0-
4,4't4
4,232

31,889
-0-

16,504,643
2,443,000,000

222,651,OO0
23,292,196
53,830,3,f4

1,088,123
75,604

3,221,AA7
616,865

788,468,084
337,869

11,478,000

19,582,730
2,300,000,000

1U,147,000
23,772.612

{-
11,049,996

74,113
3,436,E30

843,064

876,383,084
321,198

6,223,000

2,233,3U 1,361,139

2,885,88,f 5,200,705 5,2o0.7os

-G 893,209 841,012

-0- 69,710,740 8'1,010,613
(1 ,419,47O ,2O7'

-0-
146,498

{-

-0-
-0-

.0-

-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-

51,295,000 48,692,000
41,302,054 21,605,078

614,787 217,032 3,470,664,315 3,636,422,832

66,849

-0-

-0-
(419,828)

-0-
11,72O,279)

-0-
(s80,318,707)
125,462,000 6E,245,000

(352,979) 1,165,605 (759,052,053) (1,2U,172,877)

$ 261,608 $ 1,362,637 $ 2,711,612,262 $ 2,372,219,955
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity
Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with comparativo totals for 1996

Colorado
River

cormission
Hou6ing
Division

lndustrial
lnSurance

Forestry
Nurseries

PriBon
Industry

Net premium income
Sales
Charg6lor seMces
Rental income
Inlerest income on mo.tgage lo6ns
Investmenl income
Other

Total opcraling revenues

Salari6 and benefits
Operating
Claims expense
Interesl on bonds payable
Materials or supplies used
Servicers' lees
Depreciaiion
Administrative e)qense

Tolal operating expcnses

Operating income (loss)

${!
24,720,67

54,881

-{t
.G
-G

-G
24,720,367

4.
-G.

-0-
325,588

+
41

+
2,7U,81

395,437
74,163

-s $ 472,670,m0

61,500 +.,6,091,991 +
15,842,785 {r
4,852,A6 14,766,000

-0-
1465n

24,n5,24 65,8/$,102 487,436,000 325,9Es 3,,100,710

Tolafnonoperatinglevenues(exp€nses) 78,354

1,036,23
1,078,6't8

-o

936,i159

119,238
.G

61,491

26,000 (29,8m

113,505,m0 31,614 54,723

1,185,82
5,575,073

-0-
48,760,7s4

-u-
1,564,696

32,542

lo,210,00O
8,n4,470
78,705,000

3,273,m0
6,664.(x)0

55,375,000
58,228,000

(124,000)

98,001
s4,356

31,714

10.205
-0-

24,720p67 57,118,$7 162,056,470 194,276 3,170,538

54,E81 8,730,635 325,379,530 131,713 230,172

lr eresl income
Investmenl gain
Interest expense
Fede|al grants
Loss on disposal of assets
Other

133,235

(s4,881)

7 ,111

-(}.

++

fi,1z.3

(1,400)
-G

Income (loss) betore operating transfers

Operating transfers in
operating lransfers out

Net income (loss)

Fund equliy (deticit), July 1

Transfer of deficit to oiher govemment
Changes in unrealized gains

Fund eqully (deficit), June 30

8,730,635 438,884,530 163,327

(30,504 (234,s30) (18,434)

288,895

++-0-

-0-
-0.+

4
+
.G

B,7OO j2a 436,650,000

83,393,663 (r,352,2EE,000)

144,893

15E,526

288,895

2,779,470

-G
57,217,OOO

$ 1,090,346 $ 92,093,79r $ (E56,421,000) $ 303,419 $ 3,068,76s



Exhlbit E-2

Total All Funds
Nevada Marlettc Lake

Magazine Water Syslcm 1997 t996

19,n1,n5 16,253,7,t8

1,767,559 250,145 583,8{X,753 578,E1E,.|3E

r,093,334
668,706

-0-
-{!
+

5,519

581,378
445,063++
667,624

-0-
-0-

$ -0-
250,145

.G
+.
-G
-G
-0.

+
{r
-0-
-0-
-G

$ 472,670,000
29,174,015

1,119,924
'r 35,663

,t5,091,991
.t5,842,785

43,213,724
65,2,15,594
78,705,m0
4,7ffi,734

1,635,797
|,5e1,696
3,,$2,980

55,56E,35E
58,228,000

(124,m0)
61,491
(1,400)

$ 458,979,000
49,619,206
t,ll4,2w

140,143
39,r 10,315
't3,601 ,,t57

42,$7,179
67,843,8't0

113,502,000
43,155,981

1,904,849
1,,133,095
6,52A,217

102,7n
127,U7

.o.
-G

+
57,995

6,664,000 5,325,000

1,734,065 288,362 249,2A2,56 282,1@,131

33,.194 (38,2171 3U,5?2.,N 296,658,007

44,7 ,741
32,643,(x)0
(6,356,.r43)

620,214
(1,349)

2,364,470

1 13,673,691 74,041 ,673

33,,194 p8,21n .148,1 95,899 370,699,680

-(r-G4€(8,604) 1292,0751 (44rJ,s12)

447,903,424 370,259,216

(1,64,172,8m (1,704,889,8s0)

{- 54,575,757
57,217,ffi 15,882,0@

$ (3s2,979) $ 1,16s,6G5 $ Os9,0s2,053) $ (1,264,172pn\

-0-
-0-
-{!+
+.

++
33,/tgl

(386,473)

4.
4,

(6,s21)

1,212,426

-0-
-0-
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1997 with comDarative totals for 1996
Colorado River Commission

wator
Troatngnt

warea
Transmission

POW€r
Marketing

Housing
Division

Cash flows from oporating actlvltles
Cash received from customers
Cash received from other funds
Cash received from comDonent unit
Cash received from mortgage loans
Cash paid to suppliers, other governmenls and beneflciaries
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to olher tunds
Purchase of modgage loans

Nel cash provided by (used for) operating aclivities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Grants. transfers. advances re@ived
Retirement of bonds and notes
Interest payments on bonds
Operating transiers out
Payments for prepaid power
Transfers to other governmsnt
Othe. cash used for noncapital financing activities

Net cash provided by (used foo noncapital financing activities

Cash flows lrom capital and related tinanclng activities
Proceeds from sale of bonds and equipment, other financing
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment
Retirement of bonds/notes,/mortgages
Interest paid on obligations
Payments on advances,/capital leases

Net cash used for c€pital financing aclivities
Cash flows from investing activitios
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Interesudividends on investments

Net cash provided by (used for) inveshng activities
Net Increase (decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents. June 30

Reconciliation of operating incomo (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operatrng hcome (loss)

Adiustments to reconcile operatlng income (loss) to
net cash provided by (usod for) operating activities

DeDreciation
Income on investments
Interest on bonds payable
Increase in loans receivable and realestate owned
Decrease (increase) in accrued receivables
Decrease (increase) in inventory, deferred charges and other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accruals, other liabrlities
Prepayments for power
Other adjustments

Total adjustmenls

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activilies

Noncash investing, capital and financing actlvities
Loss on disposal of assets

14,637 -0- 1,315,083 17,809,476
--'i52r6-5;dE6t----leo=Frtl!Fss"5-iat------AE

917,670

-0-

158,237)
-0-

(70,61s)
-0-

-0- $ 24,448,479'14,141 -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- (17,660,024)
-0- -0-

(70,619) -0-
-0- -0-

$ -0-

101,O29,749
(1,006,426)
(1,123,269)

(262,102)
(173,510,090)

788,8'r 4 (56,478) 6,788,455 (7 4,872,138)

180,595,000
3,123,115

(73,662,750)
(48,028,853)

(30,507)

-0-
(4,824,077)

57 ,171,928

-0-
-0-

(52,969,547)
-0-

(847,143)

-0-
(1,785,000)

(4,579,2171

(98,667)

(6,462,884)(52,959,547) (847,143)

-0-

-0-

0
-0-
0

7,593,187
(4,611,'t92)

(17,981 ,2231

0

-0-
(62,8s4)

-0-
-o-

(14,999,228) (62,854)

-0-
'14,637

0
0
0

-0- 254,184,444
-0- (251,460,705)

1,3r5,083 15,085,737

52,166,096 903,621 31,461,472 140,483

-o- $

$ -o- $ 18,102,898

$ 54,881

186,895

8,730,635

-0-
-0-

917,670

(128,856)
-0-
-0-

14,141
-0-

-0-
-n-
-0-

1248,415)

1,060,600
5,413,510

507,879

32,542
(15,842,785)
48,760,754

(120,640,115)
1,038,845

-0-
(224,851)

-0-
3,272,837

788,814 (56,478) 6,733,57 4 (83,602,773)

$ 788,814 $ (56,478)

$ -0- $ -0-

$ 6,788,455 $ {74,872,138)

$ -0- $ -0-
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Exhlblt E-3
Total All Funds

Indugtrial
Insu|?nca

For63try
Nu]3gries

Prlson
Industry

Ngvada
Magazlne

lttaiett€ Lake
Water SyEtem

$ 473,100,530 $
3,987,000

-G
(245,700,000)

(40,211,000)
(143,000)

197,219 $
60,253

-0-
-0-

(67,470)
(103,s38)

(58,2321
-0-

1,525,774 $
1,721,977

43,U7
-0-

(1,115,1s2)
(1,017,962)
('r , 

'r 96,642)

'r,534,553 $
315,470

-0-
('r,019,297)

(577,2881
(154,467)

99,081 $
153,240

-G
-G

(49,395)
(100,085)

(55,930)

500,905,636 $
7,170,751

43,547
101,029,749

(265,676,001)
(43,133, t42)

(2,01 1,611)

503,123,005
20,262,U3
1,517,gil

94,310,421
(2U ,247 ,816\

(43,121,061)
(32,523,488]

-0- (173,510,090) (107,489,833)

191,033,530 28,232 (38,4s8) 99,971 46,911 123,8'r8,839 't51,831,525

-o-
+.
-0-
-0-

(234,530)

-0-

-0-
'130,750

(r8,434)
-0-
-0-

(2s,876)

-0-+
.G
-0-

(6,568)
+.
-0-
-0-

180,595,000
3,253,865

(75,447,7501
(48,028,853)

(290,039)
(4,579,2171

(53,816,690)

182,487,000
3,554,845

(82,209,626)
(44,877,3361

(440,5121
(5,426,206)

(85,186,408)

4-
-0-
-0-
-o.

-0-
-0.

.0-
-0-
-0-

.0-
-0-
-0- (4,952,620) (4,020,739)

(234,530) 82,440 -G (6,s68) (3,266,304) (36,118,982)

-0-
(10,949,000)

-0-
(124,OOOI

(5,255,000)

(4,7231
-0-
-0-

-0-
(48,332)

-0-

7,593,'r87
(15,676, r01)
(17 ,981,223',,

(124,O0O)

119,432,078
(31,112,02O)

(122,509,705)
(6,426,538)

-0. (15,000)

-0-
-0-

-0-
4-
-0-

0
0

-0- (2,e6'2! (s,272,862) (4,018,708)

-0-
-0-
-0-
-G

-o+
-0-

2,'t04,877,OO0
(2,528,204,000)

49,627,OOO

(16,328,000) (4,723) (63,332) -0- 12,862) (31,460,999) (44,634,893)

2,102,506,167
(2,171,003,s52)

65,403,152

(373,700,000) -0- s8,897 -0- _0- (354,501,907) (3,094,233)
--i15C22s.0-0-dt 

-10-5,s4-5- -]m55l -50p-ir-- 

-@ 
-(r6-s.4-jo1-i1t -578s3iai7300,708,000 129,098 976.526 7,423 96,'t48 386,588,867 318,605,450

$ 101,479,000 $ 235,U7 $ 933,633 $ 107,394 $ 133,629 $ 121,178,496 3 3S6,588,867

$ 325,379,530 S 131,713 $ 230,172 33,494 $ (38,217) $ 3U,522,208 296,6sS,007

-0-
-0-

58,897

2.359,061,444
(2,779,6€'4,705)

66,101,354

3,273,000
26,000

14,711,000
(35,256,000)

(117,100,000)
-0-
-0-

10,205

-0-
(68,517)
(38,631)
(6,s38)

119,238

(116,412)
(290,138)

18,682

50,704
(10,001)
25,774

-u-

2,'t76

24,957
-0-
-0-

3,492,980
(15,816,785)
48,760,754

(120,640,'t15)
r 6,301 ,192

(35,594,770)
(116,400,851)

5,413,510
3,780,716

6,528,217
11o,773,457)
43,'i55,981

(s2,248,330)
(2,488,596)
3,433,458

l't 40,4 17 ,562)
6,988.622

995,285

(134,346,000) (103,481) (268,630) 66,477

$ r91,033,530 S 28,232 S (38,458) $

85,128 (210,703,369) (144,826,482\

46,911 S 123,818,839 $ 15r,831,525

-0- $ 1,400

.'J

-0- $ 1,400 $
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Self-lnsurance Accounts for self-insured group life,
accident and health insurance plans for State and
other govemment employees (NRS 287.0435).

Buildings and Grounds Accounb for the
maintenance, housekeeping and security of most State
buildings (NRS 331.101).

Motor Pool Accounts for the operations of the State
vehicle fleet (NRS 336.110).

Communications Accounts for the operation of mail
services for State agencies in Carson City, Reno, Las
Vegas and Elko (NRS 331.103).

Insurance Premiums Allocates the costs of fidelity
insurance, property insurance, workers compensation
insurance, etc. to all State agencies (NRS 331.187).

Admlnlstrative Seruices Provides administrative and
accounting services to various divisions of the
Department of Administration (NRS 232.219).

Personnel Accounts for the costs of administering the
State personnel system. Operations are financed by
assessmenb charged to user agencies (NRS 284.1'10).

Purchaslng Provides purchasing services to State
agencies and other govemmental units. The operation
is financed by an administrative charge on purchase
orders and warehouse orders (NRS 333.120).

Information Servlces Accounts for designing,
programming, and maintaining data processing
sohrare and operating the State's central computer
facility (NRS 242.211): and accounts for the State's
radio communication and telecommunication systems
(NRS 233F.148 and NRS 242.213).

Printing Accounts for the operation of the State
printing facilities (NRS 344.090).
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Combining Balance Sheet
lnternal Service Funds

June 30. 1997 with

Crrrrgrt ass6rsi
Cash and poobd investments:
Cash with treasurer
Cash in custody of other officials

Rec€ivaDlesl
Accounts receivable
Intsrgovernmental receivables

Due from other funds
Dug from component unit
Inventory
PrEpaid oxpenses

Total qurrent aasets

Prcpefty:
Land
Buildings
lmprovemgnts other than buildings
Fumiture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total property

Total asgotg

Cwrent abt,tda:
Accounts payabla aM a@ruals:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Current portion, long-term obligations
Intergovemmental payables

Due to other funds
Due to comDonent unit
Intertund payables
Accrued compensated absences

Total curent liabiliti6
Long.tem ab ltles:
Advances:

Advances from genersl fund
Advenc€s from special revenue fund

Obligations under capital leases

Total long-term liabilitles

Total llabllltles
Fund aquity:
Contribut€d c€pital
Retained earnings

Total tund €qulty

Total llabilitiee and tund equity

totals for 1 996

Self-
ln6u|?nce

Bulldln96
and Groundg

Uotor
Pool

lnsurance
Communications Prrmium3

25,659,'t89 $

736,366
901

916,782
190,684

536,057 $

524,638

-0-

701,351 $

4,603
-0-

1,444,318
15,846

1,053

11,574

670,720

-0-
26,943

6,038,388

' 
A1A

10,329,214

27,503,922 '1,056,704 2,'t66,118 710,290 16,370,420

20,400
2,408,791

4't 1,061
567,521

(921,542) (1,'39,614)

49,916 2,26A,159 3,597,502

$ 27.553.838 $ 3,334,863 $ 5,763.620

971,45E

1,047,746
13,650

6,984,322
(4,448,216)

-0-
58,055

(47,3371
216,984

(131,083)

85,901 10,718

796,191 $ 16,381,138

5,866.090
4,760

834,025
1,636,594

17,700

14,545.588
16,752

-0-
-0-

20,652

71,326

425,323
74,013

-0-
10,243
22,059

.0-
194,841
475,953

12.501
.G
-0-

169,813
-G

53,4't 1

70,535

'14,988

11,997
-0-
-0-

243
-0-

78,554

14,654,318 1,202,432 332,422 '197,1 't I 8,359,169

0
0

1,557,822 553,848
26,555

-0-

0
0
0

't,557,822 580,403

't4,654,31E 2,760,254 912,825 197,1 t 8 8,359,169

12,682
12,886,838

398,651
175,956

2,325,163
2,525,632

23,875
575,198 8,021,969

12,899,520 574,609 4,850,795

$ 27.553,838 $ 3,334,863 S 5,763,620

599.073 8,021,969

795,191 $ 16,381,138
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Exhlbit F1
TotalAll Funds

Administrative
Services

Infolmation
Sorvlces PrintlngPersonnel Purchasing 1997

255,448 $
100

21,448

-0-

1,524,118 $ 1,015,036 $

29,656
1,302,151
4,299,672

'r25,954

241,680

925,544 $
200

9,233
7,204

2,840,U5

29,170
238,138

333,71'l $

4,385
-0-

424,393
1,316

587,201

36,989,895 $
375

804.644
1,310,260

21,479,9'16
333,800
858,051
265,081

47,241,097

415,56'l
706,369

10,244,03'l
312,353
667,195

93,223

-0-
-0-

8,r 86

276,995 1,532,304 7,014,'t49 4,050,038 r,351,081 62,U2,022 59,680,204

-u-
52,748

(19,780)

-0-
-o-

605,090
(479,1571

95,554
r40,000

530,912
(483,246)

15,000
1,563,756

-0-
17,622,988

-0-
597,932

2,327,563

130,954
5,758,225

424,711
29,937 ,641

130,954
5,759,225

424,711
28,523,029

(21,570,781)

12,0'r6,005 13,266,138

(14,462,707) (2,102,8441 (24,235,526\

32,968 125,933 283,220 4,739,037 822,651

$ 309,964 $ 1,658,237 $ 7,297,369 $ 8,789,075 $ 2,173,732 74,058,027 $ 72,946,342

18,102

259,337
-0-
-u-

36,396 $

114,695

424,742

4,569,010 $
19,633

-0-

2.809
-0-

23,988

529,346 $
210,904

1,579,904

67,8U

69,877
792,700

34,635
84,416
2,981

3,777

21,408
227,266

26,047,815 $
534,668

'1,582,885

10,243
1,586,387
1,636,837

363,525
2,313,085

21,U2,293
417,230

1,570,082

3,010,821
-0-

504,319
2,234,829

338,709 657i23 4,708,756 3,250,615 374,483 34,075,445 29,413,096

0
0
0

0
0
0

321,918 677,022
-0-

1,294,240

189,495

-0-

3,300,105
26,555

1 ,294,240

3,552,251
28,767

2,812,O79

321,918 1 ,971,262 1E9,495 4,620,900 6,393,097

338,709 657,423 5,030,674 5,221,A77 563,978 38,696,345 35,806,193

(28,745) 1,000,814

't ,'128,661
1 ,138,034

275,153
3,292,045

599,461
1,010,293

4,763,646 4,763,646
30,598,036 32,376,503

(28,715) 1,000,814 3,567,198 '1,609,754 35,361,682 37,140,149

$ 309,964 S 1,658.237 S 7,297,369 $ 8,789,075 $ 2,173,732 74,058,027 $ 72,946,U2



Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity
lnternal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with comparctive totals for 1996

Self-
lnsurancc

Buildings
and Grounds

Molor
Pool

lnsurance
Cormunicationa Pl€miums

@
Net premium income
Sal€s
Char96 for services
Rental income
Other

Total op€ratlng rcvenues

@
Salaries and benefits
Opercting
Clainls exDens€
ldaterials or supplies used
DeDreciation
lnsurance Dremiums

Total op.nling expenae6

Operating income (loss)

lnterest income
Interest oeense
lnlergovernmental
Galn (lcs) on disposal of assels

Tolal nonopenling
revenues (expenacsl

Income (loss) b€foae operating transfers

@
Operating transfers in

operating transfers out

Net income (losa)

Fund equity, July 1

Fund equity, June 30

s71,390 2,6s9 69,222

87,142,9fi
-0.

_0- $
74,87

-o-
2,193,286

.0- $
-(r

5,64t,687

't5

8,799,414

347,607

-(r 7@,O78
7,25't,936

87,714,320 8,U2,673 2,336,995 5,641,792 9,147,021

801,6€
445,844

65,796,078

101,456
29,576,262

-0-
0
0

1,703,8n

11,374 (1,397)

11,374 (r,397)

(7,303,092) (4'6,0,16) 69,$2 492,$2 3,534,639

25,225 131,611 1,199,962 -0- -0-
(s,923) (112,ss7\ (70,7e6) (36,604) (30,s00)

1,19E,628 ,155,858 3,503,739

3,652,167 143,215 4,514,230

3,294,444
5,007,,|38

{-
't56,837

495,s88
714,702

-{L

740,858
-n-

5252&
4,606,928

+
4

221,332
120,26

2,556,726

13,545
2,700,533

!h,721,289 8,,1s8,719 2,278,W7 s,147,84 5,612,382

(9,006,969) (416,046) 58,088 ,193,859 3,534,639

1,703,8n 4-
4-

p,za7,79ol

20,187,310

(397,392)

972,@1

$ 't2,8q).520 $ 574,609 $ 4,850,795 $ 599,073 $ I,021,969
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Exhibit F-2

TotalAllFunds
Adminlstratlv€

Sewicea
lnformation

Services PdntlngPersonnel Pulchasing

{!
-o-

808,804
4

-0_ $
6,475

16,535,972
179,U9

90,305,5't2
5,341,563

28,32,61
9,339,692

r7,457,396
20,180,E04
56,,193,004

3,006,769

{r$ +$
372 714,&

5,030,921 't,369,699

-0- 2,215

-(l $ 95,942,3,14 $
4,009,832 4,805,655

-G 30,175,161
-G 9,627,246

12.757 r 33,957 13E,387 4,000 1,279,994 1,@3,02

808,804 5,0,14,050 2,220,3@ 16,860,683 4,013,832 141,a3o,44 134,312,750

642,927
40,969

13,187
+

3,3,€,378
1,369,445

-{!
ir8,631

ffi1,972
406,796

-G
554,065

35,,151
-0'

6,956,,O'l
7,454,169

+
-o-

2,023,5W
-G

1,n8,716
828,075

4-
916,787
155,000

-&

1A,A67,647
20,994,614
6E,352,E04

1.798,611
3,304,320

32,276,7 33,263,820

697,063 4,767,454 1,798,286 16,,134,160 3,67E,66E 1,15,594,791 
'33,934,.|05111,721 276,596 422,074 426,523 335,164 (3,764,351) 378,3'ls

-o- -0- (14,soo)
-G -0- (105,964
-0- -0- 4

-0- 1 ,703,877
(193,,138)

-G
(1,681)

-G
(209,619)
(105,967)

1,600,328
(268,219)

111 ,721

(10,712\ (17,785) (16,520) s4,@2

(n,$7) (204,150) (19,456) 1,369,771 1,386,201

301,607 22.,373 315,698 (2,394,s80) 1,764,56

-0- -0- -0- 470,713 -0- 1 ,a27 ,51 1 494.322
(307,062) (71,154\ (3s7,206) (116,847) (97,94e) (1,211,3eE) (1,2s0,133)

('95,341) 205/42 (55,599) 576,239 217,749 (1,778,67) 't,008,735

t 66,596 795,372 2,32,294 2,990,959 1,392,(x)5 37,1.0,149 36,131'414

$ (28,745) $ 1,m0,E14 $ 2,266,695 $ 3,567,198 $ 1,609,7s4 $ 3s,361,682 $ 37,140,1219
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

Fot the Fiscal Yeat Ended June 30, 1997 with compantive totals for 1996

Self. Buildings
InsuEnce and Grounda

lnauEnce
Communicatio[g P|Dmiums

l otor
Pool

Caeh llov€ from operating actlvltlo!
Cash received from customers
Cash received from other funds
Cash recelved from componeni unil
Cash paid to supplleF, and other governments
Cash paid to employees ior services
Cash paid to other tunds
Cash paid to component unit

Net cash provided by (used for) operating ac{ivities

Cash flows from noncapital financlng activities
Grants. transters. advances received
Operating/equity transfers out

Net cash provided by (used ior) noncapitial financing
ac{ivities

Cash flows from capltal and lslated flnancing activltlss
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment
Interest paid on obligations
Reduclion in advances/capital leases
Proceeds from sale of assets

Net cash used for c€pital financing aclivities

Cash flows from Investing activitles
lnteresudividends on investmenls

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net inqeass (decrease) in c€sh

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Roconciliation ot opeiating income (loss) to
net cash provlded by (used tor) operating actlvltle3

Operating income (loss)

Adiustnentg to llconcile operaUng income (logs)
to net cash provldsd by (usod for) operatlng actlvltl€g
OeDreciation
Decrease (incregse) in acc.ued receivables
Decrease (incr€age) in inventory and prepakl expsnses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accruals

and other liabilities
Other ad,ustrnsnts

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating aclivilies

Noncash inv$tlng, capital and llnancing ac6vitleg
Property leassd, accrued or acquir€d
Adjustrnent to advance
Loss on disDosal ot assets

(4,375,5281 (i147,960) 780,040

$ 8,241,936 $
59,402,004

(90,832,848)
(806,611)
(337,900)

-0-

88,822
7,374,838

302,330
(4,601,951)
(3,2s8,187)

(353.812)

-0-

$ 26,270 $
2,239,703

77,902
(499,274)
(498,951)
(s55,610)

+.

8.887
5,061,001

(4,274,3691
(518,710)
(214,8521

-0-

$ 328,563
8,254,304

580,097
(6,848,519)

(212,741\
(s,729,453)

(244,509)

(3,872,258)

-0-
(38,725)

73,515

57,997 -0-
(9,923) (8E,019)

48,074 (28,2571 (38,725\(88,019) (87,806)

(2,0231 (1,908,294)
-0. -0-

(97,4201 (106,821)
-G 76,821

-0-
(87,806) QA,257l

(15,188)

-0-
-0-

(5r,930)
-0-

-G

0
o
0
0

(15,1E8) (99,i143) (1,938,294)

1,745,6't5

1,745,6'15

(51,930)

0

(2,597,0271

28,256,216

(635,422) (1,246,060)

1,171,479 1,947,41'l

(6,672) (3,910,983)

7,725 9,949,371

$ 25,659,189 $ 536,057 S 701,351 1,053 $ 6,038,388

$ (416,046) $ 58,088 $ 493,859 $ 3,534.639I (9,006,969)

101,456
(612,489)

-o-

5,'t42,474

156,837
(276,682\

10,797

77,1U

740,858
6,879

-0-

(25,785)

15,675 13,545
(560,256) (5,048,066)

55,484 -0-

68,753 (2,372,376)
4 +. -0-

4,631,441 (3',914) 721,952 (420,3441 (7,406,897)

-0- $
.G

-0- $
-0-

+
-0-
-0-

$ (4,375,528) $ (447,960) $ 780,040 $ 73,515 $ (3,872,2s8)

't47,62 $
-0-
-0-

-0- $
{-

1,397



Exhibit F g

State

Administrative ^--^n-.r 
i.,arr*ind sewicas Prirtlng

^-s"rui""" P"oonn"t 
$

(40.35e) t"'"";: n' 
=:::^i; 

---ffi-c- - ------=: 2227 322 "'

-=rg_----r*-* 

(25'7a't -+:'-:- 

- 

-o-

11,?69'255
10s,339,684

21,488,712
(117,075,516)

(18,553,88s)

9,556'326
102,964,298

20,540,199
(100,849'076)

(17,245,903)
(9,229'076)

(8'152)
(10,340,397)

(244,509)

$9,9n 3,431,354

.G ,-..ii ll3?:?1i A:;;; (s7'e4s)

-;---;EIAB $ 1,54'y-,2--Y:--=
-l__ 8.48-:--- '"^-: -

$ 111,721 $ 276',596 $ 422'074 $ 126'523 $ 335',164

(2,701,150) o,323,961)

e,261,173)
2,107,393

(2,496,037)
(210,084)

(1,989,688)
76,821

(1,240,147)
(253,253)

Q,497,787\
7 ,917

1,745,615
1FMj22

1,745,6',15
1,501J22

(to,zst,zoz) 5,366,861

47 ,241,472
41,874,61',l

--.--14.p*rrt---L_!ry:-----

(3,764,351) $ 378,345

----ila;?;66- 
5.360,211

:__,r: 1 6.6si f__---"'' ""r:-

3,3M,320
(6,296,796)

(362,713)

1,998,591
4,293

3,532,612
5,688,899

376,948

(4,369,104)
130,916

=.==:.als,sao,zt'l

2,837,778
607,95S

237,162 $

29,894





'lrust and Ageuqt Funds account for resources

whitlt are held in t ldurinry' or agenry rapacity.
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Expendable Trust

Unemployment Compensation Accounts for the
payment of unemployment compensation benefits
(NRS 612.585).

Museums and History Accounts for private funding
such as donations, gifts, and grants used to purchase
items of historical interest according to the restrictions
specified by the donors (NRS 381 .0031).

Gift Accounts for gifts and grants received by the
Commission for the Preservation of \Mld Horses (NRS
504.450), the Department of Conservation and Natural
Resources (NRS 232.020), the State Board of
Education (NRS 385.095), the State Library and
Archives (NRS 378.090) and the Division of State
Parks (NRS 407.075).

Custodial Accounts for estates escheated to the
State in absence of legal heirs and used for
educational purposes (NRS 154.140); administration of
abandoned property (NRS 120A.370); survivor benefits
held in trust for children receiving welfare services
(NRS 422.250); personal propefi held in trust for
prisoners pending their release (NRS 209.241) and
revenue collected to benefit destitute offenders (NRS
209.383); and the residual activity, including
repayments from local govemments, of emergency
distribution of SCCRT (Supplemental City-County
Relief Tax) (NRS 354.5988, repealed by Chapter 491,
Statutes of Nevada 1991 , at page 1452).

Nonexpendable Trust

Henry Wood Christrnas Accounts for the bequest of
the late Henry Wood to provide Christmas gifis to
orphans.

Permanent School Accounts for certain property and
the proceeds derived from such property, escheated
estates, and all fines collected under penal laws of the
State. which become permanent assets of the fund.
Eamings on the assets are to be used for education
(State Constitution, Article 1 1, Section 3).

Pension Trust

Public Employees' Retirement Accounts for the
operations of the Public Employees' Retirement
System which provides income benefits to qualified
public employees (NRS 286.220).

Legislators' Retirement Accounts for the operations
of the Legislators' Retirement System (NRS 218.2375).

Agency

Deferred Compensation Accounts for the activity of
the deferred compensation plan for State employees
adopted under the provisions of Section 457 of the
Intemal Revenue Code (NRS 287.330).

Intergovernmental Accounts for taxes and fees,
such as sales and use, cigarette and jet fuel taxes,
collected by the Department of Taxation on behalf of
local governments (NRS 353.254).

State Agency Fund for Bonds Accounts for surety
bonds and deposits held by the State (NRS 353.251).

Motor Vehicle Accounts for taxes and fees collected
by the Department of Motor Vehicles pending
distribution to counties and other funds (NRS 482.180).

Restitution Ttust Accounts for money received from
parolees making restitution (NRS 213.126).

Veterans Gustodial Accounts for the estates of
Dersons for whom the Nevada Commissioner for
Veteran Affairs acts as guardian (NRS 417.1 13).

Local Govemment Pooled Investment Accounts for
investment funds received from local govemments and
pooled to obtain greater interest eamings (NRS
355.167).

State Payroll Accounts for payment of payroll and
payroll deductions such as income tax withholding,
insurance deductions, credit union deductions, etc.
(NRS 227.130).
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Combining Balance Sheet
Trust and Agency Funds

June 30, 1997 with comparctive totals for 1996
Nonex.

Expendable Trust Funds pendable

Unernployment Museumsand
Compensation History

Gifr Custodial Henry Wood
Funds Funds Christnas

'1,339,22$ $ 10,082,002 $
Cash and pgoled investments:

Cash with keasurer
Cash in custody of other officials

Investments
collateral on loaned seauritiE

Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest and dividends
Trades pending settlement
Intergovemmental receivables
Notes receivable
other reoeivables

Due from other funds
Inventory
Other assets
Lano
Furniture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total assels

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Intergovernmental payables

Trades pending settlement

Obligations under securities lending activities
Due lo other funds
Deferred revenue
Notes payable
Obligations under capital leases

Othet liabilities:
Deposits
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved:

Encumb6nc6 and contracts
Inventory
Other:

Employees' relrrement system
Principal of non-expendable trust funds
Other

UnreseNed:
Designated:

Principal preserval|on
Museum projects

LJndesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabililies and fund balances

+$
366,937,759

-u-
-0-

51,0&1,562

_o- $
't 38,906

't,033,,$6

't99,E13

r,855,490

-0-
98,037

81,159

70,366

-0-

4,174

-0-

I ,475

19,8.15
-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-
2,909

-0-

-G

-o-

-0-

29,176

-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-
294,792

384

$ 418,002,321 $ 1,496,744 $ 1,364,7/a $ 12,386,867 $ s4,089

$ 6401 353 $

-0-

106,647

2,OO4

$ 3,,158
1 111

-0-

17,$4

-0-

$ 662,90s $

12,203

5,847,290

-0-
-0-

0
2 909

0
0
0

-0- -0- -0-
-0- -0- 4,393,0,t6

6,/|01,353 206,324 22,033 10,915,444 2,909

-o.

-0-
30,000

-0- -0-
-0- 173,788

411,600,968 781,975

900,000

-G.

-0-
0
0

0
0

0
0

-0- 3,6/tg
-o- -0-

-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- 550,000

-G -0-
-0- 294 792

-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- 39 865

442,710 917,774 21,1A0

411,600,968 1,290,420 1,342,710 1,471,423 51,180

$ 418,@2,321 $ 1,496,744 $ 1,364,7,13 $ 12,386,867 $ 54,089



Exhibit G-1

pendable

Pgnnancnt
school

Pension Tru6t Funds Agency Funds
StatePublic

Employees'
Relilqnent

Restitulion
Trust

14p61,44 $ 12,449,132 $ 70,12A,192 $ @z7U
-0- 35,235,925 2,545,7 {-

-0- $ -0- $
273,E25,26 9,514

E,647,305,959 3,811,.196
1,527,M,837 +

52,4E6,699
344,044

3affi,747
-G

6,579,184

Legislalors' Defefi€d Inter- Ag.ncy Fund Motol
RctirqrFnt Compcnsalion govcr rEntal fol Bonds

$ 9,417,17s $
-0-

2g2,718
-o-

_0_ $
107,696

145,743,207
.G

-G

+

+
+

{L 30,657,713++ ++
-G+

128
+
-G

4

-0- $
-0-
.G
-o-

-0-

4-
4-

279 S

.G
{-

+
+.

$ -0- $

-0-
-0-

891,528
4-
+
4

-0-

-{r

-G.

-0-
-0-

+
.G

o-

-0-

+
+

-G
-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-

+

-G
-(!

4
.G

-(r
-o-

0
0

-0- -G' -0-
-o- -{! -0-
-0- -G -G

0
0

686,583

329,898
120

375,826
-0-

+
+
4-

194,979,163
-t-
+
.(r

-0- 12,394,936

7,5U,828

+
{)'

4
+
+

1,237

+
+

-0-
-G
+
-o-

{-
+
+.

-0-
{-
+-G 649,944

2pn +
-0- t,108,601
-0- (708,956)

S 62,105.297 $ 10,741,538,305 $ 3,E2'1,751 $ 1'6,966,426 $ 209,340,s67 $ 85'87,598 $ 85'070'155 $ 602'784

4,241,910 S

+
-G

1,527,080,837
2,249

9,393,'l E9
26,6,|0

9,196,E36,326 3,A21,472

_0_ $

201,606, I 05
+
-u-

7,569,034

-(r
-o-

-G. $ -0- s
4 -0-
-0. 33,792,373
-G -G

-0- -0-
-0- 47,857,380
0
0
0 +

+
-o'

-0-
2,5q

-0-
-0-
{-

-G -G -0- 85,856,51s 3,{14,68s {-
-o- 3,957,154 -G 1'15,966,426 65'428 21,083 5,717 600'194

89'f,5281,54,701,9792791,6,966,426209,340,56785,87/,59885,070'155602'78/l

61.2'r3,769
-0-

.G

61,213,769 9,196,E36,326 3,A21,472 -0-

$ 62,105,297 $ 10,741,538,305 $ 3,821,751 $ 1'15,966,426:- $ 209,3,10,567 $ 85,877,s98 $ 85,070,|55 $ 602,784



Combining Balance Sheet
Trust and Agency Funds

Exhibit G-1
June 30. 1997 with

Cash and pooled invesbnenb:
Cash wilh treasurer
Cash in custody of olher officials

Inv6tments
Collateral on loaned secudlies

Roc€ivables:
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest and dividends
Trades pending settlement
Inte€overnmental receirables
Notes receiyable
Other rcceivables

Due from other tunds
Inventory
Other assets
Land
Fumiture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and acctuals:

Accounts pafable
Accrued payroll and relaled liabilities
Intergovemmental pafables

Trades pending settlement

Obligations undet securities lending activities
Due lo other funds
Detered revenue
Notes payable
Obligations under capital leas6

Olher liabffties:
Deposits
Olher liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances;
Reseryod:

Encumbrances and conlracts
Inventory
Other:

Employees' retirement system
Principal of non-expendable trust funds
Other

UnrcseNed:
Designated:

Principal preservation
Museum projects

Und6ignated

Total fund balances

Tolal liabililics and tund balances

$ 1,99,917 $ 370,157,532 $ 6,,162,619

2of2

Total all Funds

t99G
(Restated)

$ 78,618,E,15
683,938,565

7,982,315,609
1,526,W,747

49,773,84
49,997,427

+
31 ,242,205

120
723,603

189,561,596
283,65E
450,550

2,977
9't2,275

(708,9s6) (se5,1s0)

$ 12,145202,715 $ 10,593,314,867

9,907,581
12,530

613,719,45u1
54,001,763

1,526,0AA,747
6,202,521

79,707
9,41 ,A72

129,$9

E2,761,165
156,978,078 124,800,613

2,$8,574,447 2,457,185,422

totals for 1996

1,929,7A7

Veteranr
custodial

Pooled
hvestr|ent

Slatc
Payroll

$ 5,670,397
-0-

-u-
.G

4
,f5,996

-0-
24,323

367,065,578

3,071,088
4
-0-

$ 126,032,r6E
679,000,64S)

9,444,745,647
|,527,080,637

51,097,912
56,247,45

344,044
33,340,678

120
12,6'18,031

210,307,42
294,792
650,32E

2,977
't,'t06,60'l

$ rr,416,552 $

60s,566,773

1 ,527,OAO,A37
66,730,152

97,673
9,393,,t 89

26,64

89,271,200

866
-0.

4

-0-

4
-0.

-0-

-o-

25 'r 30

-0-
.G +

$ 4.$
+
-0-

-G.

4-$
.G

370,150,578

-0-
6,9t1

-u-

12,242
5,514

-o-
6,,13O,750

'1,954,917
-0- -0-
-0- 14,113

1,99,917 370,157,532 6,462,619

-0-

-0-

-0-

9,200,657,798 7,715,054,374
61,243,769 56,960,786

569,865 618,365

3,649
294,792

900,000
173,7A8

283,658

900,000
173,78

413,7U,67 36213A.474

9,677,628,268 8,136,129.445

$ J,954,917 $ 370,157,532 $ 6,,t62,619 $ 12J46202J15 $ 10,593,314,867
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Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds

June 30, 1997 with compatative totals for 1996 Exhlblt G-2

Total Both Funds

$ 273,825,26
8,847,305,959
1,527,080,837

52,,186,699
34,O44

32,866,747

6,579,184
649,944

I ,,|08,601
(708,ss6)

4,241,910

1,527,080,837
2,249

9,393,189
26,6,|0

3,957,154

1 ,544,701 ,979

$ 9,196,836,326

$ 273,E34,760
E,851,117,,155
't,527,080,837

52,4€,6,425
344,04

32,A66,747
615

6,'/9,184
6i19,944

1,108,601

c/08,9s6)

l99G
(Restaled)

$ 329,094,856
7,374,198,314
1,526,080,747

,15,769,306

30,801,8,n

6,192,703
449,93{
912,275

(595, t 50)

4,M7,026
54,001,763

1,526,088,747
n,501

9,4€1,A72
129,&

4,032,841

Public
Employc€s'
Retlrcmenl

Legislators'
R€tlrcnEnt

@
Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments
Collateral on loaned securities

Recaivables:
Accrued irterest and dividends
Trad6 pending settlement
Intergovernmental receivables
Other receivables

Due from other funds
Other assets
Fumiture and equipment
Accumulaled deprecialion

Total plan asseta

and accruals:
Accounts payable
Trad6 pending settlement

Obligatlons under seauritles lending activitles
Due to other funds
Not6 payable
obligalions under capital leases
Other liabilitiF

Total plan liabilities

Net assets held in lrust for pension b€nefils

r0,741,538,30s 3,821,7s1 10,745,360,056 9,312,913,593

s 9,s14
3,81t,496

16

+
4-

279

-0-
-0-
.G
-0-

4,242,189

1 ,527,OaO,837
2,249

9,393,189
26,6$

3,95/,'154

1,s44,702,258 1,597,859,219

$ 3,821,472 $ 9,200,657,798 $ 7,715p54,374

't 01



Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Exoendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1997 with totals for 1996

Unemployrnent Museumsand
Compenaalion History

Gifr
Fund6

Cus{odial
Funds r997

@
Intergovemmental
Taxes
Sales and charges for seMces
Intefest, investm€nt gain
Othet:
Oonations
other

Total revenuea

-()-
.G

79,14

-0- 1,398,747
8,1@ -G

+ 196,164
-0- 1u,879

144,658 -0.

6,701,52E $ 6,s02,898
18a,21,925173,410,195

537,410 557,580
23,873,39E 2'r,389,987

6,701,52A
18a,221,CX

23,417,465

-G
s37,410
139,017

$ -0- $
-o-
.G

237,376

+ 494,m. $,3€4 -G s87.606 9SO.440
-O' -G 7 ,615,124 7 ,615,124 6,6.€,537

218,341,31E 1,170,6,19 172,524 7,852,s00 227,536,W1 209.s02.637

Curen?:
Heallh and social services
Education and support servic€s
Law, iustic€ and public sateiy
Regulation of businGs
Recreation and resource developmenl

lnterygvemmental:
Othel

Total cxpendilures

Exc6s (deticiency) ot revenues over
expenditures

160,257,2A6

.G

6,523,738

|,2tl, 2
161,656,033

1220,12.
,| 96,164
1U,A79
144,65E

1.18,8,O,008
1,613,827

169,316
145,574
'160,878

.G

+ 59,96-2 6,583,7@ 6,866,280

16,781,024 1,211,%2 152,818 r,839,752 r69,9E5,556 157,795,883

51,560,294 (41,313) |9,706 6p12,74 s7,551,,t35 s1/06/54

Operating transfers n
Operaling transfers out

Total other fnancing souaces
(uses)

Excess (deticiency) of revenues and
other financlng sourcG over epen-
ditures and olier financang us€s

Fund balanc6, July 1

Fund balancec, June 30

4 300,000 300,000
(2,638) (6,236,381) (6,239,019) (5..199.969)

(2,638) (s,e36,38't) (s,939,01e) (s,,tse,969)

51,560,294 (41,313) .t7,068 76,57 51,612,416 $,M,785

360,0,0,674 '1,331,733 1,325,642 |,395,0s6 364,093,10S 317,886,320

{r

$ 411,600,96E $ r,290,420 $ 1,U2,71O $ 1,471,423 $ 415,705,521 $ 364.ffr3.105
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonexpendable Trust Funds

Fot the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with comparctive totals for 1996 Exhibit c-1

Total Both Fund6

Henry Wood
Christmc

Pennanlnl
School 1997 1996

@
Interesl, dMdends

Olhel:
Fines

Land salesi/miscellaneous

Total opelaling tevenues

Operatlng transfer in

Operating iranster out

Ncl operating transfers

Net lncome

Fund blanc€6, July I

Fund balances, June 30

2,909

(2,909)

(2,90s)

51.180

5t,'t80

2,909 3,975,660

3,7n,64

3,978,559 3,731,796

3,115,1553,7n,68
402,W5402,905

8,108,213

150,,130

(3,s7s,660)

(3,82s,230)

4,282,943

56,9n,786

$ 61,213,769

377.177

8,111J2 7,24,124

150,,130 147,112
(3,978,s69) (3,73E'21n

(3,828,139) (3,s88,r05)

4,2a2,W3 3,636,023

56,981,966 53,3r15,9rt3

$ 61,264,949 $ 56,961,966
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Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with comparative totals for 1996 Exhibit G-5

Total Both Funds
Publlc

Employ0€s'
Rgtirsm€nt

Legislators'
Reti|rment

1996
(R6tatsd)1997

Retirement contributions
Inves nent income:
Interest, dividends
Investment gains
Other

Lessr Investmsnt expense

Nel investment income

Other income

Total addltlons

Benefit payments

Retunds
Administ.ative erpense

Total deductlons

Net increas€

Operating transbr out

Net asseb held in trust for pension benefits, July 1 (Restated)

Net alsets held In tru3t tor peElon benefrts, June 30

517,A4,959 $ 431,138 I 518,076,097 $ 471,706',813

395,857,303
756,151,170
228,079,468

161,121
410,310

396,018,424
756,561,480
228,075,468

300,841,945
484,694,109
196,267,242

1,380,087,941
( 1 02,382,486)

981,803,296
(1(X,96i1,266)

571,431 1,380,659,372
(1,283) (102,383,769)

570,148 1,278,275,603

1,826,976

1 ,277 ,705,455 875,839,030

1,826,976 1,789,624

'| ,797,177 ,390 1,001,286 '1,798,178,676 1,350,335,467

300,110,953
8,931,O24
3,136,608

319,026
21,300
't 2,000

300,429,979
8,952,324
3,1,18,608

267,849,510
8,874,793
2,A9A,272

312,178,585 312,530,9'11 279,622,575

1,484,998,805

(44,3/.1)

7,711,881,862

648.960

3,172,512

1 ,485,647,765 1 ,070,712,992

(44,341', (44,U1)

7,715,054,374 6,6i14,385,823

$ 9,196,836,326 3,821,472 $ 9,200,657,798 $ 7,715,054,374
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 with comparative totals for 1996 Exhibit G-o

Total Both FundE

Henry Wood
Ch.i8tnas

Pemanent
School 1997 1995

Cash flouYs trom oporatlng activltlog
Cash received from olher govemm€nts

Net cash provided by operaling activiiies

Ca3h floyvs from noncapltal financlng
actlvlties

Op€rating transters in
Operating transteF out

Net cash used for noncapital flnancing ac{ivities

Cash flows from investlng actvitleg
Procaeds ftom sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Inleresudivid€nds on inve3tments

Net cash provided by (used for) investing aclivities

Net increase (decreaso) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents, July '1

Cash and cash eouivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operatlng incomo to net caah
pfovided by operating activitie3

Operating incgme

AdJultments to Econclle operating
income to net cash provlded by
oporating actlvlties

lncrease in accrued recaivables
Operating interest
Other

Total adjustrnents

Net cash provided by operating activities

4,049,908 4,M9,908 3,477,789

4,049,908 4.049,908 3,477,789

(6,413)
44,144 44,148

(3,908,190) (3.914,603)

(3,870,455)

76,797
(3.703,573)

(o,ozo, / /o,

s,500,000
(13,299,730)

3,773,47 4

(6,413) (3,864.042)

-0-
-0-

2,992

14,000,000
(11,518,750)

4,006,438

14,000,000
(r1,518,750)

4,009,430

2,992 6,487,688 6,490,680 (1,026,256)

(3,421)

54,60'l

6,673,554

2,743,621

6,670,133

2,798,222

(1,175,2431

3,973,465

51,180

2,909

$ 9,417,t75 $ 9,468,355 $ 2,798,222

8,108,213 8,111,122 7,224,128

-G
(2,909)

(2.909)

$ -0-

(82,77sI
(3,97s,660)

130

(82,775)
(3,978,569)

130

(14.543)
(3,731,796)

(4,058.30s) (4.061,214) (3,746,339)

$ 4,049,908 $ 3,477,789$ 4,049,908
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Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Exhibit G-7

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 Page 1 of 2
Balance B.lance

Additlons Delelions

@
Assets

cash in custody of other oflicials
lnvestments
Other receivables

Total asset6

Llab ldes
Other liabilities

@
Asssrs

cash with treasurer
Due from other tunds

Total asscts

Uabtt ai.s
Intergovemmental payable3

Due to other funds
Other llabllities

July 1, 1996

$ 108,732
11s,647,613

54,5z.3

$ 115,8i0,868

$ 115,810.868

$ 8,292,34
183,007,876

$ 19'1,300,216

$ 18,143,742
2,104,O19

s2,/155

$ 'l 91 ,3{D,2'l 6

$ 4,s18
s,213,726

54,523

$ s,272,767

e E.>1.>'ra-,

$ 1,250,226,868
187,572,375

$ 1,437,7W,243

June 30, 1997

$ 107,696
145,743,207

115,523

$ 1,15,966,426

$ 1/6,966,426

$ 14,361,44
194,979,163

$ 209,340,567

$ 201,606,105
7,669,034

65,42A

$ 209,3,0,567

$ 12,449,132
35,23s,925
30,657,713

7,534,828

$ 85,82,598

$ -0-
85,856,515

21,083

$ 85,817,598

$ 70,128,192
2,s45,7n

12,394,936
I ,237

$ E5,070,'155

$ 33,792,373
47,8s7,380

3,414,685
5,717

$ 602,784

$ 2,590
600,'t94

$ 3,u42
35,309,320

115,523

$ 35,428,325

I 35,428,325

$ 1,256,295,932
1 99,5,13,662

$ 1,,155,839,594

$ 1 ,174,724,583
85,799,505

270,395

$ 1,2m,794,43

$ 3,327,,t39
14,558,652
7,015,127
7,5U,E2A

9 32,.ts6,046 $ 2s,803,441

$ 1,1F22s2,m
80,234,4€tO

25742
$ 1 ,242,754,132

cash with treasurer
Cash in custody of other officlals
lnvestments
Due from other funds

Tolal assets

Lhb,ttti.s
Due lo other funds
Deposits
Other liabililies

Total liabilities

@
Ass€ts

Cash wlth treasurer
Cash in custody ot other ollicials
Other receiyables
Due from olher funds

Total asccts
LlabIMes

Intergovemmental payables
Due to other funds
Deposits
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

@
Ass€ts

Cash wlth treasurer

Uabltttles
Oue to other funds
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

$ 79,244,W3

$ 54,081
79,174,W

16,524

$ 79,24,*3

$-G$
32,673,665

't 1,615,230
35,E9t , t 75
3t,73E,588

2,493,537
15,213,q2
8,096,002

-o'

54,08'r
25,991,rc4

$ 3,18,01 0,0,|E

37,52,,992
2,7119,590

614,561

4,559

$ 32,678,424

$ 32,715,988
12,4&

14,3s1,804
1,237

$ 26,0/t5,819

$ 345,110,788
326,650

2,571,429
t,t8'l

$ ,0,888,324

$ 16,197,729
20,E59,971
3,586,7n

243,847

$ /0,888,324

$ 478,753

t.181

7,632
471.121

157,298,806
224,037,28

27,241

139,704,162
197,039,87l

399,333
12,0,58,822

$ 349,202,194

$ 851,097

$ 72,EE9
762,26

11,420,692

$ 393,384,025

$ 975,12E

$ 67,847
891,278

$ 959,125

Total liabilltles

Ass919

$ E5,070,155

$ 478.753

106



Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Fot the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
Exhibit G-7
Page 2 of 2

Balance
July l, 1996

689,90'l

Balance
June 30, 1997Additions Deletions

@
Asseas

Cash wilh treasurer
Oue from other funds

Total aasets

L/E,bltme6
Other liabililies

6,3E0

$ 696,281

$ 181,191
6,380

$ 187,57'l

1,929,787
25,130

$ 1,931,917

$ 1,954,917

1,421,077
25,130

$ 696,281

$ 408
,104.923,526

3,431,0E4

$ ,lOE,37E,otE

$ 6,072,441

20,833

$ 6,093,274

$ 11,694
4,427

6,072,374
4,779

$ 6,093,274

$ 64,672,065
38,749,497

552,309,727
3,431,004

669,084
183,036,270

$ a42,890,727

$ 11,125,173,730
10,,106.008.322

2,919,327

$ 2'1,534,101,379

$ 701,19,|,469
6,954

1A$207

$ 587,808,1 87
,15,996

24,3z3
524,433,%

$ 1,112,711,731

$ 388,898,760
5,514

132,544,471
66,257,167

$ 587,74s,912

$ 13,352,717,41
14,684,984

10,44€,332,769
2,919,327

45,996
14,491,650

731,938,082

$ 24,565,130,289

$ 11,125,173,272
10/43,846,270

3302,323

$ 21 ,572,321 ,A65

$ 739,397,929
20,980

$ 739,418,909

$ 586,210,231

524,132,155

$ 1,112,342,386

$ 388,898,212
4,427

132,226,095
66,247,833

$ 587,376,567

$ r3,312,246,984
15,5,{5,070

1 0,457, 1 55,998
3,302,323

z,ozJ,JJz
711,712,O91

$ 24,502,588,418

1,433,44 174,812

liabilities

$ s,670,397
45,996
24,323

721,93
$ 6,i162,619

$ 12,242
5,5r4

6,430,750
14,113

$ 6,,162,619

I 105,142F62
37,889,411

543,1a6,498
3,071,088

,15,996

12,534,702
243,262,261

$ 905,,132,598

$ 11,694
613,702,936

29,'l 'l 9,057
a2,761 ,165

117,295,475

s u2,890,727

$ 388,898,760
2,ffi,20,372

442A96,63
32,901,106

t't6,105,864

$ 388,898,212
2,04t,368,738

&,6!a,412
26,391,071
44,773,461

$ 3,013,622,165 $ 2,951,080,294

12,242
605,554,570

6't,966,708
a9,271,200

14€,627,a7A
905,242,59E

Total li.bilities 1.433.444 $ 174,e12 $ 1,9 ,917

$ 866
367,0E5,578

3,07r,088

$ 370,157,532

$ 370,150,578

cash with treasurer
Cash in custody of other officials
lnvestments
Accrued inlerest
Intergovernmental receivables
Other receivables
Due from other funds

Tolal assets

Liabltltles
Accrued payroll

I ntergovemmental payables
Oue to other funds
Deposits
other liabilities

Total liabililies

,108,357,m9

20,980
/O8,378,018

Ass€fs
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Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Source
Exhibit H-1

Land

Buildings
lmDtovements other than buildings

Fumiture and equipiEm

CoBtruction in Progtess

Total gener|l fired s3ett

Gensral obligatbn bonds

Fedcral grants

General fund r6venues

So€cial revenu€ tund revenugs

Gifr8

Total inv€3tnent in goneral ixed aeletl

General governm€nt

Educ€tion, SuPPon servlcas

Health, social service8

Law, justice, Public sably

Recreation. r$ource devcloPr€nt

Transportation
Reguletion of businBs

Total gpneral ired a$at!
alloclted to functlon

Construc{ion in Progrgss

Total genaEl flrad asa'ls

$ sr,rr1,os3- $ 51r'3,,.?0'g l---9r.,9:l-€!!- ! '?03''z5'?''?40

$ 82,924,083

519,322,709

61,831,953

203,252,240
97,940,812

$ 965.271,797

$ 346,616.089

65,947,466
359,4$,64t
176,945,019

$ 5,271,797

Other Than

Land Bulldln$ Buildlngs EqulPm€nt Total

$ 12,069.313 $ 72,024,291 $

963.059 '11,547,259

2,453.691 55,968.227 2'

1,354.654 335'25/.F22 14',

65,674,481 10,066,292 42

393,885 34,461,988 1

.E nna! -0-

)

I
)

l
I

I

I
I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I
I

867,330,S85

97,940,812

$ ln\fy_

Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Function
E)thibit H-2
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Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets - By Function

For the F,scal Year Ended June

General gov€mmant

Education, suppon servic€s
Health, social sa.vices
L8w, justics, public s€fety
Req€ation. r€source dgv€loDrnent

TraGportation
R€gulation of busin$s
Construciion in progr€ss

Total gone|al f,xad s!€ts

Genc|rl
Flxed Alret!
July 1,1990

$ 67,718,796

12,107,43
107,111,W
247,012,725
127,699,950

113,t22,571

5,173,022
225,498,880

Addldon8 Doletlont

Gene|?l
Fk€d A$otg
June 30, l99t

$ 9,1,946,008

15,840,056

103,691,630

389,901,612

140,847,961

116,755,566

5,348,152
'194,828,989 97,940,812

32,211,5#
3,72't,1U

16,144,6A7

1il{t,098,616

14,30,'257

6,93.r,350

u1,582
67,270,E21

5,O14,324

28€'541
I 9,59,1,'l 05
3,209,729
1,1*,26
3,201,355

669,452

905.674.395 $ 287,560,143 $ 227,962,711 $ 5,271,797

11'l
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Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhiblt l-,
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1997

Dcpartment

1of I
Balances Appro- Author- Sp.hdlng and spending spending ForwErd lo

_Eg3lgg!_ prieiiohs izations A{ho.itv _@98_ _8C$9I!E_ Authortty N.w Yc.l
160,372 $(1,557,990) ,1.477,61 $ 7S.,143 t 1,0s1 t 117,914 $ (1t18.108) $ 108.5.15

Execudvc Bnnch
Attorney Gengral Admin Acct
Allorney G€noEl Medicaid Ftaud
Consumer Paoleclion Fraud
Controller
Council on Holocaust Prev€ntion
Cri|ne Prevenllon
Dom€stic Violgnc€ Programs
Ethics Commission
Extradition Cl6rk
Gov6mo/s Mansion
cov€rno/s Olffce
High Level Nucl€ar Waste
lnsuEnce Fraud
Investigalions & Enforcements
Lieutenant Gov€mor
Secretary of State
S€curities Division
SllS Fraud
Silicosis & oisabled Pensions
Special Fund
Special SeMc€s-Sec of Slato
State Treasut9r
Tschnology Advisor
Washington Ofiic€

Judicid Banch
Admin Oftc€ of the Coults
Commission on Racial & Econ. Bias
Oist J udg€s'/Widovvs' Pensions
Distric{ Judges Salaries
Oistrict Judg€s TEV€|
Oivision of Planning & Analysis
Judicial Disciplino
JudicialEducalion
JudicialRecords
JudicialSelec'tion
J uslices'/Widot/16' Pensions
Law Library
Law Library Gift Fund
Retired Juslice Duty
Supreme Court
Laglslauyo B6nch
Oeferred Compensation
Govorno/s PoatEit Fund

Total Constitutional Agenclcs

Budget Division
Clear Creek Youth Center
Commission tol Women
commodity Food Program
Conlroll€d Substanc€ Grants
Emergency Fund
Executiv€ Eill Drafring
ceneral Fund Salary Adiuslnent
Graffiti Award Fund
H€arings Divlslon
Info Technology lmprovement
Insufance & Loss Prevention
lnt€rnal Audit
Local Cuhu|al Ac{ivities
Merit Award Boaid
Public Wo*s Board
Retired Emp Group Insuranc€

64
19
-{)-
14
49

16

7

8
153

.G
96
.G
96

3,609

3,303
't9
70

206

-0-

159
{)-
-{)-

-0,
7

294
1

6,778

208

107
785

1.498
35
{-+

277
1,797
1,2t5

7A
-(}

.{}
111
690

126
318

-0'
-o-
7

2@
844+

1,580

7,566
913

25

10
1.687

1

92
5,O00

6,349

1,0(x)
200

1,414
74

2,OO7
230
't04

2,O45)

216
230

-0-
63

(63)
144
173

387
529

15
15'1

2,790

14,48
1,025

621
2,019

49
218

1,703
108
aT7

5,233
1,621
6,392

723
1,527

477
3,307
1,289
2,103

188

1,473
286
230

1,ml
'l

303
299
318
949

7

a77

445
4,371

11,622

607
'l,9/$

49
211
498
108
807

1,423
2,153

566
347
,158

1,849

71
1,194
1,036

122
230

714
111
749

5,016
117
t06

370
109

220
864

1

160
4,327

2,608
92
14
76

70
20
17
24

't9
6a

117

't3
2,154

345

-o-

.{}

.{}
20

181

157
175

-0.

106
3,598

+
2,000

38

-0- +-{)- 'ro

166
4A

.{}
-G

1,205

-{>
5,00o

4,215
.G

965+
{-

1

21
104

-0-

126

-o-

134
.G
-0"
-0-

26 -0-
{1- + .G 1010

.G. 257
-0- -(}
4{-
-o- 163

-n-
42 4-
-G 579
-0- 449
4 -0-

48 -G
4-0-
-G 15
-o- 285
37 1

-0- 3

++

77
330
{-
3

30 100
899

150
{-

s,341 25,8n _€@_ ___zg93l_ 44,261 12,14s 6,42s 8'08s

315+
18

462
83

-&
6.503

1,067
-0,
92

't38

1,612

29
150

26,860+
30,100+

441
150

.{}
2,476

09.753)
-o-

2,385

1,740
30+
-0,
10

5,918

365
18

2,$A
118
404
150

13.610
3

23A5
30,100

2,807
51'1
242

6,056

1.936
318

1,878
15
74

150

-$
2,341

1,A72
493
92

1

561
5.884

3 200
33 11
-o- 10

439 -O-

26 -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -o-
-(} t3,610

22
-0- -G
36 -0-
{- 18
-G. +
-G4



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhiut l-1
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1997

Depadmant

2ofg
Balanc.s Appro. Author. Spending and Sp.hding Spending Forwa.d toForward.d pdations izaliont Aulhority Trahsf.rs Autho.itv Anhodty New yc.r

Roof Maint€nance Reserve $
School Plan Checking
Sp€cial Approprialiohs
Stalo Claims
Statutory Contingency
Surplus Propert
Workmans Comp Hearihg Res€rve
Y€ar 2OOO Conv€Etion

fexadon
D€Farth€nt of Tantion
Sr Citiz€h Prop€O Tax Rebat€g

Ag Extension Service
Ag.i Experimerf Station
Athl€iics - UNLV
Athletics - UNR
Busihess C6nt€r Noth
Business Conter Souih
Coll€iate Liconse Ptate Acct
Computing Center
Dosen Res€aach Instiluto
Educati,on tor D€p€ndom Childran
No Novada Community College
Radiation Sefsty Boad - North
Radialion Safety Board - South
School of Medical Scienc.s
So Nevada Cornhunity Colleg€
St tewid€ Prograrn - UNLV
Stata,vide Progaam - UNR
Stud€r Loans
Truckse Moadows Comm Colleg€
Univorsity lmpaovem6nts
University of N6vada-Las Vegas
UniveFity ot N€yada-Rono
uhlv€rsity Prcss
Univ€rsity SElary
Unive6ity Suppl€m€nt ry

183 $ 499 i
150 159.{}. 3,904
375 'l,8,lS)

135
-0-
+.
-(>

.G

-G $ 493

-G 3,904
{} 1,102
-0- 1,156

-0- 1,571

297 .o, 18'19 -0" 2
1,332 2,m:t 5
315 -G 89

2,670 76,.t91 -o.
185 -{r. -0-

1,072 .o. 18
766 -{1- 24{- E -o-
14 -G 336

1,134 {. 22
8-G17
3220

202 4 28,46-G24-
-o- -o- 41
2a351

7,006 {). 7
37A .{t- 2-o- -0" 13-0- -0- 51
110 {- -o_
155 -G 47

316 $

+ 21
{.

747
3,9(X
1,246

1,571

10,472
3,141

227
-0-

1,E06
{.

423,104

-0'
1,328

4-
-0"
-(}

135
30,863

142
171
56'l
191

-o.

-G
-0-

371

4,2U
4,741
1,254
't,196
1,369
1,174

6,202
2,085

33
5,508

26,422
516

4,O75

14,944
2,76

64,063
58,909

529
't 0,705

229

-o- $

r33{-
+

2U
240

4,217 4,785 3,629
155
324

-G

2,4A2
-{r

274
324

1,571

t 3,184
3,38'l

1 1,059
2,949

123 371 1,625-0" -G 432

Unompfoymont Componsation Fund 256 -G. 558 814 496 t -O 317
Totaf Finsnce and Administr.tion 

---!!iq 
80,941 1,763 93,165 34,993 g&g 14,234 42,g4g

Adrlt Basic Education 7
AIOS Education l
Care ot Handicapp€d 666
Discretionary crants 69
Dlslribulive School Fund 27.OOs
Dflrg Abuso Education -0.
ECIA -Chapter 1 20
ECIA - Chapter 2 30
Education State Programs +
Education Support Ssryic€s 277
Educ for H6ndicapp6d Act 3
Education T€chnology Taust 8
Other Stat€ Education Pr€rams 14
PGM Ehhanc€mehts 13.124
Post Secondary Educ Cornin I
Prol€ssiohal Standards 17O
Profcienry T€sting 7A1
School Lunch 46
Schools to Car€ers +
Stud€nt Incantiv€ Grahts z
Student Indemnificatioh Accor.tht 99
Teacher Training - ESL 1
Vocational Educalion U
Unlv.fslty end Conmtunlty Collagc Syslt.'.n

2,OO8 2,242 1,927
226 227 206

1,ffi4 4.156 814
1,275 1,U4 940

97,66'f 5,47,770 468,909
1,866 1,866 1,681

20,586 20,606 19,516
3,531 3,561 2,771
157 1,485 1,477

1,U7 I ,324 974
12,814 12,A17 11,66'

17 25 -o-
i6 165 140

1,693 45,6A6 16,994
n 2@ 256

486 a27 786(13) 1,329 96837,306 37,545 30,532
383 383 3
3'9 326 3'3
101 190 139
109 110 -G

5.394 5,799 5.597

+

.o-
18

16
54

-0-

435

.G

204

1,474
1,210

12,571

1,744

10
12

45
145
129
664

.G
1,OO7

137
1.984

10,825

63
-0.

4,U3

30,209
24,909

6
-0-

't 16

5,978
6,285
1,2U
1,20A
1,436
1,2t9

163
E,331
2,749

5'l
6,579

137
14,542
37,682

4.t38

19,491
5.076

95,7,16
85,028

10,705
12,800

6,285
1,264
'|,208
'1.436

1,219
85

8,323
2,650

6,573

137
14,634
37,40E

521
4,.t 38

46
19,438

95,713
83.340

5U
10,7Gt
12,770

185
+
.G
-0-
-t)
70

.o-

.G

-0'
24
237

-0-
-0-

.G
1,683

.G
-o"

99
17

-o

37

{}.
27

33
5
1

30

+
a

-o-

+
.G

-{}.

{-

)

I
J

)

j

l

)



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis

All General Fund Budgets
Exhibit ,-1

Balances Appro- Author- Spending ahd Spending Spending Forward to
Departmenl _@g@__4i9!!__ig4!9!!__&!E!L_I!!!gEE_ Authority _.,49!!9Ii94_ NewYea,

University Syst€m Admin
UNS - Special Projecls
West€m NV Community College

W.l.C, H, E Admin i statlon
Wiche Administration
Museums, UbEry and Arts
Art in Public Works
Comstock Historic District
Comstock Historic Distric{ Gifrs
Cultural Resource Program
Fourth Ward School RestoEtion
Hisloric Pa6ervation
Lost City Museum
Museum Library & Arts Admin
Musoums and History
N€\rada Historical Society
Railroad Depot - Easl Ely
Records MgmnUMictographics
stat€ Archiv6s
Stat€ Arts Council
state Library
Stat6 Library - CLAN
State Library - Literacy
State Mus€um, Caason city
State Museum, Las Vegas
V&TRaikoadMuseum

Total Educatioh

$ 3,989 $ 2,036 $-o. 192
112 E,977

t 186

.{t. 63
1{-

957 -O-
r -n-
4- 154
-0- 1E9
25 424

2.475 187
113 432

-n-
a4+
-G 78
37 64E

207 1,9661+
-G 85
39 78
1 639

------9- 
214

_-/49-_!w!-

2,150
't,910

7

12

6,293

423

66
13
99

344
74

677
1,173

438

2,U2
10,999

194

7

1

7,250
1

271

2,675
614

428

1,362
3,368

r|:19

164
1,211

2,U2
10,998

147

7
61

2,U1

519
256
202
297

315
419

1,267
3,147

305
114

'l,165
685

675
9,432
9,7t|:l

12
13,557

743
274

4,457
1,618
1.868

552
570

2,E55

1,171

2,670
862

-0-

3,920
423

24,2ffi

7,2U
4,547

2,474
15.329

12,532
3Al
47

1,777

-o- $
{-

1

12
{-
{-
{-

31
-0-
36

2
1

11

2

{-
I

4,609
1

{-
{-

301
2,371

112
391

25
-G
18
-o-
-o-

I
1

1

2
7

-o.
I

17
102
70

't44
64
-0,
-0-
-0-

71

73
15
-0-
29

103
64

94 $ 6,119 $ s,788 $ 331 $+

2

-0'
+
7
1

7
23

216
109
49

-0.

79
379

52
326 540 520 10 10

ry__!-8339_ s1r4o1 1a.771____-78.999__@_

Resources
Health Re€ources Cosl Revie /v
Hospital Tax Account
Human Resourc€s-Direclo/s Ofi ce
Nevada Commission on Sports
Purchas€ of Social S€Nices

Hdth Divislon
Aid to Counties
Cahc€r Control R€istry
Child Heahh SeMc6
Communicable Disease Control
Community Hsalth SeMces
consumer Protection
Emergency Medical SeMces
Family Planning Project
Health Facilities
Health Facilities - Admin P€nalty
Health Ofiicer
lmmunization Program
Laboaatory & Research
Radiological Health
Safe Drinking Watet Ac{
Sexually Trans Disease Control
Sp€cial Children's Clinic
Vital Statistics
WIC Food Supplernent

Aging Serylces
Aging Services
Senior Services Program

tlenhl Hygl q, dM en El Rebrdaai on
Community Training Center
D€sert oevelopmental Center
Facility for Mental Offende.
Mental Health Inslilute
Mental Retardation Home Care
MH/MR Regional Training
Mntl HygieneMnf Retardalion

907 907
57,197 't 25,086
25,741 27,580

{L 13
16,177 16,686

74 743
347 346

2,416 4,573
1.373 2,323
1,804 i,982
1,867 2,534

25 616

2,923 3,44
25 66

1,'f39 1,424
2,192 3,593
1,069 3,0E6
817 973
-0- 750

6,194 6,375
754 4,022
481 905

24,989 25,037

6,294 I,O22
4,525 4,932

1,426 2,942
8,138 16,062
/O9 3,505

3,420 13,290
-0- 396
-0- 53

516 1,895

'117

-& -G
-0. 86,6t|:}

771 -G
1+
-0- 5

-0"
67,869

1,644
13

509

15
101

't5

40
561

41

1,039

48

669
24

2,056
950
163
667
59'l

2E3
1,079

980
156
750
182

3,26E
424

1,648
362

't,556
7,910
3,09{
I,E28

396
53

1,2U

11

17,026

3,124

-0"
u
20

528
44
I

21
101
20

142

695
-0-
18

691

+
15

75

+
528

45
286

-G
750

0)

'19'l

+
-0-

.G'
+
-o'
+.

685 51

90 14
523 210
15 116

401 357
-& 15

66 52

8o
45

'14

-0-
-o'
95



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1997

Depadmcnt

2 3,585 1,964
+ 15,567 3,453

5,571 5,208
19,020 17,520

Exhiwt ,-1
4ofg

37 $ -O-

361 -O-

9O2 /A
.G .G

11,393 -G

1,956 593
-0" -0-
202
-0" -0-
-$ -&
-G' .G

15,010 14,324
-0- -G
{} 't3

2,120 159

203

354
20
-G

5(xl
-+

4'l
.G

134
1.530

14

.G
{)"
-0"
15

120
-o-

275

1

-0-
{}.+
9

10

546

'E
170
+

345
I
€-
-&

435
1,295

.0.

322
1'l
20

I
223
221

-0"
2p42

-o-

106

1

R€sld€ntial Placement
RurEl Clini6
So Nav Adult Montal Health Svc
Southom MH/MR Food SeMce
Sieara D€valopmental Center

Wdhrc

I -G $ S00 t 69E $ l.qrl S 1.,15.t S .t13 3

n
1

2,603
-0-

41
1

37
4
.G
-0.

13,126
15
11

2,667

11

1,661
.o

618

26€
9
{-

30,701
4,906

.G
2,448

.G
{}

174,55O
.G
-G

21,416

1,774

201

3,335
+.

1,532
+

4,494
14,A79

4,412

93
524

319
{f+
18

645

-&

3,089
7g

-0"
6,O

19
-{)-

34.581

40,125

3,000
412

1.544
396.058

107
7n

30,108

574
3,215

410

501
791

r4,306
2,28

10
2,375

415
3.564

26,201
786
688

7

1.7E5
1,047

46
1,745

464

21,OU

9.734

1,099
sol

5,955
t,3t5
2,29

411
+

57,885
4,906

40.166
2.196

3,004
412

1,5a4
fi1,O74

122
788

54,'t 91

2,U9
4,125
3,904

150
416

5,3't6
702

1,/Og
17,710
2,472

19
3,907

415
8,458

41,3it0

5,500

100
1,892

1,056
1,799
1,067

66
1,74
1,239
7,O20

21,336

13,230

4.593
1,740

6.19
5,956
1,U7
2,690

$,241
4,540

2,179
5,888
2,O23

329
1.,{80

454,O77
29

551
50,307

1.598
4,095
3,28

132
234

4,'t 86
672
w2

16,095
2,126

7

399
7,AE1

37,694
2,O79
5,343

94

Q4
1,717
1,030

,€
539

1,092
5,609

16,754

10,220
738

1,345
1,.t 68

45a
5,483
1.064
2.56:l

13,211

7,720
17

986
981

83
104

96,663

224
r,605

21

't E0

10
68

1,O71

16
I

81'l

19

330
41
17

1,210

1,'t 88
4,361

2,597

306
,t8

19'l
464

12
't 05

5.5'f2 5,757 11,270 10.922 -G 348 -G

Aid to o€p€hdent Children
Asslstahc€ to Aged and Blind
Chlld Suppoi Enforcement Prog
Communlv Services Block Grant
Endoymom and Training
Enorey A5sislanc6 - W6ltare
Homalasr Grants
Hom€m.kine Sewices
Nevada Mcdidid
Sai.V S6at Program
Wgath€dzation - Wet'rhre
Wol'hro AdminlsiEtion

Chlld.n d Fanl t y s.,'ices
Altonative Plac€ment
Calionto Youlh Center
Chaptor 1 - Sp6cial Education
Chapt.r | & ll Edu6tion Program
Child Abuse & Neglec,t
Child & Family On€-Shots
Child Car6 SeMces
Children's Trusl Accoud
Chlldr€n. Yodh & FamilyAdmin
Domastic Viol€nce
Fann Acct - Yodh Training Clr
No NV Child & Adolescent Svcs
Probation Subsidi6s
So Nev Child & Adoles Svc
Youth Commuhiv S€rvices
Youth Cora€c{ions S€wices
Youlh Training Center

Oahq Humm Resources
Indian Commission
Public Defehder

Emplowqrt, Treining.nd Rdr.btttadon
Comm for Natl & Comm Svcs
D.E.T.R. Adrnin s€rvic€s
D.E.T.R. Direclo/s Ofice
Drug Conmission
E,T&RAdministration
Equal Rights Commission
Occ lnformation Coordinator
Stat€ Job Training Offce

Rch.b laEuon
Alcoholism & D.ug Rehab
Attendant Caro
Blind Business Ehte.pdse
Community Eased SeNices
Develoomental Disabilities
Ob.bility Adiudication
H€dng Devic€s Program
S€rvlces to li€ Blihd
Soclal S€cuiity Admin/Voc R€hab
TEumatlc H6ad Injury Program
Vocalional R€habilitation

Total Humah seryices

3.lii
300

460
301

+
,(}3

,t6
301

-0-
53

4
14
20

2

130
300

407

2,*7
1

129
I

27

579 1,761 8,713 11,0s3 9,584 _ 692 _______g _%
99,239 3,14,501 A26,730 1,27O,47O 956,256 163,007 3A,263 112,944

Agrl Registf.iiortEnforcement

I 18

236



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhiblt t-1
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1997

Dapartmeni

$ 1(x't
25
17
11

183
100
654

Agricultu.al Producl
Alf'ai'le Seed Research
Apiary Inspeclion
Alhl€tic Commission
Attorney for Injured Workers
B l! | Industdal D€velopment Bonds
Bo€f Council
Bond Redamation

32s $ 430 $
-G 26 5'l
+. 17 34

233 71 315
-0- 2,098 2,101
-0- 158 341
-G 291 391
-G 369 1,027

,(30 4n 1,457
8't7 36 653

13 6 -G
291 -0- 2

1,605 59 437
64 (O {-

261 1+
249 235 -G

1,109 14 134
839 -G. I
173 37 -G
1t8 -0- 5
445 745 4-
162 31 +

2 194
14-
-0- 4-

224 18
{- 20 -o-
17 4- -0-

115 -t) -(}
14 1-(}
56 l-(}
125 3 -&
-G -O- -O-

2,436 55 13
977 -0- 29
801 r{5 +

2,722 720 +
62+-(}

685 20 -G
23 -O- -0-
31 -0- -G

1,870 21
54!t -G

1,/*,1 1

24

98

SofB

Balances Appro. Aulhoa- Spcndlng and Spendihg Sp.nding Forward to
_@!S!L p,iations izrtlons Authorlty Transfers Artho.ity Authority New Y.a.

Business & Industry Adnin 550
ConsumerAffairs -G
Consumer AfiaiE R€glrtution 99
Employ€e Mgmt R€lations Board -0-
Ene€y Conse.vation 2Cs
Fin Institutions Invssligation 361
Financial lnstitulions -O-

Financial lnstitrtions Audit 7
Gas Pollution Slandards 150
Gov Comm Employ People w/ Disab -0-
Grazing Board Contdbuto6 -o-
Hlgh School Rodeo Association +
Hospital Patients Commission 80
lns€ctAbatem€nt ,{5

fmuEnce Cosl Stabifization 71

fnsurance Education & R€s€arch 4O7

fnsurance Recovety 40
Insutance DMsion -G
Labor Commissionq 77
Livoslock Inspeclion 203
Low fhcome Housing Trust Fund 5,712
Mohtally lll Advocacy
Mih€|als
NAlc Fees
Novada Jr. Livestock Show Boatd
P€troleum overcharg€ Rebate
Plant lhdustry
Pr€datory AnimauRodgnt Control
R6.l Eslate Administration
R6el Estate Investigalion
Rural Housing Aqthority
She€p Commission
Unclaimed Property
Voterinary Medical S€rvices
Woolgrower Predatory Animal

OJnlng Contol
Gaming Control Board
Gaming Control-Fodaltur€ Acl

Economic DevcloDmgnt and Toudsm
Comm on Economic Develophenl
Fllm Division
Rural Community O€v6lopm6nt
Srnall Bus Revital & F€d Procure

Total commerce end Industry

Pdsons
Cadin ConserYation Camp
Ely Cons€rvatioh Camp
Ety She ftison
Humboldt Conse ation camp
Indi.n Springs ConsoMation Camp
J6ah Conseruation CamD
Lovelock Corsctional Centea
Medical Care
Nevada State Paison
Navada Women's Cor€ctional Ctr
No Nevada Corecllonel Center

-(}.

+
-&
-G.

4-
.o-

111

'1,1/€
-o-

204

200
12

(316)
111
145

10
484

3,2&
1,429
(378)

119

299

1,36i
u1

905
a7?

15,795
902

1,492
683

9,4:t3
28,'t 16
1't,888
3,173

13,486

-G 1.156
+2N

+s 265 I 27t -0" $ 't37
20
't5

282

543
200

171
44+

4
195
{-
{-
.G
80
,19

156
441
40
-0-

124
s,701

16 1.165
60 67

367 517
29 233

969

321

-0- 5,549 -0-
a2-o-

46E 8 -0-
614 -G 35
1844-

22,035 10 3il8
19 723 -G

2,614 53 274
503 2s -G

2,344
102 330 474 3S9 29 + 46

10,569 30,s82 29,96s 71,116 _W__:,U7,_ 1,658 11,263

-o,
134
37

572
I
15
3

t0

41

161

15
1

153
42

-0- 20
17 -O- 17
-G 115 195
-G. 19 64
-0- 142 213
-G 162 569
-0- -G 40

1,457 1 ,O47 2,504
891 38 1,006
10 757 970
+ 3,431 9,143
62 -G 62
-& E35 959
-0- 22 59
31 -0- 31
-G 110 642

1,475 709 2,232
514 39 553

1,312++
'G

109

2fi 1,565
58

5,549 5,549
10 20

367 476
635 41 6E0
-O' 19 60

4.3t8 23,150
750 779

264
36

682
243

-G

2

10

31
38

37

,|

1

10

627 2,96
528 529

3 049 3.250

18,671
-0-

2,N4
4-
4

809
810

16,111
791

1,347
673

4,949
24,476
10,459

11,931

859
810

15,731
852

1,464
634

9,204
27,OO2
11,714
3,140

13,341

144
463

424
445
-0- 229

465 649
5 169
924
3 102

.{}
-o-
-o-



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GMP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhlut l-1
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1997

OeDarlmd{

Pioch€ Consorvation Camp
Prison Adminislration
Prison On}Shot Appro 8li Legis
Pdson Waaehouse
R€stitution Centea - Noath
RestiMioh Center - Soulh
Silver Spaines Cons€,vation Carnp
So Deson Corec{ional Center
So Ne\Eda Conec{ional Center
So Nevada Womens Pdson
St€wad Cohs€nration Camp
TonoFh Conss\ration Cemp
W€lls Conger\fation Camp

Motor Vchlcles end Publtc Selcty
Criminrl Hlstory Ropository
Emerg€ncy Manag€ment
Emergency Mglnt Asslstance
Em€rgency Mght-Fede6l Grants
Emergency Responso Commissioh
FEMA tl'153 Dr-Nv
Fire Marshall
Forfsitur€s
Haz Mat Training Cehter
High|ay Safety Plan & Admih
Inv€sligations
Justice Asgislance Act
Motor Vehicle Pollutioh Cohlrol
Narcotics Conkol
Perole & Probation
Parol€ Board
Parolee Loan Account
POST
Salvagdw.eckersJBody Shops
Traftc Satety
Veteran's AlTaiF
Veteran's Home Account

Total Public Safety

4- 3,169 429 -O' 275
6,639 312 4
692 t5
600 37
747 I

13,671 I
7,885 2

15 15

18
2,65+

-0-
{-

1,006 10 57 +

6ofB

Balancas App,o- Author- Spcndlng and Spending Spendlhg Forward to
Fo,w.ded pdations _E4!9!!_ _g!!g!ry_ Trsnslers Aulho,ity -1.,t!4_ __!.- Y*_
$ -0- $ 1,076 $ 91 $ 1,167 $ 1,084 t 8$ 75$ -0-

2AO 6,162 2,064 6,506 208 1,2367,O44
1,318

{-
{-+
{)"

I,451
-0.

205
334
721

13,066
7,434

30
41

6.955 6,955
532 737
344 678
69 790

862 13,918

1 ,103

34 -(}.
23€+
110 -0-
24 -G3,333 13,279J

1,027 76
.{}. 859 32 E91 A17 6 6a +
+ 816 65 903 All 2 60 -{t

7 4- 5,072 5.079 3,771 434 -0- 874
44 24 1,040 1,348 973 274 29 72
57 + 759 816 758 I 10 -G
119 + 1,069 1,18a 770 346 35 37
205 -& 716 921 399 ftA -0- 374
-o- 3,500 21,2$ 24,755 15.045 8.8dt -G U7
4 430 1,OE7 1,521 984 45 351 141

353 -0. 1,302 1,655 739 463 -G 453
25t -0- 622 E73 714 5S -$ 100
21 a2 692 7% 575 181 7 32
{)- 3.9,{:t t36 4,079 3,829 10 29 211
{- + 7,64 7,648 3,655 3,9qt + 4-

5,0e{ -G 5.689 10,753 4,872 213 -G 5,668
11 1 1,369 't,381 1,246 94 1 40

*2 20,294 2,449 23,245 21,@7 3,€ 1,192 698
-G 722 32 754 719 {t 35 -G.
5 -0.510 14 -&5

180 4- 815 995 745 44 21 1A5
82 {. 129 211 92 24 4- 95
I -OL 2,275 2,2U 1,177 1,107 -G -0-

294 571 562 1,131 1,26 37 11 120
16 

-_j 

34 +- -0- 30

E,826 145,990 69,578 225.394 189,625 17.8a1 5,422 12,4d5

Consetyadon and Resources
Adjudiaiion Emergehcy
Ai Quallv
Air Qualily Managemont
AnteloDe Mlddle Reose Reserve
Baker & L€hman
Boulder Flat GroundMtoa
Cad,co Creek
Carson Valley Ground$/ater
Chann€l Clearance
Chemical Hazard Paovehtion
Clovers Aroa Gaoundv6tar
Cold Springs Valley
Colorado River Valley
Conservatlon & Nat Res Admin
Consetuatlon Disiric{s
Ctescent Waler Groundvaler
Curaht Cleek
Diamond Valloy cround Waler
Ducloveter Cr6€k
Eagl€ Vall.y
Environm€ntal Commission
Environmental Prol€ctlon Admin
Fish Lako Valley Art.€ian
Flood Contaol Rev Fund
Flood Rqpcirs & Disast€r R€l
Foresl Fk. Suppression
Forestry Adrnln

506
't,153

7
1

1o
1

10
216

1
1

27

1

2

7
18

-0-
28

43
28

50
2

5,{6

-o
-G

-o-

360

+
+
-$

197

+
t

+

,{5O

5,163

2.165
1,200

3

't1
-o
20

320

3
I

21
.{}
,
4
I

111
25

1.696

612

7,365
'r,064

1n

2,671
2,353

10
1

21
1

30

406
9

756
198

4

1l
27

147

1,944
43

861
50

7,A17

't.897
+52

5
1

4
1

11
191
185

2
1

2
723
't 98

1
.G

135

1,440

2U+
8,129

774
s25

-0"

138
1

-0-

.(}

.G

90

192

(s12)
19E

2
4-

1,376
5

17

19

E3

6
1

-0-
+

18
12+

414
40

/€5

3,433

.G
-G

-0-

-0-

.o-

33

-G

.G.

.G
69



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-1
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1997 TofB

Belances Appro- Author. Spending end Sp€nding Spending Forwerd to
Departm.nt Forwarded p,iations izations Authority Transfeaa Authorfty Authoaity Ncw Year

For€stry Honor Camps s -0- $ 5,269 $ 1,310 $ 6,57S $ 5,747 $ 4$ 828 $ +
Forestry lnter€ov Agbements 273 -0- 6,321 6.594
Ground\,vqtor Recha.ge Paojects 97 -O- 55 152

43U 1,795 -G 435
50 -G -G 10.2

Habit l Mitigaiion
Hazrdous Waste - Beatly Sile
Hazardous Waste Managem€nt
Hon€y Lake Valley
Humboldt Water Distrlct
lmlay Gtoundwat€r
Kelly Cr€€k G.oundlyator
Kingston Cr6ek
las Vogag Basin Water Dist
Lemon Valley
Littlo Humboldl River
Low€l R€6se Riv€. Vall€y
Maggio Cre€k
Mason Valley Ground Wal€t
Mining Cooperative Fund
Muddy River
Muddy Rive. springs
Natural Heaitage

Taho€ W.l€r System
Truck€e Meadowsilsun Vall€y
Upp€. Whit6 River
USGS Co-oD
Wann Spaings Gmund Wator
Warm Spdngs,/Winnemucca Creek
wator and Mining
Water OlBt Rev Fund
Wasto Mgt & Fed Facilitios
watd Pl.nning
Water Planhing - Cap lmpaov€rneflt
Watd R6ources

Water Rlghts Surveyors
Well Drllle/s License
Whidwind Valley
Wildlile
Wildlib.Boating Prog6m
Wildlite Hedtage
WiHlfe.Obligated R6€rv.
Wildlife.Troul Management

Totsl lnft€siructurc

547 -G
1,78 -G.

11,309 -0-
12 -O-

124 +3+-0- +3+
1,036 -G

12 -O-
20 -G
10+9+13+
30 -0-

1,009
32

294
2,87
I,O11

175 299
58

158 2

31 17 -O-

16 '1 -O-

56 147
798 24

-o- 522
-o- 2,146
-0- 12,1

-o 129

+11

-0. 14
{. 15

{- 14
22 131
48 1,184
-o- 31
-G 327

2,581
1,O42

449
13
't6

-&
2,185

3,|a 895 66 n7
't , f 50 2,6a8 4- 702
5,800 17,109 2,626 2,2A5

5 17 -G 2 -O- .!5

-G'
1,113

12 12 1-G
3 {- -0. -0.

2,149 595 4 -0-

122233
11 20 6 +

t6 28 6 .O- {- 22
29 49 1.O--G/6

-G 't6
-G 14

14+,-G6
100 {t -G 30

51 92 268 411 232 130 27 22

22 -O- I'13 -0- 3

720
100 'l30

7,822

794

N€vada Taho€ Regional Planning -G 2
No.th Fo Ground Wat6r
Pahranagal Lake
PahrumD Artesian Basin
Paradi3a Valley Groundweter
Pleasant Valley
Pump.nickel Valley
Quinn Rtuer Dis{ribution
Smith V.ll6y Anesian Basin
Stat6 Engine€r Revenuo
Stat€ Lahds
Stat€ Parks
Steptoe Vall€y Water Basin
Slorege Tank Management
Tahoe Eond Sale
Tahoe Mitlgation

-G102+'l-o.++
20'r+24
26 1-G12

311 4 -G-0- 7
2 3 .0. -0- -0- 3
+11-0-++
5811+6
5 t9 11 1 0. 7

+.+

-0-
-o-
-0-

.{}
21

1

1

14

94 -0- 1,@2 1,096 63E
2O2 l,,+tl 3,009 4,665 3 963
-0- 73 -0- 73 71

t21

10 12
11

24 45
't5 39

..0- 217 217
875 100 975

3,202 3,611
+4
+ 500
+29-G 260

8,{8 212
-0- 476
-0- 30
-0- (1)

1,060 936
725 220
34 21
15 -&

6,411
1

467
2,620 1A2 n -G
1,271 27 202 -G

Tahos Regional Planning Ag€ncy -G
249

17

water Ro3ourc6 Legal Costs 285

1a
-0"

1,2U

-0" 16.2 279
3,070 26 3.457

-$. -0- 265
-0- 10 4E
-0- 36 54

653 14,512 't 6.399

-0- 123 1

16 0
04
04

13,990 224 +

4,337 1,679 -O- 979
4- -0- {- 30

6,245 1,942 + 455
374 E6 34 41
110 71 4- 98

3,372 2 6 /|a
3) 189
-o- 29
-o- 21

353 -O- 1,474 1.831 916 *7 -G 57A
16-0.31924--G17
50 -O- -G 50 t .O- + ,19

920 327 5,78 6,995
29 -0- 1 30

427 -& E,215 4,642
69 308 i60 537

117
't51

172

{}. 2,1&
4- 726
-0- 1,386

,151 -G 461 912 470 39 -0- 403

31759 21 552 727A3 ::ry 73058 12833 1,251 38.952

1,474 + 3,475 5.34!t 3,027 173
3{X} -0- 67E 96t {- 255

1,624 -G il6o 2,084 665 33

Uirlarl
Adjutant Gonetal Conskuctioh
Military
Natloh.l Guard Ben€fits

393 -O-

433 214
4-2



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhibit b1

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1997

DeDertmaht

8of8
galahcca Appro. Authoa- Sp€nding and Spending Sp€nding Forwdrd to

-@34S9- --@lg!!- -j3:9.rc -lg!E4L --@E- -@- -.,/!glEIlL New YGar

$ 7 -l_ -0- _$_ 65 _!_9?_ $ s2 jJ_ -9.___g_ $ +
303 !-g__!,M_

Admin

clv Alr P.t ol
Tolal Spccial Purpo3e Agcncies 5.926 4.764 E26 216 120

1,095 -0- -0- -0-
3,271 -0- -G -G

72 -O- -O- +
39.'t10 -G -$. +
1,2fi -0. -0- -0-
2,OO7 .O' -0- -0-
4.000 .G -G -G
7,2a2 -G -G -G
3.(X4 .G + -(}
1,205 -(} -G -0'

{- -0- -0- 5,250
43 -0- -0- -0-
53 -0- -G -G
3it -o- -G -(}

4G5 -O- -G +
10,926 .O- 4- -0-
1,861 .0- {- -0-

56 -0- 4- -0-
1,175 -O- .{t- -O-

28,958 {- .{} +
2,600 + -& -o-
248 -0- -$' -O-

1,200 -0- -s. -0-
5.370 -0- +. -G
800 -G -G -&
443 -G -G -(}

1,796 -0- .0- -G
5,474 -0- -0- -0-
5.290 -0- -0- -G

10,o00
62,O14

-G 1,095
-0" 3,271
-0" 72
-G 39.110
-G 1,29
-G 2,@7
.G 4.000
.s 7,282
+ 3,(M4
-G 1,205

3,450 1,800

.0. 1,095
-0- 3,271

+ 39,110
{- 1,250
-0- 2,@7
-0- 4,000
-o- 7,242
4- 3,O4
-& 1,205
-o. 5,250
-0- 43
-G 53
.(}. 33+ ,|o5
-G 

'0.925-0" 1,861

-(r 1,175
-0. 28,958
-0- 2,600
-0- 244
-0- 1,200
-o- 5.370
-0. 800
-G 443
-0- 1,796
.0. 5,474
-G 5,290
+. 10.000
+ 62,014

Advance Planning CIP
Capitol Pollc6
Class Slzo R€duc{ion
college of Juv / Fam Law
Conserv & Natural Resources CIP
Disasler Reli€t Fund
DMV & PS CIP Proiecls
Genersl Gov€mment CIP
General Gov€tnment Mait Projecls
Genelal SoNices
tfigh!.yay Fund - Adhin Svcs -0- 43
Highway Fund - Direclo/s Ofice -O- 53
Highway Fund - D.ivors License + 33
Higt|w-ay Patrol {l 405

-G 10p26
-0- 1,861
-0- 56
-G 1,175
+ 28,958
+ 2,600
{- 248
{- 1,200
{- 5.370
-G 800
.G 143
-G 1.796
-G 5,474
-G 5.290
-0. 10.mo
-o- 62,014

Human Resources CIP Projec{s
Hurnan R€sources Maint Projec{s
lntomalion Seavices
lr eaim Finance Committe€
Legislativo Couns€l Buroau
LcB Exoahsion
Legislativo Intedm
Motor Vehicle Purchase
National Judicial collogo
Pa.k lmpao\/6ments
Prison CIP Ptojec{s
Pdson Malntonance Projects
Stabilization ot Budget
Statewida CIP Projecig
Universiv Campus lmprovameris
Unive6ily CIP Proiects
WICHE Loan & Stioend

-{1-+
..0-

{}.
-0- 3'15 -O 3'15 315 -O' -G -O-

Total App,op.iated Transfers out 3,r[50 203,196 -G 205,646 201,396 _ -0- -0- 5,250

Total Gcncral Fund $ /$0,728 $ -G t 2.801,670 I 3,202,398 $ 2,ut59,693 $ 3s3,717 
, -$_q4t -!_9@_
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Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-2
For the Fiscal Year Encled June

Departrnant

1of 3

Balences Appro- Arthor. Spending and Spcnding Spending Forward to
EgEll_ prialiohs i2riion3 _.,13g!!9IiL T,ahsf.r. J!g!!g4L Authodty New y...

$ 71,2s3 $ (429,606) $ 394,964 $ 36,611 $ -O- i (2s,93s) $ (4s,5ss) $ 108,10i
-G -0- -0- -G 388 (471' 83 -O-

10,447 2,047 4- 12,494 4,415 -G -0- 8.079
10s 4,864 Jllgl 8s4 .0. -G 854

...........@ (422'6s5) 
--99Sgt9- ---19f99- 

4'803 (26,406) (44'618) 116,160

1997

U nr€strictod
unbudgeted aclivity
Appropriations to other funds
Salary Adjustmenl

Sub-total

Public Setuly
Administrative Services
Automation
Eicycle Salety Program
Diroclods Ofic€ - DMV/PS
Dtllv Hwy Safe{y GEnts Acct
Ddvets License
Hazaadous Maierials
Hearings-OMv & PS
High$'ay Rrlrol
Motor Canier
l\rotorrycle Saf€ty Progrdm
Paoject Genesis
Records search
Regiskation
V€aifi cation of lnsurance

Sub-total

lnlresttatcure
Sound Banier
Transportalion Admhistration

SuFtotal

Debt Service frenslers
Debt Service

Total State Highway

,13 7.828 209 8,080
-o- 3.800 540 4,380

137 + 122 259

7,n1 -G' 309 .G,

5,925
1E

3,277
119

15
1,009
4,169
3,109

144
293

81
8.553
2,*1

70 1,649
1,070 1,145
't,013 9,268

1 06 1 ,O75 1 ,062
9t 615 598

+ 6,74 12.668 10,225

4,93 36,181 33,634 275 61 2,211

1,598 -O- 51 .O.

608 460 + 81
8,76 59 463 .G

+. 13 .G
5 12 -O"

-0. 3,100 -0-

+. 1,407
-{}. 637

5 860 2fi
11 -{! 129

7 + 2,015

-G 1,579
79 -G
+ 8,255
-&. 969
-0' 524
-G 31,638
3 2,040

297 -G 162 459 160 -0-
-O- 14,343 .0" 14,U3 {- -0-
50 -0- 5,531 5,581 645 -0-

4E4

4,409 10,401 14,810 11,710

2,527 2,1U 11 323 I
-0- 14,343

4,886 50

Class Siz6 Reduc{ion

Total

500 -0- 3,141 3,641 1.159 550 1,432 500

75,385 n,sn 104,017 73,271 _ 1,376 _1lElg_ _____L@9_

620 + .O 620 575 + + ,15

3 347,U4 6l,607 410,463 317,'06 _ 60,214 33,1,13 -0"

1,632 vt,aet 61@7 _4E9_ 317.q _99!11_ 3:l.1zl3 4s

_______-c + _ry__ry_ 27,497 -0-

11'565 3s,110 

-!.1399- -99- -:ry- 
4 i 

-11L9-
11,56s 39,110 _:-14_ d4,s64 55,A44 4 ..0- 9,116

claimant Employment Prcgram
Employment Seqrrity
Emp. Sec. Special Fund

Total

1.036
ro <Rt ro (78 27,@2 1,3i16

7,'t43 + 1.2s1 8.394 

-- 

4- 7,A7E

13.085 -G 37.551 50.637 __ry_ 2,372 4- 9,922

Administrative Fees
Dairy commission
Gaming Investigalion Revolving
Insurance Examiners
Manufactured Housing
Mtg Housing - Educ/Recov€ry
Mobil€ Home Parks
Real Estate Educ & Research
R€al Estate Recovery Account
R€gulatory Fund
Taxicab A'nhority

Totel

2
235

2
670
377
742

27
76i7

50
s29

1,7A

-o-
1,G18

4l
1,030
6,'t 58
3,'t 14

815
93

156
.G

373
7,U5

43
1,265
6.160
3,7U

835
't 83

423

4,613

-0- 28 -0- .0-
1'f -0- 245

620 1 169 2
107 -0- 558

3 -G 530
+-Gn7
4-$35
{- -o' 474

12 -$ 747!_ry
1.038 21.9965.5{4 24,574 20,@2 1,06E 1.16!' 5,659



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-2
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 2of3

Autho,. Sp.ndihg and spending sp.nding Forward to
_i4!q Adho,ity T.ansfe,s Authority Aulho,iw New YearDepartmcnt

Balence3 Appro-
Forwardcd prietions

consd'i,1donel Agencl.s
Audit Contingenry Account
L€glslative counsel Bursau
Leglslativ€ Counsel Expansion
Ngvada Legislative Intedm

Total

33 S -G$ 100 $ 133 $ 100 $ -c$ 33 $ -O-

Consdtudonel Aganclcs
Municipal Bond Bank Rev€nuo

Sub-total

Confialce md lndusty
Water Projecis, InUR€demp

SuFtotal

lnlresaucture
Bond Proceeds
Gftrtis to Water Purveyors
Slat€ R€volving Fund

Sub-total

Tot.l Municipal Bond Bank

3,522 28,958 846 33,326 26,350 21 33 6,922
13.049 2.600 -0- 15.649 15,649 -G -0- {.

_______4-_ _______219_ 4- 248 _ry_ 4- _g __g
__.8 991_ _____11,899_ s46 4s,3s6 42,336 21 66 _!e99_

.{}. s8,479 ss,o3s _:g!39_ 

- 

-o- s13

s60 {- s8,479 5s,03s __!g!?9_ {- -o- 513

6 -O- 570

-o- 570 576 570 -G -O- 6

-o-
14,512

+ 10,076 10,076
-o- 

',554 
16,066

+ 75 + 10,001
6,742 36 -G 9,28a

Co,r'/'rarce and lndusary
U nr€strictod
Enforcem6nt - Indusl.ial Saigty
lnduslrialRelations
Insuaahc€ Insoivenry Fund
Min6lhspec{ion
Paev€ntative Safety
S6lf-lhsur€d Insolvenry
S€lflnsured Workers Comp

Total

_u_J d_ _____ ! _Jgll_ _ry__L@_ _49_ 

- 

_s199_
26,279 -O- ___ 25347_ _2J26_ 23,438 2,969 -0- 25,719

_ZSE!E_ ______!_ 84,6s6 1 1 1,741 ....:94:4 2,e6s -o. 26,23E

11.859 (8,149 16.697 22,411 11,12E 145 {- 11,138
-{} 2,2&3 1,221 3,504 3,321 183 + {-
+ 3,560 265 3.a25 3,645 180 + {-

3,659 -O- 620 4,279 I 72 -G 4,199
-G s78 152 730 665 6s -0- -0-
-0- 1,568 196 1,7U 1,720 44 -0- -0-
22 -O- 63 85 '0' 36 -0- 49-0-3---91-99-..........9 61

_l:.,:19_ _lll_ 21.3os 36,e6o ___w_ 3 .o. 15,386

__!.899_ __j9: 1s,168 26,863 16,488 -G -0- 10,375

s€ -G _1-49!9_ 12,8s3 s,10s 1.s23 -0- _legl-
543 + 12,350 12,893 9,109 1,923 -&. 't,86'l

3,370 + 5,755 9,125 5,027 3 -e 4,095

____-:L___4" 3,462 3,63s _1!:9_ 2 -G 217

3,543 -0- 9,217 12160 8,443 5 -0- 4,312

3.230 + 8.178 11,1108 9.298 -G 2,012

____3.130_ _c_ 8.178 11,408 9,298 98 -0. 2,012

1,669 -0- 8,353 10,022 6,688 80s -0- _1939_
1,669 -0- 8,353 10,022 6,6E8 809 -O- 2,525

Flnance and Adnlnlsdoo
Higher Edcuation capital Construclion + -o- 5,0d) s,fi)o 5,000 -0" -G {-
Higher Educration Special CoBtruclion 11,695 -0- 10,16E 21,863 11,488 -G 

-9: 

_Lqz!_
Total

lnlEstntcfrrre
Petroleum Clean-Up Trust Fund

Total

F I nan c. an d Admlnlstr.tloo
Indigont Accident Account
Suppl€mental Fund-lndigents

Total

Commerce
Commission on Tourism

Total

Pub c S.hty
O1T6nd€rs' Store Fund

Totel

124



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

E)dribit l-2
For the Fiscal Year Ended June

OeDa meni

3of3
Baliances Appro- Autho,- Sp.nding and Spcndlng Sp.hding Forwerd to

Forwarded priation3 izdion. Adhority TransfeG Autho.lty A.||ho,ity

1997

lnfiestucfu16
Colorado Riv€a Commission
CRC Research & D€velopm€nt
Fod Mojave Developrfl€nt Fd

Total

243 -0- 405 648 310 142 -0- 196
3,319 -0- 193 3,s12 _4:_ 1 -0- 1,290

_@_ -o- _1188 7,43s 4,441 ....g {- _31!g_

15,142 1,175 't66 16.4A3 6.469 4 -0- to,olo
15,142 1.175 166 16.21{X,

689 $ -C t 2,s90 $ 3,279 $ 1,910 $ 697 $ -0- s 672

6,469 4

Inledm Finance Committee

Total

Radioaciive Material Disposal

Total

+ 10,010

8.590 + 9,570 3oo 297 -O- 8.970

Constitutionel
Stabilization of Stat€ Gov€rnmont

Total

Consuhet Advodate
Judicial college
Juvenile and Family Law Coll€ge
Privat€ Inv€stigators Licensing Bd
Racketeering-Pros€cution Acct
Unlair Trade P6ctices

Sutstotal

F i nance.nd A&nln I sar.rlon
Public Works Inspeclion
Viclims of cdm€

Sub-total

Educelion
Museums & History
W.l.C.H.E. Loan & Stipend

Sub-total

Corrrnerce and lndusty
Lot Rent Trust Subsidy
Rural Rehabilitation Trust

Sub-{otal

Alcohol Tax Program
Blind Gifr Fund
CBS Washo€ Giff Fund
Childr€n's Home Gifr Fund
CYc cin Fund
Handicapp€d Comm Gifr Fund
Health Division Gifrs
Henry Woods Christmas Fund
Hospital Gifr Fund
NNITRS Gifr Fund
Rehabilitalion Gifr Fund
SNMRS Gifr Fund
SNAMRS Gifr Fund
Substance Abuse Ed, Plv, Enf, Trt
Welfare Gn Fund
Youth Training Center Gn Fund

SuFtotal

Total llisc Sp€cial Ravanur

Total Special Rcv.nu. Fund3

390
3,750
1,250

129

2A

5,552

-$
-0-
-(}
a

Q2n
o6)

-o-
o.
79

++
4-
+

1,374
5,370
1,2fi
28

1.156
227

28

1,764
9,120
2.500

377
.{} 5 -O.

542
9,120
2,500

129

31102 130 12

E,344 13,836 1,719 fi58) 12,327

2t 4- 2,451 2,472 238 36 + 66t ^.', 4,410 2,539 70 -rL I ani

---- 

_____________:_ ___________.Li::i_

2,043 + 4,E39 6,aA2 4.887 108 -G 1aa7

300 -0- 19 319 -O- 15 4- 304
288 316 558 1,162 875 66

s88 316 577 _g_ 875 ro.t -G 5O5

70
425

-o 411 766 363 t8
+--------4J 37 21
-G 87 912 4@ 39

-o"
41 {t- 385

+84146
11

76
.G 473

56

/$5

23
20

7
213

8

3

21
I

11

-G
-&
.G

-0-
-o-
-o-
-o-

640
20

7
45

13

4
10
'15

10
4

G)6 ss3 0)67512
1561

480 24 18

4686
33210
1272
10 -o- 1

4-0-4
13 17
15 -0- 2
21 21 -0-
18 5 -O-

-0'
-0'

-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

4-
-0-
-(}

144
50

8
4:|8

32
21

217
9

13
-o-
13
1215-G3

863 -O- E22 1,685 642 75 -0- 96a

s,471 316 _!-9!99_ _?S9_ _99?3_ 165 8 16,160

_l___9!1.,!99_-!___21.0s0_-g_2$128 -$_1J!2p99_l___7sgEll_-U929_-$___lg8_-$._9@_
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Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual,
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-3
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands) Page 1 of 2

Final Flnal
Budget Actual Varlanc€

Slate Highway

gudget Actual variance
Class.size Redustion

E4,550 $

139,7,18
19't,682

14,399
42,914
a,947
8,7.tE

60,000

84,550 $

123,W2
213,439

11 ,7 47
103,955

10,828

1,7n
25

(1s,846)
21,757
(2,6521
21,U1

1,881
(1,s6s)

(60,00o)
't74 5l a7(l

11,565 $

-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-
51,868

-0-

(2)
-0-

+.
(21

-o-

$ 592,557 $ 557,372 $ (35,185) $ 64,964 $ 64,960 I (4)

Employrner{ Security Regulatory

Fund balances, July 1

Reveflues.'
Federal
Other hxes
Sales, charges for seryices
Licenses, fees and permits
lnterest
Other

other llnancing sourc.s :
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Trdnsfer lrom olher funds
Reversions from other funds

Total soulces

Fund balances, July 1

Reveaqes.'
Gaming taxes, fees, licenses
Federal
Other taxes
Sales, cha,ges for servicG
Licenses, fees and permits
lnterest
Other

O,hq frnanclng sourc6:
Trdnsfer from other funds

Total sources

Fund balances, July 1

ReveDUes.'
Federal
Sales, charges for servic6
lnterest
Other

Oahs financing sources:
Proceeds from sales of bonds
Transfer from other funds

Total soutces

13,086 $

-G
28,983

-{!
-G

466
785

13,086 $

Jl-
27,414

5,117
4X+
674

5,5,14 $ 5,544 $

204
6,632

11

7,065
124

1,44

-0-

(833)
24
4

(En
60
(1)

-G 6,158(r,s6s) 180
(1,40s) 6,632

4X 11

+ 7,362
4[o6E
(rrr) 1,4'l

678 (117) 1,'183 1,160 (23)

$ 50,637 $ 4,264 $ (2,373) $ 28,579 $ 27,509 $ (1,070)

Legislative Municipal Bond Banl
16,604 $ r6.604 $

32,1fi 32,145 (5)

$ ,t9,356 S €,335 $ (21)

Workels' Comp€nsalion
and Safety

$ 111,739 $ 108,21 $ (2,968)

272

314

2U

318

(121

(4)

26,845 $

8,683
4

62,5.O
2,ffi

10,721
+.

26,845 $

5,971
-&

62,291
2,943

10,721

(2,712\

(249)
(7)

0
0

Higher Education
Capital Cons{ruction

Fund balances, July 1

Reve''ues.'
Gaming taxes, fees, licenses
Federal
Other taxes
Sales, chargG for services
Licens6, fees and permits
lnterest
Other

Total soutces

15,540 $ 15,5,10 $

't,290
t 6,.{91

214
|,039

-0-
(45)

('t,E,o)

(1s)
331
782

11,695 S 11,695 $

15 167'15 167
0
0
0
0
0
0

708
AIA I <OA

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

s 36,959 $ 36,175 $ (784) $ 26,862 $ 26,E62 $ -0-
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Schedule of and Actual, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

Exhlblt l-3

Final
BudSet Ac,lual Variancc

Cleaning Up

' Budgel Ac{ual Variance
llospilal Carc

P€trolem Dischalges lo Indlsent Persons

5,13 $

11.501
500
250
t00

5.13 $ 3,544 $

8,560
-0-

3't 0
346

3,544 S

9.834 (1,667)
43s (6s)
1s7 (e3)

+
3X)

(3)
-0-
(1)

12,894 $

1s7 (e3)
-0. (r00) 3il5 (1)

10,969 $ (1,925) a ttTAl! I |a'f11 ( /(r

Toqdsn P.o0pilon Ottendcrs' Storc

Fund balanc6, July I

RevaDucs.'
Other tax6
Licens€s, fees and p€rmlts
lnter€6t
Other

Tolal sources

Fund b6lanc6, July 1

Reverrrres:
Other bxes
Sales, charges for services
Licenses, tees and pemitg
lnterest
Other

Ottrq llnanci''g so|,,'ceE:
Trangter trom other funds

Total sources

Fund bahnc6, July I

Rgvg,rues.'
Sales, charges lor s€Mc6
Ir er6t
Other

Outq f,nancttry so/trcas:
Transfer from other lunds
Reversion fiom other funds

Total sourceg

3,230 $

6,07E

.G

a

3,230 $ 1.659 $ 1,669 $

+
7,'r 96

-G
1't E

231

-o-

11 t2\
.0-
9l

222

.G

8,318
{.
9

4

(eE)
(4)
4

7,980

29

$ 11,407 $ 11,30Sr $ (98)

Cololado River Comission

$ 10,023 S 9,214 $ (809)

Gor inglncy

4,251 $

2,62
310
n

4,25r I

(1,285)
(r 03)
547

't5,142 $

32

1U

15,142 S

++
32

1,171
134

.0.
-0.

1,567
m7

-G
-0-

-0-
-G
-0-

(4)
-0-

$ 7,,139 $ 6,s98 $ (841) $ 16,483 $ r6,47e $ (4)

Stabilizc thc operallons
of State Govcmmcnt

Care of Sit.3 for
Radloac{ve W.stc Di3posal

8,590 $ 8,590 $ 100.000 $ 100.000 $

-(!-0-
-0-

-G
-G

1241\
(s6)

,100

580

4
524

.o.

$ 9,570 $

-G 2A,67 28,67

9,273 $ (297', $ loo,ooo $ 128,867 $ 28,867

Total Special RevenueMlscellaneous

Fund balance€, July 1

Rgl€rrues.'
Llc€nses, fe€s and pemlts
lnterest

otlr€f furanctng so{trc€€:
Transl€r fom other funds

Total sourccs

Fund b6lanc€s, July I

Rcve|tarea.'
Gaming tax€8, fecs, licenses
F€derdl
Othq taxes
Sal6, charges for sewlces
Llcens6, f€es and permits
lnteresl
Other

dtq ,lmrctng sourcsr:
Proceeds trom sale of bonds
Transter from other tunds
Revel3lons trom other lundg

Total soulces

9,,159 $

15
640

5,063
48
747

9,469 $

64)

4,774
688
747

-o-

(15)

(2Ee)
259+

-G
(120)+

.0-
8,492

-G

-{r
4372

-{!

331,868 $ 331,E6E $

21,325
178,944
251p6

25,870
96,534
76,'t 65
16,2E6

70,721
97,293

1U

n,492 (833)
1s8,78s (20,rs9)
268,694 16,7,18
21,23 l4,Un116,671 20,137
7A,62 2,517
16,050 (236)

10,721 (60,000)
126,063 28,n0

159 25

$ 24,8ss $ 24,6e3 j_ggt 3__1-l-91999_ $ 1,1,1e,,o8 s (17,678)
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General Governmental Expenditures and Other Uses by Funqlon -

G;;;r;l Governmental Revenues and other Resources by Source *

I

I

)

j

/

I
I

!

J

J

I

)

)

)

)

I

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 ',1993 1994 1995 ',1996 199t

Table I

Tabte lt

$63,117$s7,746$s3,e25$58'806$-1'?1:$&''123iu'52s$-7-5'111 
r'| 7s'770 $ 1ol'56s

ges's66 .'t:fi 'fr,in .'*s "':a:1! -*::ll 
%:;lg ':i::3 'T1:fi3 ''T,:ffi

302,606 22'

T:;iit"ifii" 1!1,y! '.2,!1: '21,:27f i3:3$ '33:ffi '13:391 :ii&i Ti,z],i 's:3i! Tfr,l-fr
*'."#it"-j-o*t"o 

':l'*: ,?3.r". 2sz,e 216.ss4 ,*,..! ,ii,ti. 3-qz"cna gea ono 344 183 312ss2

Transponaton

1s,542 66117 60'788 G2'122 99':1s 58'603 72'63s T-'?7j' 80713 8s'011

- stt its 3es oso 47t'57s 5994 qla)'1ii qgsi'zaz 48?'?19 6t3 244 672'812

s 53,177 s;ilri ;;i, so,24e o''toi -;;:;;; rs'E?r {'19 27 s32 4e 2eE

4s.64s "'Ei 
;;:s33 rujtz tttd ziilei ii'iss 1o7 '22s 1387s1 151'422

Olllref ttses: r6a 613 276,773 'lqfq----2:yg- 257,676 266'341 350'404

118,691 12E,786 222'644

Total exP€nditureg
and oiher uscs -$rg!g:j- -u,g:.sr6 -gr-zg,16a- -!r.'.99$a- 

g4E,99g- -$?f4agg!- $2'4n'6n $2111'ffi lzzw- s3Jff/,f!f-
Unlversily --fLg%

Charg6s fot servic6

Olher

1988 1989 1990 1991 {992 1993 tg9/t 1995 t996 t997

$ 306,236 $ 332,071 t3z'1e4 $ 416',s46 $ 1?9'9il $ ',{53'084 $ 4eo'166 $ stls-ll s s66'E34 $ 566'07e

2tG'2sG 'ouiJ 
- lii'ii' ' tt't* tto'tzo 

- tL too qoz'saa 446'5-9! 502 e60 554'8e1

nrer 2E8.73e "o;" 
;;:il 421''oo1 :9? 1?; 

-&:';;; zos'izs 836 ::1 a77 '73s eoE 806

303,28s .'r'6ii ;;:;; n.z'rsg t'o't"i fi:il ers'ss' 6s4'ml 72s'808 7t2'563

Licensas, le€s and
D.rmlts 96.570 l tz'243 '121'422 116'532 MA'567 164'741 166'094 175'139 185 375 19a'622

20,796 21'734 25'OO4 25'564 2A'44O 2g'57g 39'65/ 39 751 41'458 '14'885

s9,593 73,532 79'BG5 ,",1i *''oo s6'959 4s'572 68'347 91'59s 113'061

ss,r8s 35,730 35,439 t.tit l'c'eor 60'125 &'7s7 43159 42'699 52'396

Odref Resoufces:

dobtlinancing 66,137 Eo'126 114'702 1OO'293 $0'216 32'006 21A'632 90'093 239 531 522'6E5

N€t op€ratins ransters 5,267 
' ';;; "'zo' 

12 338 3'740 3'8'16 4'1s3 3'274 4 a29 3'549

ofher ------L --! 
ti ut 149 !62 357 3'226

Total tevanuas and

oth.r resources ,1'4,,'1oB ls1'54'z':/,1 i!$sfg- -I's'?3'oo6- 
i'z3438'??- t'z'451-@'1- yf7:''zf6- s'?914ff1-'E!gtf 81 S ?4o ?63-

.|nc|udesGenera|,specia|Revenue,DebtseMce,capita|ProiectsandExPendab|eTrustFunds'Notethattrans'erslo/fromcomponentUnit

have been netted and in"tuaeo as otn"iu"es. operating transfers in/out have been netted and included as other resources

I

I

I

Fiiat 'tat Years Ended Juna 30
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General Governmental Expenditures and Other Uses Compared With

General Governmental Revenues and Other Resources

General Fund Expenditures and Unreserved Fund Balance

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Exprcssed in

4,000,000

3,500,000

3,000,000

2,500,000

2,000,000

1,500,000

1,000,000

500,000

1996 1997

EExDenditures and Other Uses ERevenues and Other Sources

Fiscal Year

Ended June 30

General Fund

Expenditules

Table lll

"Rainy" Day (l)
Fund Balance

unreseryed Genelal
Fund Balance

67,088

56,618

82,831

43,393

39,616
(26,809)

10,107
(s,360)

1988
'r 989

1990

199|
1992

1993

1994
'! 995
'1996

1997

731,94
813,0E9

959,327
'!,'t36,595

13a2,O77
't,386,788

1,416,82
1 ,578,382
1,792,&
1,869,807

'18,057

100,000

123,392

128,867

(1) The 1991 Leg6lature estabtished a fiscal emergency (rainy day) fund lhat is funded with 40% of the unreserved fund balance that exceeds

'1 0% of appropriations.
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State Collected Gaming Taxes and Sales Taxes
Average Combined Property Tax Rates and State Levy

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands) (Unaudited)

Table lV

GAMING TAXES SALES TAXES

Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30

State
Share

Gaming
Taxcs

Gross
Taxable
Sales

State
GrossTaxable Collections

Gaming caming
Revenues Taxes

State Sales Taxes
Gross General Collecteo

Sales Tax Fund for Loca
Revenues Revenues Governments

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992
1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

Sources:

$ 4,073,283
4,433,770

4,911,178

5,411,475
5,570,752

5,871,U0
6,397,278

6,821 ,022
7,240,837

7,300,149

$ 308,589

334,369

379,561

418,912

428,934

455,182
498,709

522,848
565,921

569,962

$ 306,236

332,074

377,194
416,545

426,621

453,084

490,166

517,524

563,198

567,341

$ 10,806,016

12,334,591

14,091,551

14,514,119

14,437,144

15,665,903

18,215,224

20,o7 5,579
22,222,771

24,408,111

$ 637,992

725,453

432,912

858,093

942,850

1,071,886

1 ,245,720
'1,374,636

1 ,541,703
1,696,634

$ 226,983

260,517

307 ,945
3'10,770

343,604

402,548

446,504
458,336
554 891

$ 411,009

464,936

550,'t48

632,080

728,282

842,788

928,132

1,083,367

Nevada Gaming Control Board, State Departmenl ofTaxation

600,000

500,000

400,000

300,000

200,000

100,000

-0-

'r988 1989 1990 'f 991 1992 1993 1994

-)FGaming Taxes +Sales Taxes
1995 '1996

State Share of Gaming and Sales Taxes

1997

Table V

Tax Rates Per 9100 of Assessed Value

Fiscal Year
Ended Jun6 30

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

Washoe
County

2.5672

2 7704

29142
3 1609

3.2389

3 2863

3 3265

3 4140

3 3515

3 3675

'15 Other
Countigs

Clark
County

Average State Gov't State Gov't
County Rate Rate Tax Levy

0 0646 10,853,517

01010 18,771,251

0 1180 24,226 913
01370 30,904,428

01440 34,979,018

0 1500 39,199,474

0 1500 42,442,055
01500 46,653,503
0.1500 51,138,611
0.1500 55,970,796

2.5081

2 6836

27438
2.7719
2.8043
2 8111

27813
2 7881

2 9106

2 0033

2 2145

2.3701

2 4962

2 5884

2 5919

2 5942

2.6272

2 4140
2 5888

2 6634

2.7770

2 8277

2.8550

2 8661

2.8505

2.8580

2 9443

Sourc€i Department of Taxation

Histoncally, outstandrng delrnquent taxes have been minimal The two largest counties have for the past ten years had less rnan
1/2 of 1 percent of the curent tevy as outstanding delinquent taxes at the end of the coltection penod
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Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Ten Largest Taxable Property Owners

Clark
County

15 Other
Counties

Total
State

Assessed Value (1)

Table vl

Market Value
Total
State

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

Sourc€r Department of Taxation

washoe
County

$ 4,103 366

4,391,118

4,558,300

4,700,274

4,908,661

5,179,851

5,440,391

6,482 287

6,948,776

$ 9,085,929

9,980,576

11,294,875

12,964,606

14,267,549

15,574,486

17,107,695

18,909,831

21 ,023,607
23,599,895

$ 3,611,8t5
4.213,702

4,678,107

4,893,097

5,114,774

5,378,646

5,746,620
6,328,966

$ 16,801,110

18,585,396

20,531,282

22,557 ,977
24,290,984
26,132,983

28,294,706
31,102,336

34,O92,407

37,313,864

$ 40,003,171

53,101,131

58,660,805

64,451,362
69,402,811

74,665,666

80,842,017

88,863,817

97,406,877
'106,611,040

(1 ) Excludes redevelopment valuation Assessed value is approximately 35% of fair market value

Assessed value

$40,000,000

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$-

1991 1992 1993 1994 ',1995 1996 1997 1998

aClark County lWashoe County tr 15 Other Counties

Table Vll

Assessed
Valuation

Percentage of
Total Assessed

Valuation

Nevada Power Company

Sierra Pacific Power Company

lrirage Resorts Inc (Las Vegas)

Circus Circus Properlies (Reno, Las Vegas)

Hilton Hotel Corporation - (Reno, Las Vegas)

l\rcl, Grand Hotel Inc. (Las Vegas)

Howard Hughes Properties L P (Las Vegas)

Oasis Resrdential Inc (Las Vegas)

Harrah's (Reno, Lake Tahoe, Las Vegas)

Newmont Gold Company (Elko, Eureka)

Totals

Source. Department of Taxation

534,937

444,272

444,999
420,442

310,917

284,160

227,215
196,316

179,657

140
1 18

117
1 '10

082
075
0.60

o52
o47
o47

%

$ 3,226,468 847 %



Constitutional Debt Limit

For the Last Ten Ejscal Years in Thousands

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

1 oh or 2V.

Assessed
Valuation

Obligation
Payable Subject

to Limit

Table Vt

Unused
Dobt Limit

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

800 000

700 000

171,357

374,528
418,444

459,570

494,964

531,426
574,717

632,795

694,581

762,212

99,605
100,820

204,368

226,955
415,050

404,005

423,278

426,613

451,567

476,979

71,752

277,70A
214,076

232,615
79,914

127.421

151,439

206,1a2
243,O14

285,233

600 000

500,000

400 000

300,000

200 000

100.000

1989 1990 1991 1992

E Obligation Payable Subject 1o Limit

Computation of Legal Debt Margin atJune 30, 1997:

Assessed value oftaxable property at June 30, 1997 (1)

Debt limitation (2% of assessed value)

Total generaland special obligation bonded debt $
Leases

Less obl€atron exempt fiom debt margtn:

Municipal bond bank bonds

Special obligatron bonds

Protection of natural resources bonds

Debt subject to debt limitation

Legaldebt margin at June 30, 1997

38,110,609

762,212

1 ,727 ,696
5 004

35,400

424.536

476,979

285,233

(1) Assessed value includes redevelopment assessed vatue of 9796,745

Constitutional Debt Limit
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Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for
General Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt
to Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt per Capita

Last Tan Fiscal Yaars (Expressed in Thousands) (Unaudited)

Table lX

Yae,
End.d

Int€r8t,
Fi.c.l

Ratio of oanaaal
Total D€bt Total Gleneral to Debt S.rvlc.

Jqnc s0 _B4E!4 _.j:l!gg9!.lt!L se.vice (2) _gPg!!!@!lgl _@Et_
1986

1989

199'l

1992

9,460 $
11,720
16,425

18,373

19.630

24,260
47,O15
47,575

23,295 $
24,8V
30,5E5

36,661

35,075

43,427

41,87
55.'t 28
74,U1

32,755 $

47,010
55,034

55,066

63,457

59.331

70,117

102,14
121.9t6

't,351,654

1,445,526

1,77E,163

1,934,854

2,406,833
2,5/-2,65
2An,622
2,711,846
2,917,797
3,t43.634

2.42

253
2.64

2.44

2.29

2.5{r

2.4
2.59

3.17

1994

1995

199€
t997

0)
Q'
(3)

Exclirdes advbnce refu nding escrow €xpenditures.
Excludos goneral obligation bonds r€portod In Enterprise Funds and rovenuo bonds.
lhcludss General, Special Rev€nu6, Debt S€rvice, Capital Paojecl, and Exp€ndable Trusl Funds.

Debt Pay.bl.
Froln Fc.s and
Enterpris. Fund Bonded to Asscasad Debt Per

TaHe X

Net Net Bohd.d Debl Net Bonded

June 30 _!gp!b!jg!_ _\g!E,j!l_ oebt (2) Fuhd _@.,j9)_ oebt value % _gPE_
End.d

1988
't 989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997

Asaa3sad
Grosa

Bonded
L€3 O.bt

Seryice

1,096
1,162
1,237
1,298
1,344
't,399
't,4s)
|,582
1,ma
1,741

$ 16,801,110 $
18,585,396
20,531 ,282
22,557pn
24,29i),94
26,132,963
24,294,76
3't,102,336
34,o.92,47
37,313,864

464,000 $
534,855
633,783
684,460
826,230
703,,150
820,906

1,026,766
1,2U,716
1,592,296

1.705 $ 360,895 $ 101,400
2,624 415,413 116,818
4,693 402,540 226,550
7,972 442,90 234,108
11,202 387,351 424,677
19.349 27a,E2O ,105.281

20,331 353,256 447,319
22,420 560,375 443,971
26,275 716,970 491,467
29,207 1,142,180 520,909

0.60 $ 93
0.63 101

110 ' 183
1.04 180
1.75 316
1.55 2S0
1.58 300
1.43 241
1.44 300
140 299

(1) Excludes redgvslopment agoncy valuations.
(2) Exclud€s 1977 and 1989 Sew€r lmprovement Bonds seMced by Clark County, but includes Municlpal Bond Bahk debt.
(3) Includ€s Uhivorsity ceneral Obllgation Bonds paid fiom gaming taxes; Muni Bond Bank Bonds paid by local Oovernm€nts; and cololado Riv€t

Gen€ral Obligation Bonds paid by user lees.
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Revenue Bond Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands) (Unaudited)

Flscal Y€ar
Ended June 30

Groag
Regourceg

Net Rgaourcaa
AYailable for
Debt Servlco Coverage

Tabte Xt

'1.68

1.03
1.02
1.01

1.05
064
1.07
1.64
140
2.49

Table Xll

0.88
1.01
0.88
o.72
0.90
1.15
095
0.82
0.83
0.92

Table Xttt

0.99
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.02
1.00
0.96
0.94
0.86
2.44

U3es

Debt Servlca Requirements (l)

Principal lntal€st Total

1988
1989
1990
't991

't992
1993
r 994
1995
1996
't 997

1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995

1997

$ 80,920
89,947
90,245
99,070

155,834

206,109
76,770

'r 04,616
112,296

$ 236,504 (2)

269,592
314,587
282,078
314,156
332,174
425,828
499,343
463,447
4U,737

$ 85,970 (4)

93,934
94,259

103,442
161,282
168,152
213,621

84,2A1
1't2,896
't20,652

$ 211,536 (3)

249,901
29s,820
2U,388
296,363
319,761
,109,671

440,711
413,941
395,415

$ 2,620
3,349
2,587
1,684
2,'t45
3,115
2,327
5,440
4,929
3,409

$ 52,283
50,720
52,166
58,22'l
57,556

38,327

43,156
48,761

I 5,050 (3)

3.987
4,014
4,372
5,448

7,512
7,511
8,280
8,356

$ 24,968
19,691
18,767
17.690
17,793
't2,413
't 6,157
58,632
49,506
69,322

$ 12,260
15,760
15,760
15,760
14,760
16,220
12,720
30,420
30,420
24,420

$ 39,371
38,227
50,372

114,858
87,617

178,892
56,462
82,256
72,936

14,880
19,109
18,347
17A44
16,905
19.335
15,U7
35,860
35,349
27,a29

1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1991
't 995
1996
1997

$ 9,472 (5) $
I,944

10,886
10,986
1.t,915
12,273
14,947
19,030
54,149 (6)

3,235 (3) $
3,657
3,713
4,290
4,388
4,411
s,55'l
7,O21

10,59'l
15,620

$ 9'1.654
88,947

102,538
138,171
172,414
138,752
217,219
93,789

125,412
121,697

$ 6,283

6,278
o,co6
6,472
7,534

8,435
I,427

15,761

6,237
6,287
6,283
6,596
o,9vo
7,5U
6,722
7,926
8,439

38,529

$ 1,700 $ 4,583
'1,805 4,462
1,925 4,353
2,183 4,385
2,170 4,302
3,020 1,514
3,028 3,951
3,367 5,068
3,120 6,707
3,625 12,136

(1)
(21

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Pnncipal requkemenls represent principal outlays.
Consisls ofthe resourc€s ofthe Slate Highway SpEcial Revenue Fund and Hlghway Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund.
Uses are operating expenses, nonoperaling expEnses, and lransfers oul less Interest expense and depaeciation.
Consists ofoperating revenues, nonoperating rcvenues, lransfers in and principal colleclions ofthe Housing Division Enterprise Funo
Includes op€rating revenues and nonoperating rcvenues ofthe Water Trealment Enlerprise Fund.
Includes operating revenues and nonoperating revenues of the Southem Nevada Water Authority rvho replaced the Colorado Riwr
Commission Waler Treatment Enterprise Fund as payor ol the Colo.ado River Commission General Obligation/Revenue Bonds debt seNice.
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Disposable Per Capita Income
Pooulation
(Unaudiled)

Calendal
Year Calilomia

Nevada's
Per Capita

as % of U.S.
Per Capita

12704
115
106
106
107
r05
105
't 05
105
105
106
104
104

Nev.da's
Per Capita

Rank

Tabte XIV

Table XV

united
Siates

1970
1980
1986
1947
1988
1989

1991

tw2
| 993
1994
1995
1996

Year

3,44
4,424

12,49
13,1,|3
14,457
15,722
16,642
17,161
18,034
18,55'l
19,241
20,149
20,979

4,131
9,876

14,94
'15,'138

16,'t 31

17,250
1E,313
18,61s
19,390
19,571
19,929
20,970
21,760

4,425
9,714

't3,'t79
13,896

r6,508
17,443
17,941
18,E66
19,386
20,350
21,065
21,805

12
11

11

15

14
8
6

t0

Source: Survey ot Curent Busin6s, published by U.S. Depaiment of Commerce

Clark
County

273,28
463,087
6t 6,650
661,690
70a,7fi
770,2W
820,44
856,350
89E,020
971,680

1,038,1E0
,|,062,667

1,163,207

Washo€
County

121,06E
| 93,623
238,360
244,490
251,580
257,120
262,2@
265,660
271,nO
282,6&
294,2W
298,356
308,579

16 Other
counties

Total
State

1970
t 960
r 987
| 988
't 9E9
r 990
1991
1992
'1993

1994
1995
1996
1997

94,342
143,794
179,980
189,420
202,0'0
209,500
214,410
221,930
224,970
238,690
2,1s,810
256,992
269,111

.188,738

E00,508
1,034,990
'1,096,000

1 ,162,3iO
1,236,900
1,297,910
1,3,13,9,10
1,398,760
1,,193,000
1,542,280
1,638,015
1,74o,497

sources: U.s. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 1970, 1980, 1990;
Nevada State Demographer for all other years as estimated for July 1

1 ,200,000

1 ,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

OOF@(DOFN.o*rJ)(OFF ao @ ao @ q, or or (D or or or cDo, o) q, o) cD o, or or cD or o, q, qt

E Clark Counly

lWashoe County

tr 15 Other Counties
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Public School Enrollment
University and Community College Enrollment

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited)

Fall Enrollment
Grades Counties

Primary Secondary
(K - 6) (7 - 12]. Total Clark Washoe All Others Total

74,998 176,474

76,533 186,834

81 ,364 201,316

85,255 211,810
91,377 222,846

96,971 235,800

103,798 250,747

109,549 265,041

117,477 282,131

123,003 296,621

36,140 176,474

38,712 186,834

40,846 201,316

42,549 211,810
44,597 222,846

46,758 235,800

48,647 250,747

50,681 265,041

53,354 282,131

54,594 296,621

Table XVI

Total

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

101,476

110,301

119,952

126,555

131,469

138,829
'146,949

155,492
164,654

173,618

105,151

11 1,460

121,984

129,233

136,188

145,327

156,348

166,788

1 79,106

190,822

35,183

36,662

38,486

40.028
42,061

43,715

45,752

47,572

49,671

51,205

Southern Great Truckee Western
Subtotal Nevada Basin Meadows Nevada Subtotal

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

300,000

250,000

200,000

150,000

100,000

50,000

0

7,743
7,772

8,299
I,821
9,212

9,161

9,397

17 ,367
18,607

20,440
21,929
22,156

22,040
22,603
22,327

23,044
23,844

4l92
5,024

5,402
6,253

7 ,426

7,111

8,599

10,245

11,380

538

590

800

828
933

906

933

878

1,010

1,146

2,8E3

3,036

3,283

3,718

3,726

3,594

3,451

3 848

4,377

1,372

1,478
1,646

1,726

1 ,765
1,810
't,u7
1 ,682
1,869

1,955

9,285

10,128
11,131

12,322

13,842

13,579

13,485

14,610

16,972
18,858

26,652
28,735

31 ,571
34,251

35,619

36,088

36,937

40,016
42,702

Las Vegas

I,624
10,835

12,141

13,108

12,944

12,885

13,211

13,166

13,661

14,447

Source: University and Community College System of Nevada

45,000

40,000

35,000

30,000

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

0

University and Community College

.r9lr)@@ooroto)ooroto,ororororooooro,

!Clark lWashoe trAll Others

ct-t|r)@F-@@oo)oooro)cnoororoo)oo)

Source: Nevada Deoartment of Educalion

Table XV

Full Time Eouivalent Students at Fall Enrollment
Unlve6ities Community Colleges (CC)

Public School Enrollment
Enrollment
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Iu"ran" An n u al EmP loyment

ustrenc4g!!!-9

LaborForcqlgll:gg
U.S. Averago

unemployment unsmlloynont
Total Nevada n"t" Ratot,:.:,,:::'"^ ffi:;;;;"_ unemproyment r(ars

581.2

620.9
628.7

638.7

670.0
736.7

789.1

a42.5

8S5.8

72.3

84.0

87.3
79.0

7A.2

880
100.9

111.8
'r28.0

137 .1

465.5
497.2

533.6

5/,9.7

560.5

582.0

635.8

677 ,3

714.5
749.7

Industtlal Baso Statlstics (2)

Good3 SorvlcsE

;ffiilJ; Producrns Producine

Endod June 30 Lasq I v'-- 
s.2 5.5

1988 50 s3

1989 49 55

1990 55 67

'1991 66 74

1992 7'2 68

1993 6'2 6 '1

1994 54 56

1995 54 54

j996 (3) 46 50

1997 0 )
itation

incide with the labor force concapt lncludes multiple iob holders'
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